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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

September December 3:
30, 2014 2013
(Unaudited) (1)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 241,64. $ 77,62¢
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior 239,93 89,681
Senior intere-only 207,84( 229,06!
Subordinatet 439,96 457,56¢
Subordinated intere-only 7,34( 16,57
Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Pas-through 7,955,80! 1,954,79
Interes-only 114,16¢ 42,78:
Receivable for investments sc - 253,54:
Accrued interest receivab 32,64( 15,82
Other asset 99,03¢ 1,76:
Derivatives, at fair value, n 7,80( 8,09t
Subtotal 9,346,17! 3,147,31!
Assets of Consolidated VIEs
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated variabterigst entities ("VIEs"), at fair valt 2,528,33! 2,981,57
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alaee for loan losses of $7 million and $9 million,
respectively 678,86¢ 783,48:
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair e 4,816,55. -
Accrued interest receivab 40,587 17,17
Other Asset: 80,45/ 6,534
Subtotal 8,144,79 3,788,76.
Total asset $ 17,490,966 $ 6,936,08
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, RMBS ($8.5 bhillion and B1li@n pledged as collateral, respective $ 7,838,116 $ 1,658,56
Accrued interest payab 25,94 1,397
Dividends payabl 92,46: 297,90:
Payable for investments purcha: 848,13 -
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 664 1,861
Investment management fees and expenses payaiffdiste 8,54( 5,65¢
Derivatives, at fair value, n 16,22: 30,19¢
Subtotal 8,830,12. 1,995,58!
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VIES
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMB&.5 billion and $3.0 billion pledged as
collateral, respectively 742,89: 933,73:
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestment ($673 million and $763 million pledgex
collateral, respectively 572,74 669,98:
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized dgris held for investment ($4.8 billion pledged as
collateral) 3,737,60: -
Accrued interest payab 16,38 5,27¢
Subtotal 5,069,62. 1,608,99.
Total liabilities $ 13,899,74 $ 3,604,57.
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock: par value $0.01 per share; 100000CGhares authorized, 0 shares issued and alitggan
respectively $ - $ -
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,500000CGhares authorized, 1,027,508,880 and
1,027,626,237 shares issued and outstanding, tesgg: 10,27: 10,27:
Additional paic-in-capital 3,605,401 3,605,24.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 945,00t 990,80¢
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (969,459 (1,274,80)
Total stockholders' equit $ 3591221 $ 3,331,551




Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 17,490,996 $ 6,936,08

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated finanstatements.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzdiag

(unaudite

d

For the Quarter Ende

For the Nine Months Ende
September 3( September 3( September 3( September 3(

2014 2013 2014 2013

Net interest income:
Interest incomt $ 86,61: $ 38,81¢ $ 171,12! $ 101,51
Interest expens (9,907) (1,580 (15,137 (5,047
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 103,74. 91,54: 274,21! 282,20°
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of consolidated VI (28,989 (23,499 (66,859 (75,477)
Net interest income (expens 151,46¢ 105,28 363,34¢ 303,20°
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (72€) (2,209 (4,939 (2,209
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (1,264 (14,246 (3,937 (20,409
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (1,990 (16,455 (8,879 (22,619
Other gains (losses):
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 12,97" 27 (12,720 18,601
Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (23,157 (3,399 (48,697 (14,317
Net gains (losses) on derivative (10,177 (3,369 (60,417) 4,29t
Net unrealized gains (losses) on financial instntmat fair value 162,92: (27,879 183,72. (41,867)
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investr 64,10° 18,81¢ 68,14! 72,93¢
Gain on deconsolidatic - - 47,84¢ -
Loss on Extinguishment of De - - (2,189 -
Total other gains (losse 216,85. (12,427 237,11 35,37:
Net investment income (los 366,33( 76,41( 591,59! 315,96:
Other (income) and expenses
Management fee 9,381 6,57( 21,87: 19,517
Expense recoveries from Manay (1,97%) (1,082 (4,820 (6,257)
Net management fes 7,40¢ 5,48¢ 17,05! 13,26¢
(Income)/expense for change in loan loss provi (645) (69) (112 (1,349
General and administrative expen 5,77 3,62¢ 15,71¢ 13,66¢
Other (income) expen: (23,787) - (23,787) -
Total other income and expen: (11,250 9,04: 8,87¢ 25,58t
Income (loss) before income taxe 377,58l 67,36" 582,71 290,37
Income taxe: - - 2 2
Net income (loss $ 377,580 $ 67,367 $ 582,71 $ 290,37!
Net income (loss) per share available to common stedolders:
Basic $ 0.37 $ 0.07 $ 0.57 $ 0.2¢
Diluted $ 0.37 $ 0.07 $ 0.57 $ 0.2¢
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin
Basic 1,027,183,38 1,027,121,43 1,027,218,02 1,027,075,62
Diluted 1,027,508,88 1,027,559,18 1,027,543,73 1,027,582,58
Dividends declared per share of common stoc $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 027 $ 0.27
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 377,58( $ 67,36’ 582,71 290,37!
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, ni (74,155 (33,17¢) 63,99: 61,83¢
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetket income (loss)
for other-than-

temporary credit impairment loss 1,99( 16,45¢ 8,871 22,61¢

Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggais) included in ne



income (loss (62,47°) (18,81¢) (70,817 (72,939
Reclassification adjustment for gain on deconstiticeincluded in net

income - - (47,846 -
Other comprehensive income (lo (134,64 (35,53)) (45,79Y) 11,51¢
Comprehensive income (los $ 242,93t $ 31,83( $ 536,92( $ 301,89

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

(unaudited’
Accumulated Retained
Common Other Earnings
Stock Par Additional Comprehensiv  (Accumulated
Value Paic-in Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26¢ $ 3,604,555 $ 989,93t $ (1,062,27) $  3,542,47
Net income - - - 290,37" 290,37"
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, ni - - 61,83¢ - 61,83¢
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet
income (loss) for other-than-

temporary credit impairment loss - - 22,61¢ - 22,61¢
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggeims)
included in net income (los - - (72,939 - (72,939
Proceeds from restricted stock grs 3 23€ - - 23¢
Common dividends declared, $0.27 per sl - - - (277,309 (277,309
Balance, September 30, 20 $ 10,27 $ 3,604,790 $ 1,00145 $ (1,049,21) $  3,567,29
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,27 $ 3,605,224 $ 990,80 $ (1,274,80) $  3,331,51
Net income - - - 582,71 582,71
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, ni - - 63,99t - 63,99t
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet
income (loss) for other-than-

temporary credit impairment loss - - 8,871 - 8,871
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggams)
included in net income (los - - (70,81 - (70,81
Reclassification adjustment for gain on deconstitida
included in net incom - - (47,84¢) - (47,84¢)
Proceeds from restricted stock gre 1 16& - - 16€
Common dividends declared, $0.27 per sl - - - (277,370 (277,370)
Balance, September 30, 20 $ 10,27: $ 3,605,440 $ 945,00t $ (969,459 $  3,591,22i

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in thousand:

For the Nine Months Ende

September 3l

September 3

2014 2013

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss $ 582,71 $ 290,37!
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigem by (used in) operating activitie
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountsfpiums, ne (51,289 (56,217
Amortization of deferred financing cos 1,67 5,21¢
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disetsipremiums, ne 7,78: 8,96¢
Net unrealized losses (gains) on derivati 11,72( (18,607
Net realized losses (gains) on option contractiesk 1,24¢ -
Proceeds (payments) for derivative sales and sedtiés (1,076 -
Margin (paid) received on derivativ (111,909 -
Net unrealized losses (gains) on financial instmitmat fair value (183,72) 41,86:
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investr (68,145 (72,939
Gain on deconsolidatic (47,846 -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 8,871 22,61¢
Loss on extinguishment of securitized d 2,18¢ -
Provision for loan losses, n (112 (1,349
Equity-based compensation expe! 16¢ 23¢
Changes in operating asse

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivabét (39,699 2,14¢

Decrease (increase) in other as (9,92)) (617)

Decrease (increase) in other assets of consetiddEs 15,39¢ -
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable andl@h#ities (1,199 2,07¢

Increase (decrease) in investment managemenafebexpenses payable to affili 2,88: (81¢)

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payadt 35,64¢ (3,699
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 155,38: 219,25!
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Agency RMBS portfolio

Purchase (7,456,07) (1,377,38i)

Sales 1,910,38! 437,441

Principal payment 267,80¢ 424,42(
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio

Purchase (316,729 (219,799

Sales 299,80 189,92

Principal payment 31,60¢ 6,41¢
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VI

Sales 211,16 -

Principal payment 214,63: 372,50:
Securitized loans held for investme

Principal payment 139,80¢ 462,92(
Acquisition of securities in consolidated VI (774,35() -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ (5471,93) 296,44!
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 17,795,61 5,589,71!

Payments on repurchase agreem (11,616,00) (5,528,41)

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, talidized by loans held for investme 128,17: -

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, calidited by loans held for investme (144,18) (456,23))

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, caigdized by No-Agency RMBS (144,13) (339,13

Repurchase of securitized debt borrowings, taifdized by No-Agency RMBS (56,077) -

Common dividends pa (482,81) (277,300
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ 5,480,57 (1,011,36)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 164,01 (495,667)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 77,62¢ 621,15.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 241.64. $ 125,49:
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest receive $ 353,82 $ 329,65:




Interest paic $ 36,887 $ 70,03t

Management fees and expenses paid to aff $ 18,99 $ 20,33t
Non-cash investing activities:

Receivable for investments st $ - 3 197,55

Payable for investments purcha $ 848,13. $ 4,81(

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for sale securitie $ (45,79) $ 11,51¢

Transfer out of Nc-Agency RMBS Transferred iconsolidated VIE: $ (54,910 $ -

Transfer into No-Agency RMBS $ 54,91¢ $ s
Acquisition of securities in consolidated VIEs

Securitized loans held for investment, at failue $ 4,722,820 $ -

Other assets of consolidated V $ 84,83( $ s

Securitized debt at fair vali $ 4,033,30- $ -
Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet ¢ $ 92,46. $ 92,44(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) weganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Compgamymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial puibffering. The Company elected to be taxed esahestate investment tru“REIT”)
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendddegulations promulgated thereunder (the “Qodehe Company formed the
following wholly-owned qualified REIT subsidiarie€himera Securities Holdings, LLC in July 2008;iiGéra Asset Holding LLC and
Chimera Holding LLC in June 2009; and Chimera Sgddblding LLC in January 2010 which is a whobiyrned subsidiary of Chimera As
Holding LLC. In July 2010, the Company formed Clivading Company LLC, a wholly-owned taxable REIDsidiary (“TRS"). In
October 2013, the Company formed Chimera Fundin§ TRC, which is a wholly-owned TRS.

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns apximately 4.4% of the Company’s common sharesf &eptember 30, 2014. The
Company is managed by Fixed Income Discount Adyi€ismpany (“FIDAC"), an investment advisor registmwith the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). FIDAC is a wholly-as¢hsubsidiary of Annaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemamdisrelated notes of the Company have been prepaeetordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United St&18&AP"). In the opinion of management, all adjustmts considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the Company's financial positi@suits of operations and cash flows have beendedu These statements should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial stataemseand notes thereto included in the Annual Repofform 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013. Certain prior year amounts baea reclassified to conform to the current yearésentation.

The consolidated financial statements include, oaresolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, tbeuats of its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
and variable interest entities (“VIES”) in whichet@ompany is the primary beneficiary. All intercany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

The Company uses securitization trusts considerée tVIEs in its securitization and re-securitiaatiransactions. VIEs are defined as
entities in which equity investors (i) do not hakie characteristics of a controlling financial ietst, and/or (ii) do not have sufficient equity at
risk for the entity to finance its activities witlioadditional subordinated financial support frothes parties. The entity that consolidates a
VIE is known as its primary beneficiary, and is gelly the entity with (i) the power to direct thetivities that most significantly impact the
VIESs' economic performance, and (ii) the right ézeive benefits from the VIE or the obligation bsarb losses of the VIE that could be
significant to the VIE. For VIEs that do not haughstantial orgoing activities, the power to direct the acti\stibat most significantly impa
the VIES’ economic performance may be determinedrbgntity’s involvement with the design and stouetof the VIE.

The trusts are structured as pass through entité#égseceive principal and interest on the undegydollateral and distribute those payments to
the certificate holders. The assets held by tharg&ation entities are restricted in that theyonly be used to fulfill the obligations of the
securitization entity. The Company’s risks asseciavith its involvement with these VIEs are lintitio its risks and rights as a certificate
holder of the bonds it has retained. There haea In® recent changes to the nature of risks asedaidgth the Company’s involvement with
VIEs.




Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE reasrsignificant judgment. The Company determined fibr the securitizations it
consolidates, its ownership of substantially ablandlinate interests provided the Company with thiegation to absorb losses and/or the right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could be figant to the VIE. In addition, the Company isnstdered to have the power to direct the
activities of the VIEs that most significantly ingtdahe VIES' economic performance (“power”) or fiempany was determined to have
power in connection with its involvement with therpose and design of the VIE.

The Company’s interest in the assets held by theseritization vehicles, which are consolidatedrenCompany’s Statements of Financial
Condition, is restricted by the structural provis®f these entities, and a recovery of the Comgainyestment in the vehicles will be limit

by each entity’s distribution provisions. The liliti#s of the securitization vehicles, which aremtonsolidated on the Company’s Statements
of Financial Condition, are non-recourse to the @any, and can generally only be satisfied from estiuritization vehicla respective ass
pool.

The securitization entities are comprised of sediasses of residential mortgage backed secu(if®dBS”) and residential mortgage
loans. See Notes 3, 4 and 8 for further discussidhe characteristics of the securities and loatke Company'’s portfolio.

(b) Statements of Financial Condition Presentation

The Company’s Consolidated Statements of Fina@maldition separately present: (i) the Company’satiassets and liabilities, and (ii) the
assets and liabilities of consolidated securittratiehicles. Assets of each consolidated VIE cdy lo@ used to satisfy the obligations of that
VIE, and the liabilities of consolidated VIEs arenarecourse to the Company. The Company is nagatield to provide, nor does it intend to
provide, any financial support to these consolidaecuritization vehicles.

The Company has aggregated all the assets anlitigsbdf the consolidated securitization vehialie® to the determination that these entities
are substantively similar and therefore a furttisaggregated presentation would not be more mefuirighe notes to the consolidated
financial statements describe the Company’s daeséts and liabilities and the assets and liaslibf consolidated securitization

vehicles. See Note 8 for additional informatiolated to the Company’s investments in consolidatazliritization vehicles.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handashddeposited overnight in money market fundschvare not bank deposits and are not
insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Inser@&orporation. There were no restrictions on easghcash equivalents at September 30,
2014 and December 31, 2013.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Residential Mortgage-Baeld Securities

The Company invests in RMBS representing interiesbbligations backed by pools of mortgage loafke Company delineates between
Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS as follows: AgeRIMIBS are mortgage pa#isrough certificates, collateralized mortgage dditiigns
(“*CMOs"), and other RMBS representing interestsiirobligations backed by pools of mortgage loasséds or guaranteed by agencies of the
U.S. Government, such as Ginnie Mae, or federdifyrtered corporations such as Freddie Mac or Faviagewhere principal and interest
repayments are guaranteed by the respective agétioy U.S. Government or federally chartered cafion. Non-Agency RMBS are not
issued or guaranteed by a U.S. Government Agenother institution and are subject to credit rigkepayment of principal and interest on
Non-Agency RMBS is subject to the performance of ttetgage loans or RMBS collateralizing the obligatio

The Company classifies its RMBS as availabledale, records investments at estimated fair vaduwteacribed in Note 5 of these consolid
financial statements, and includes unrealized gamuslosses considered to be temporary on all RMBS8uding interest-only (“lO”¥trips, ir
Other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consaiti&tatements of Operations and Comprehensive l€bass). 10 strips are recorded at
estimated fair value and all unrealized gains asdds are included in earnings in the Consolidatattments of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss). From time to timegaas of the overall management of its portfollee Company may sell any of its RMBS
investments and recognize a realized gain or lsss@mponent of earnings in the Consolidated &tiés of Operations and Comprehen:
Income (Loss) utilizing the average cost method.




The Company’s accounting policy for interest incamne impairment related to its RMBS is as follows:

Interest Income Recognition

The recognition of interest income on RMBS seacesittaries depending on the characteristics ofeberity as follows:
Agency RMBS and No-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBcAunting Standards Codification (“ASC") 310-2mnrefundable Fees and Other
Costs(*ASC 310-20") is applied to the recognition ofénest income for the following securities:

° Agency RMBS
° Non-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following condiis at the acquisition date (referred to hereafsetNonAgency
RMBS of High Credit Qualit”):

1. Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized dcredliing agency. The Company uses the lowestgaiailable

2. The Company expects to collect all of the sec’s contractual cash flow

3. The security cannot be contractually prepaid suat the Company would not recover substantiallyodlits
recorded investmen

Under ASC 310-20, interest income, including premswand discounts associated with the acquisitidhexe securities, is recognized over
the life of such securities using the interest radthased on the contractual cash flows of the #gcuin applying the interest method, the
Company considers estimates of future principgb@yenents in the calculation of the constant eféecyield. Differences that arise between
previously anticipated prepayments and actual yrepats received, as well as changes in future grepat assumptions, result in a
recalculation of the effective yield on the segudh a quarterly basis. This recalculation reslthe recognition of an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the security based on the reMBsepayment assumptions and a corresponding se@adecrease in reported interest
income.

Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS that are purchased at a discount aatdhtie not of high credit quality at the time ofghase are accounted for under A
310-30,Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@¥edit Quality(*ASC 310-30") or ASC 325-4Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial AssefsASC 325-40") (referred to hereafter as “Non-AggmMBS Not of High Credit Quality”).

Non-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-3beffollowing conditions are met as of the acqigsidate:

1. There is evidence of deterioration in credit qyatit the security from its inceptio
2. ltis probable that the Company will be unableatiect all contractual cash flows of the secur

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASKD-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if atttguisition date:
1. The security is not of high credit quality (definasl rated below AA or is unrated),

2. The security can contractually be prepaid or otieawgettled in such a way that the Company woutdewover substantially all
its recorded investmer




Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Gréuality is recognized using the interest metbaded on management’s estimates
of cash flows expected to be collected. The effedtiterest rate on these securities is based oagemens estimate for each security of 1
projected cash flows, which are estimated baseabservation of current market information and ideassumptions related to fluctuations
in prepayment speeds and the timing and amouneditdosses. Quarterly, the Company reviews drappropriate, makes adjustments to its
cash flow projections based on inputs and analygeEsved from external sources, internal modeld,thke Company’s judgments about
prepayment rates, the timing and amount of credids, and other factors. Changes in the amoufuarairding of cash flows from those
originally projected, or from those estimated &t ldist evaluation date, are considered to be githstive changes or adverse changes. For
securities accounted for under ASC 325-40, anytipesbr adverse change in cash flows that doesasuit in the recognition of an other-
than-temporary impairment (“OTTI") results in a ppective increase or decrease in the effectivedsteate used to recognize interest
income. For securities accounted for under ASC 31,0snly significant positive changes are refleqgieaspectively in the effective interest
rate used to recognize interest income. Adversegds in cash flows expected to be collected arerghy treated consistently for RMBS
accounted for under ASC 325-40 and ASC 310-30,gametrally result in recognition of an OTTI with albange in the effective interest rate
used to recognize interest income.

Impairment
Considerations Applicable to all RMBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale RMB3eiss than its amortized cost the security isidensd impaired. On at least a quarterly
basis the Company evaluates its securities for OTflthe Company intends to sell an impaired sigguor it is more-likely-than-not that the
Company will be required to sell an impaired sagurefore its anticipated recovery, then the Comypanst recognize an OTTI through a
charge to earnings equal to the entire differerte/den the investment’s amortized cost and itsvite at the measurement date. If the
Company does not intend to sell an impaired sgcarit it is not more-likely-than-not that it woude required to sell an impaired security
before recovery, the Company must further evaltraesecurity for impairment due to credit lossd® Tredit component of OTTI is
recognized in earnings and the remaining or nodiccemponent is recorded as a component of Othpecehensive income (loss) (“OCI”).
Following the recognition of an OTTI through eaigsna new amortized cost basis is establishedhéosécurity and subsequent recoveries in
fair value may not be adjusted through earnings.

When evaluating whether the Company intends toaseiinpaired security or will more-likely-tharet be required to sell an impaired sect
before recovery, the Company makes judgments threider among other things, its liquidity, leveragentractual obligations, and targeted
investment strategy to determine its intent anditglto hold the investments that are deemed ingghirThe determination as to whether an
OTTI exists is subjective as such determinatioesbased on factual information available at theetohassessment as well as the Company’s
estimates of future conditions. As a result, takednination of OTTI and its timing and amount@séd on estimates that may change
materially over time.

The Company’s estimate of the amount and timingash flows for its RMBS is based on its reviewh# tinderlying securities or mortgage
loans securing the RMBS. The Company consideterigal information available and expected futuegfprmance of the underlying
securities or mortgage loans, including timing xjpected future cash flows, prepayment rates, defatds, loss severities, delinquency rates,
percentage of non-performing loans, extent of ¢r=afpport available, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FIG®&Cores at loan origination, year of
origination, loan-to-value ratios, geographic corications, as well as reports by credit rating &g such as Moody’s Investors Service,
Inc., Standard & Poor’s Rating Services or FitchifRgs, Inc., general market assessments and diablaiih market participants. As a result,
substantial judgment is used in the Company’s amatp determine the expected cash flows for itBSM

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of Higredit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS ghHiredit Quality involves comparing the presentigaf the remaining cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized cost@Eecurity at the assessment date. The discatentised to calculate the present value ¢
expected future cash flows is based on the setudffective interest rate as calculated under B3G-20 (i.e., the discount rate implicit in
the security as of the last measurement datejhelpresent value of the remaining cash flows etgokto be collected is less than the
amortized cost basis, an OTTI is recognized iniagafor the difference. This amount is considdrede the credit loss component; the
remaining difference between amortized cost andainezalue of the security is considered to bepbgion of loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (loss).




Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS Nothiigh Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASID-30 are considered other-than-temporarily ingzhwhen the following two
conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less thlhe amortized cost basis, and (2) there has beadwarse change in cash flows expected to be
collected from the last measurement date (i.e es@vchanges in either the amount or timing of fas¥s from those previously expected).

The OTTI is separated into a credit loss compoti&ttis recognized in earnings and the portioros$ recognized in other comprehensive
income (loss). The credit component is comprisetth@fimpact of the fair value decline due to charnigeassumptions related to default
(collection) risk and prepayments. The portionasfs recognized in other comprehensive income (txsprises the change in fair value of
the security due to all other factors, includingeges in benchmark interest rates and market liguith determining the OTTI related to
credit losses for securities, the Company comphepresent value of the remaining cash flows ae§lfor prepayments expected to be
collected at the current financial reporting datéhie present value of the remaining cash flowsetqul to be collected at the original
purchase date (or the last date those estimatesregised for accounting purposes). The discaatetused to calculate the present value of
expected future cash flows is the effective interate used for income recognition purposes asm@ted under ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

Following the recognition of an OTTI through eamérfor the credit component, a new amortized casishis established for the security and
subsequent recoveries in fair value may not beséeljuthrough earnings. However, to the extentttieae are subsequent increases in cash
flows expected to be collected, the OTTI previousigorded through earnings may be accreted indwdast income following the guidance in
ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

The determination of whether an OTTI exists andpifthe extent of the credit component is suliestgnificant judgment and management’
estimates of both historical information availabtehe time of assessment, the current market@mwient, as well as the Company’s
estimates of the future performance and projeatesuat and timing of cash flows expected to be ctdlé on the security. As a result, the
timing and amount of OTTI constitutes an accounésgimate that may change materially over time.

(e) Interest-Only RMBS

The Company invests in IO Agency and Non-Agency Farips (“IO RMBS strips”). 10 RMBS strips repess the Company’s right to
receive a specified proportion of the contractntdriest flows of the collateral. The Company haanted for IO RMBS strips at fair value
with changes in fair value recognized in the Conym@onsolidated Statements of Operations and Cehgmsive Income (Loss). The
Company has elected the fair value option to accfmuiO RMBS strips to simplify the reporting dfi@nges in fair value. The 10 RMBS
strips are included in RMBS, at fair value, on #iteompanying Consolidated Statements of Finan@ab@ion. Interest income on 10
RMBS strips is accrued based on the outstandinigmadtbalance and the security’s contractual teand,amortization of any premium is
calculated in accordance with ASC 325-40. Changéaii value are presented in Net unrealized gdosses) on financial instruments at fair
value on the Consolidated Statement of OperatiodsComprehensive Income (Loss). Included in Mgency RMBS transferred to VIEs,
fair value on the Consolidated Statements of Firm@ondition are I0 RMBS strips carried at faitwawith changes in fair value reflected
in earnings of $6 million and $12 million as of $&pber 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. Interestrie reported on IO securities was $9
million and $13 million for the quarters ended Sepber 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Interestnte reported on 10 securities was $27
million and $23 million for the nine months endezb&mber 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.




(f) Securitized Loans Held for Investment, at costand Related Allowance for Loan Losses

A portion of the securitized loan portfolio whichdarried at amortized cost is comprised primanilgon-conforming, single family, owner
occupied, jumbo, prime loans that are not guararaseo repayment of principal or interest. Thesmuritized loans are serviced and may be
modified, in the event of a default, by a third{gaservicer. The Company generally has the akititgpprove certain loan modifications and
determine the course of action to be taken adata®to certain loans in default, including whethienot to proceed with foreclosure. These
mortgage loans are designated as held for investraead are carried at their principal balance emiding, plus any premiums, less discounts
and allowances for loan losses. Interest incomkams held for investment is recognized over tgeeted life of the loans using the interest
method. Nonrefundable fees and costs relatedqoirieg the Company’s securitized residential mageg loans are recognized as expenses
over the life of the associated debt using the@stemethod of amortization. Income recognitioauspended for loans when, based on
information from the servicer, a full recovery oferest or principal becomes doubtful.

The Company’s general reserve is based on histdoigsrates for pools of loans with similar crezhfaracteristics, adjusted for current trends
and market conditions, including current trenddétinquencies and severities. The Company hablestad a specific reserve that reflects
consideration of loans more than 60 days delinqueans in foreclosure and borrowers that haveadedlbankruptcy. The loan loss
provision related to these loans is measured aditfegence between the unpaid principal balanaktha estimated fair value of the property
securing the mortgage, less estimated costs to Elé specific reserve also reflects consideratforoncessions granted to borrowers by the
servicer in the form of modifications (i.e., redoots). Loan loss provisions related to these nicatibns are based on the contractual
principal and interest payments, post-modificatdiscounted at the loan’s original effective intgnate. Loans with specific reserves are
individually evaluated for impairment. Loan moddtions made by the servicer are evaluated tordeterif they constitute troubled debt
restructurings (“TDRs”"). A restructuring of a loaonstitutes a TDR if the servicer, for economidegjal reasons related to the borrower's
financial difficulties, grants a concession to bmerower that it would not otherwise consider. linpent of modified loans considered to be
TDRs is measured based on the present value ot&peash flows discounted at the loan’s effedtiterest rate at inception. If the present
value of expected cash flows is less than the dazbinvestment in the loan, an allowance for l@msés is recognized with a corresponding
charge to the provision for loan losses. Impairntératll other loans individually evaluated is measlas the difference between the unpaid
principal balance and the estimated fair valuéhefdollateral, less estimated costs to sell. To@@any charges off the corresponding loan
allowance and related principal balance when thé® reports a realized loss. A complete disarssif securitized loans held for
investment is included in Note 4 to these constdiddinancial statements.

The Company estimates the fair value of securitieads as described in Note 5 of these consolidatadcial statements.
(g) Securitized Loans Held for Investment, at faivalue

A portion of the securitized loan portfolio whichdarried at fair value is comprised primarily edsoned sub-prime residential mortgage
loans with a weighted average FICO score of 62%aaadot guaranteed as to repayment of principaiterest. These securitized loans are
serviced and may be modified, in the event of defay a third-party servicer. The Company gerlgraas the ability to approve certain loan
modifications and determine the course of actiobetdaken as it relates to certain loans in defandtuding whether or not to proceed with
foreclosure. The Company has elected the fairevaption at acquisition for these seasoned subeprasidential mortgage loans; therefore,
they are carried at fair value with changes in ¥aiue recorded as Net unrealized gains (lossefhancial instruments at fair value on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compseleincome. The Company has also elected fairevaption for the related financing
for these seasoned sub-prime residential mortgeges] The Company elected fair value option amif resecuritize these loans in the
future. Additionally, the fair value option allove®th the loans and related financing to be coesibt reported and to achieve operational
simplifications. The Company recognizes interasbme on these loans held for investment overtpeaed life of the loans using the
interest method. Interest is accrued on the s&ediloans when due. Interest which is not rezgtiat the due date is written off when it
becomes delinquent.

The Company estimates the fair value of securitieads as described in Note 5 of these consolidatadcial statements.

Real estate owned (“REQO”) represents propertieshvtiie Company has received the legal title oftteperty to satisfy the outstanding

loan. REO is re-categorized from loan to REO wtienCompany takes legal title of the property. R&SSets are measured and reported at
the estimated fair value less the estimated costlitat the end of each reporting period. Attthee the asset is re-categorized, any difference
between the previously recorded loan balance dpgdoan loss reserves, and the carrying valubeREQO at the time the Company takes
legal title of the property, is recognized as &loAll REO assets of the Company are held-for-aatbit is the Compang’intention to sell th
property in the shortest time possible to maxintliegr return and recovery on the previously recdridan. Total REO assets at September
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is $6 million and#flon, respectively and is recorded in othereas®f consolidated VIEs on the
Company’s consolidated statements of financial tanrd
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(h) Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a signifiqgortion of its mortgagbacked securities with repurchase agreements. dhg@ny ha
evaluated each agreement and has determined tdtabEthe repurchase agreements be accounted smcased borrowings. None of the
Company’s repurchase agreements are accounted émnaponents of linked transactions. As a resudtGompany separately accounts for
the financial assets posted as collateral andeckl@purchase agreements in the accompanying adeisal financial statements.

(i) Securitized Debt, collateralized by Non-AgenciRMBS Transferred to Consolidated VIES, Securitizedebt, collateralized by loans
held for investment, and Securitized debt at fair glue, collateralized by loans held at fair value

The Company has issued securitized debt collatedlby “Non-Agency RMBS” and securitized debt deltalized by loans held for
investment. The loans held for investment incltjdenbo, prime residential mortgage loans” and aasmed sub-prime portfolio of
residential mortgage loans” acquired during thedtiquarter of 2014. The jumbo, prime residentiattgage loans and the related securitized
debt are carried at amortized cost. The seasaregrime portfolio of residential mortgage loang@iced during the third quarter of 2014
and the related securitized debt are carried atvéiie with changes in fair value reflected inndags. Each of these three groups of
securitized debt are discussed in further detddvbas well as Note 7 to these consolidated firgratatements.

Certain transactions involving residential mortgbagns are accounted for as secured borrowingsaencecorded as Securitized loans held
for investment and the corresponding debt as Semdidebt, collateralized by loans held for invasit in the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition. These securitizations ardéatetalized by residential adjustable or fixed mna@rtgage loans that have been placed in a
trust and pay interest and principal to the deltddrs of that securitization.

Certain re-securitization transactions classifieacuritized debt, collateralized by Non-AgencyB®#teflect the transfer to a trust of fixed
or adjustable rate RMBS which are classified as-Ngancy RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs thet mterest and principal to the di
holders of that re-securitization. Re-securitizatiransactions completed by the Company that didjnalify as sales are accounted for as
secured borrowings. The associated securitizetlisielarried at amortized cost.

The Company has elected the fair value option éorain of the Company’s securitized debt usedrarfce the seasoned sub-prime portfolio
of residential mortgage loans. The Company hagezddair value option for these financing obligasaas it expects to refinance this debt in
the future. Additionally, the fair value optiori@ks both the loans and related financing to besistantly reported and to achieve operational
simplifications. Debt for which the Company didt etect the fair value option is carried at amatizost. Changes in fair value for
securitized debt carried at fair value is recordedNet unrealized gains (losses) on financial umsénts at fair value on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Inconterest expense on all securitized debt is resmbid earnings with premiums and
discounts amortized using the interest method.s Besociated with the debt held at amortized aestlao amortized using the interest
method.

The Company estimates the fair value of its seicedtdebt as described in Note 5 to these condetidinancial statements.
(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to estimate the fair value of itaficial instruments is included in Note 5
to these consolidated financial statements.
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(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s investment policies permit it to eiméo derivative contracts, including interesteratvaps, interest rate caps, options, and
futures as a means of managing its interest rsiteas well as to enhance investment returns. Timep@oy’s derivatives are recorded as either
assets or liabilities in the Consolidated Statemehfinancial Condition and measured at fair vallieese derivative financial instrument
contracts are not designated as hedges for GAASefibre, all changes in fair value are recognipeghirnings. The Company estimates the
fair value of its derivative instruments as desadlilin Note 5 of these consolidated financial statgism Net payments on derivative
instruments are included in the Consolidated Statgsnof Cash Flows as a component of net inconss)(loUnrealized gains (losses) on
derivatives are removed from net income (lossytivaat cash flows from operating activities.

The Company elects to net by counterparty thevidine of its derivative contracts when appropriakbese contracts contain legally
enforceable provisions that allow for netting attisg off of all individual swaps receivables araypbles with each counterparty and,
therefore, the fair value of those swap contraseported net by counterparty. The credit supganex provisions of the Company’s
interest rate swap contracts allow the partiesitmate their credit risk by requiring the party it is in a net payable position to post
collateral. As the Company elects to net by coyrary the fair value of interest rate swap consgittalso nets by counterparty any cash
collateral exchanged as part of the interest rapcontracts.

() Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionafich it sells financial assets, such as RMB#, mortgage loans. Gains and losses on
sales of assets are calculated using the averagjenethod whereby the Company records a gain erdoghe difference between the average
amortized cost of the asset and the proceeds freradle. In addition, the Company from time toetisecuritizes or re-securitizes assets and
sells tranches in the newly securitized asset&sé& transactions may be recorded as either saldb@assets contributed to the securitization
are removed from the Consolidated Statements @frigial Condition and a gain or loss is recognipeds secured borrowings whereby the
assets contributed to the securitization are natadgnized but rather the debt issued by the demaiidn entity are recorded to reflect the
term financing of the assets. In these securitinatand re-securitizations, the Company may retamor or subordinated interests in the
securitized and/or re-securitized assets.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REITnémadds to comply with the provision of the Codethwespect thereto. Accordingly, the
Company will not be subject to federal, state aaloncome tax to the extent that qualifying distitions are made to stockholders and as
as certain asset, income, distribution and stoakesship tests are met. If the Company failed tdifyuas a REIT and did not qualify for
certain statutory relief provisions, the Companyulgdbe subject to federal, state and local incaemesg and may be precluded from qualify
as a REIT for the subsequent four taxable yealswalg the year in which the REIT qualification wlast. The Company, CIM Trading and
CIM Funding TRS made joint elections to treat Clk&ding and CIM Funding TRS as TRS’s. As such, Cltdding and CIM Funding TRS
are taxable as domestic C corporations and sutojdetieral, state, and local income taxes based thgar respective taxable income.

A tax position is recognized only when, based omagament’s judgment regarding the application ofime tax laws, it is more likely than
not that the tax position will be sustained upoareination. The Company does not have any unrezedriax benefits that would affect its
financial position or require disclosure. No a@tsufor penalties and interest were necessary 8emember 30, 2014 or December 31, 2013.
(n) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shadévltling net income for the period by the basiighted-average shares of its common

stock outstanding for that period. Diluted netome per share takes into account the effect ofiddunstruments such as unvested restricted
stock.
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(o) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDA&fdiates at the fair value of
the stock-based compensation provided. The Compezagures the fair value of the equity instrumeirigithe stock prices and other
measurement assumptions as of the earlier of dhieetate at which a performance commitment byédhiient is reached or the date at
which the recipient’s performance is complete. Btmampensation expense related to the grants ok &aecognized over the vesting period
of such grants based on the fair value of the stoc&ach quarterly vesting date, at which the fenifs performance is complete.

Compensation expense for equity based awards grémtee Company’s independent directors is reaaghpro-rata over the vesting period
of such awards, based upon the fair value of suchrds at the grant date.

(p) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. Although the Compasigstimates contemplate current conditions
how it expects them to change in the future, ie@sonably possible that actual conditions coulthbeerially different than anticipated in
those estimates, which could have a material agvierpact on the Company’s results of operationsi@nfihancial condition. Management
has made significant estimates in accounting foonme recognition and OTTI on Agency and Non-AgeR&BS and IO RMBS (Note 3),
valuation of Agency and Non-Agency RMBS (Notes 8 &i) residential mortgage loans (Note 4), seaitidebt (Note 7) and derivative
instruments (Notes 5 and 9). Actual results califiér materially from those estimates.

(q) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Broad Transactions

Receivables-Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subt&di6-40)

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014R®tlassification of Residential Real Estate Cotldteed Consumer Mortgage Loans
Upon Foreclosure This update clarifies when the Company is caergid to have obtained physical possession, from-anbstance
possession or foreclosure, of a residential rdateproperty collateralizing a mortgage loan. r€air guidance indicates that the Company
should reclassify a collateralized mortgage loazhdhat the loan should be derecognized and thater! asset recognized when it
determines that there has been an in-substancesesgsion or foreclosure by the Company. This epdefines the ternm substance
repossession or foreclosute reduce diversity in interpretation of when sachevent occurs. The guidance in this updateféstafe for the
Company beginning January 1, 2015. The Compaayadhiating the impact of this update.

Transfers and Servicing (Subtopic 860)

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014Rdpurchase-to-Maturity Transactions, Repurchasaéings, and DisclosuresThis

update makes limited amendments to the guidanA&( 860 on accounting for certain repurchase ageeésn The ASU requires entities to
account for repurchase-to-maturity transactionseasired borrowings, rather than as sales with fahwepurchase agreements. The ASU
defines a repurchase-to-maturity transaction &pa that (1) settles at the maturity of the trametkfinancial asset and (2) does not require
the transferor to reacquire the transferred fir@rasset. In addition, the ASU eliminates accmgnguidance on linked repurchase financing
transactions. The ASU also expands disclosurenements related to certain transfers of finanagsdets that are accounted for as sales and
certain transfers accounted for as secured borgswiThe guidance in this update will be effecfmethe Company beginning January 1,
2015, except for the disclosure requirements fmmgactions accounted for as secured borrowingshvare required to be presented by the
Company in the second quarter of 2015. As of Sepéz 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Compaey miat have any repurchase-to-
maturity transactions or any linked repurchaserfiirgg transactions, therefore, the Company expkatghis standard will impact disclosures
only and will not have a significant impact on twnsolidated financial statements of the Company.
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Consolidations (Subtopic 810)

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 20144i8asuring the Financial Assets and the Financialtilities of a Consolidated
Collateralized Financing Entity This update provides a measurement alternativednsolidated qualifying collateralized financiegtities
(CFEs). The update defines a CFE as a varialdegsit entity that holds financial assets, issuesfii@al interests in those assets and has no
more than nominal equity. The beneficial interdstge contractual recourse only to the related sisgehe CFE and are classified as financial
liabilities. Under the alternative, the Company ne¢sct to measure both the CFE’s financial assedgiaancial liabilities using the fair value
of either the CFEs financial assets or financial liabilities, whieke is more observable. The guidance is aimedmatredting the measureme
difference that sometimes arises when a CFE’s fiimhassets and financial liabilities are indeperityemeasured at fair value, as required by
ASC 820. This update is effective for the Comphaginning January 1, 2016. Early adoption is pgeaiiat the beginning of 2015. The
guidance provides an exception for reporting esttitvhose consolidated CFEs don’t meet the scopireegents because the entities didn't
elect the fair value option when they initially smtidated the CFEs. The guidance allows them tct,edmly at the date of adoption, to apply
the measurement alternative to the CFEs’ finaragakts and financial liabilities or continue apmlyother US GAAP. The Company is
evaluating the impact of this update.

Presentation of Financial Statemer{Soing Concern (Subtopic 208)

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Atyilio Continue as a Going

Concern. This update provides guidance on determiningnadred how to disclose going-concern uncertaintig¢be financial statements.
The new standard requires the Company to perfotanim and annual assessments of its ability toinaatas a going concern within one y

of the date the financial statements are issued.ddmpany must provide certain disclosures if ciion or events raise substantial doubt
about its ability to continue as a going concetme ASU applies to all entities and is effective tfee Company beginning January 1,

2017. Early adoption is permitted. The Compangsdaot expect this update to have any impact adowet expect to have the conditions or
events which would raise substantial doubt abceitbmpany’s ability to continue as a going concern.

3. Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as ges&nior 10, subordinated, subordinated 10, and-Ngency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs. The Company also invests innfsgeRMBS. Senior interests in Non-Agency RMBS ewasidered to be entitled to the
first principal repayments in their pro-rata owrgpsinterests at the reporting date. The total\alue of the Non-Agency RMBS that are

held by consolidated re-securitization trusts wa$ $illion and $3.0 billion at September 30, 2@h4 December 31, 2013, respectively. See
Note 8 of these consolidated financial statemeottéurther discussion of consolidated VI

The following tables present the principal or notibvalue, total premium, total discount, amortizedt, fair value, gross unrealized gains,

gross unrealized losses, and net unrealized gzss)(felated to the Company’s available-for-saleB\portfolio as of September 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013, by asset class.
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September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Principal or Gross Gross Net
Notional Total Total Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Value Premium Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses Gain/(Loss)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 312,61¢ - (98,669 $ 213,95( $ 239,93: 26,53¢ (550 $ 25,98
Senior, intere-only 5,383,45. 239,04 - 239,04 207,84( 13,90¢ (45,117 (31,207
Subordinate 689,33: - (352,85¢) 336,47t 439,96 103,98t (497) 103,49:
Subordinated, intere-only 218,52 9,851 - 9,851 7,34( 207 (2,729 (2,519
RMBS transferred t
consolidated VIE: 3,226,29: 3,67¢ (1,447,74) 1,737,81! 2,528,33! 790,52! - 790,52!
Agency RMBS
Pas-through 7,553,61. 374,45¢ (22) 7,928,04! 7,955,80! 59,68¢ (31,929 27,75¢
Interes-only 2,016,71 117,11. - 117,11 114,16¢ 63¢ (3,581 (2,942)
Total $ 19,40056 $ 744,14 $ (1,899,29) $ 10,582,30 $ 11,493,39 $ 99548: $ (84,39) $ 911,09(

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Principal or Gross Gross Net
Notional Total Total Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Value Premium Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses Gain/(Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 128,21 $ - 8 (39,39) $ 88,82: $ 89,687 $ 974 % (109 $ 86E
Senior, intere-only 5,742,78 283,27: - 283,27: 229,06! 11,80: (66,009) (54,20¢)
Subordinater 830,63: - (490,40() 340,23: 457,56¢ 119,23: (1,89¢) 117,33
Subordinated, intere-only 274,46 14,66¢ - 14,66¢ 16,57 2,48: (57¢) 1,90¢
RMBS transferred t
consolidated VIE: 3,912,371 7,49( (1,763,40) 2,075,62! 2,981,57 905,94 - 905,94
Agency RMBS
Pas-through 1,898,13 90,84: (5,009 1,983,97 1,954,79i 22,32( (51,499 (29,179
Interes-only 247,34« 43,76¢ - 43,76¢ 42,78 332 (1,316 (984)
Total $ 13,033,94 $ 440,03¢ $ (2,298,20) $ 4,830,350 $ 5,772,04 $ 1,063,088 $ (121,40) $ 941,68¢

The table below presents changes in AccretablaedY@lthe excess of the security’s cash flows etgueto be collected over the Company’s
investment, solely as it pertains to the Compahiga-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted for accordinghe provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter Ende For the Nine Months Ende
September 3(  September 3( September 3( September 3(
2014 2013 2014 2013
(dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousand:
Balance at beginning of peric $ 1,630,155 $ 1,921,688 $ 1,794571 $ 2,107,38
Purchase 66,24¢ - 105,81« -
Accretion (72,66%) (80,50:) (223,119 (249,43)
Reclassification (to) from n«accretable differenc 4,94¢ (18,496 44,32¢ (6,83))
Sales and deconsolidati (106,80) - (199,716 (28,43%)
Balance at end of peric $ 152188 $ 182269 $ 152188 $ 1,822,69

The table below presents the outstanding prindipince and related amortized cost at Septemb@03@, and December 31, 2013 as it
pertains to the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfalt@ounted for according to the provisions of AS0-30.

For the For the Year
Quarter Ende Ended
September 3( December 31

2014 2013
(dollars in thousands

Outstanding principal balanc

Beginning of periot $ 3,664,554 $ 4,508,47

End of perioc $ 3,401,220 $ 3,949,67
Amortized cost

Beginning of periot $ 1,891,87. $ 2,268,75.

End of perioc $ 1,809,40: $ 2,027,73

The following tables present the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the CompaRWIBS by length of time that such securi
have been in a continuous unrealized loss positi@eptember 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.eglirdies in an unrealized loss position
have been evaluated by the Company for OTTI ausgésrl in Note 2(d).
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September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position for Less than Unrealized Loss Position for 12 Months

Months More Total
Number Number Estimatec Number
Estimated Fai Unrealizec of Estimated Fai Unrealizec of Fair Unrealizec of
Value Losses Securities Value Losses Securities Value Losses Securities
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 31,46¢ $ (550) 4% - $ = - 0% 31,46¢ $ (550) 4
Senior, intere-only 28,62¢ (3,735 27 102,29: (41,377 56 130,92: (45,119 83
Subordinatec - - - 11,48 (497) 3 11,48t (497) 3
Subordinated, intere-only 4,84t (2,409 2 1,08¢ (320 2 5,92¢ (2,729 4
RMBS transferred t:
consolidated VIE: - - - - - - - - -
Agency RMBS
Pas-through 1,999,27! (5,659 38 710,93t (26,275 12 2,710,21. (31,929 50
Interes-only 80,88¢ (2,582 9 11,29¢ (999 3 92,18: (3,587 12
Total $ 2,145,100 $ (14,92%) 80 $ 837,09: $ (69,46¢) 76 $ 2,982,20. $ (84,39) 15€

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position for Less than Unrealized Loss Position for 12 Months
Months More Total
Number Number Estimated Number
Estimated Fai Unrealizec of Estimated Fai Unrealizec of Fair Unrealizec of
Value Losses Securities Value Losses Securities Value Losses Securities
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 28,16: $ (209 3% - $ = - % 28,16: $ (209 3
Senior intere-only 119,91: (35,257 54 45,167 (30,75€) 28 165,08( (66,009 82
Subordinate( - - - 17,66: (2,896 2 17,66: (2,896 2
Subordinated intere-only 1,06z (57¢) 2 - - - 1,06z (57¢) 2
RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIE: - - - - - - - - -
Agency RMBS
Pas-through 1,126,88. (51,499 30 - - - 1,126,88. (51,49¢) 30
Interes-only 22,24¢ (1,019 4 491 (29€) 3 22,737 (1,31€) 7
Total $ 1,298,26! $ (88,457) 93 $ 63,31¢ $ (32,95() 33 $ 1,361,58 $ (121,40) 12€

At September 30, 2014, the Company did not intergktl any of its RMBS that were in an unrealizesklposition, and it was not more liki
than not that the Company would be required totkebe RMBS before recovery of their amortized basis, which may be at their maturity.
With respect to RMBS held by consolidated VIEs, abdity of any entity to cause the sale by the Hor to the maturity of these RMBS is
either expressly prohibited, not probable, orrisiteéd to specified events of default, none of whielve occurred as of September 30, 2014.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Agencs-thasugh RMBS were $32 million and $51 millionSetptember 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively. Given the cradidity inherent in Agency RMBS, the Company doesaumsider any of the current
impairments on its Agency pass-through RMBS toreelit related. In evaluating whether it is mokely than not that it will be required to
sell any impaired security before its anticipatedovery, which may be at their maturity, the Conypaonsiders the significance of each
investment, the amount of impairment, the projefteare performance of such impaired securitiesyels as the Company’s current and
anticipated leverage capacity and liquidity positiBased on these analyses, the Company deterttiaedt September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, unrealized losses on its AGBMBS were temporary.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Non-AgBMBS (excluding Non-Agency RMBS IO strips whicteaccounted for under the
fair value option with changes in fair value reaxdn earnings) were $1 million and $2 million ap&mber 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively. Based upon the most recentiatiah, the Company does not consider these uneghlosses to be indicative of OTTI ¢
does not believe that these unrealized lossesedé celated, but rather are due to other factbihe Company has reviewed its Non-Agency
RMBS that are in an unrealized loss position taiife those securities with losses that are othanttemporary based on an assessment of
changes in cash flows expected to be collectedifon RMBS, which considers recent bond performanckexpected future performance of
the underlying collateral.

A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for thearters and nine months ended September 30, 2011204 3 is presented below.
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For the Quarter Ende
September 30, September 30,

2014 2013
(dollars in thousands
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: $ (726¢) $ (2,209
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigerine (loss (1,269 (14,246
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (1,990 $ (16,45%)

For the Nine Months Ende
September 30  September 30

2014 2013
(dollars in thousands
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: $ (4,939 $ (2,209
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensicgerine (loss (3,937 (20,409
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (8,87]) $ (22,61¢)

The following table presents a roll forward of #redit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Maency RMBS for which a portion «
loss was previously recognized in OCI. The talelin@ates between those securities that are rexagr®TT]I for the first time as opposed
those that have previously recognized OTTI.

For the Quarter Ende
September 3( September 3(

2014 2013
(dollars in thousands
Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 512,58. $ 498,25.
Additions:
Othe-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 1,322 15,83:
Reductions for securities sold or deconsolidaigihg the perioc (48,970 (2,919
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitson securities with previously recognized
othe-thar-temporaryimpairments 66¢ 61¢
Reductions for increases in cash flows expeddsbtcollected that a recognized over th
remaining life of the securit (68€) (4,536
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 464,91 $ 507,25:
For the Nine Months Ende
September 30  September 30
2014 2013
(dollars in thousand:
Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 524,43 $ 510,08¢
Additions:
Othe-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 8,20¢ 16,54¢
Reductions for securities sold or deconsolidalgihg the perioc (61,85 (14,039
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitson securities with previously recognized
other-thar-temporaryimpairments 66¢ 6,06¢
Reductions for increases in cash flows expeadsbtcollected over the remaining life of the
securities (6,539 (11,41°)
Cumulative credit impairment loss ending bala $ 46491 $ 507,25

Cash flows generated to determine net other-thaapdeary credit impairment losses recognized iniegmare estimated using significant
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs usechéasure the component of OTTI recognized in agenfor the Company’s Non-Agency
RMBS are summarized as follows:
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For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30,
2014 2013
Loss Severity
Weighted Averag:
Range

2%
35%- 91%

55%
41%- 75%

60+ days delinquet

Weighted Averag: 33% 23%

Range 8%- 47% 0%- 37%
Credit Enhancement (.

Weighted Averag: 10% 5%

Range 0%- 35% 0%- 48%
3 Month CPR

Weighted Averag: 8% 18%

Range 2%- 25% 0%- 42%
12 Month CPF

Weighted Averag: 10% 18%

Range 5%- 22% 9%- 35%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhancemahetRe-REMIC
and underlying from each of their respective cagitaictures

The following tables present a summary of unredligains and losses at September 30, 2014 and Dec&hp2013. 10 RMBS included in
the tables below represent the right to receiveegified proportion of the contractual interestrclisws of the underlying principal balance
specific securities. At September 30, 2014, IO RBviad a net unrealized loss of $34 million and dadmortized cost of $370 million. At
December 31, 2013, 10 RMBS had a net unrealizesidd$49 million and had an amortized cost of $848on. The fair value of 10s at
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was $B8Hnand $300 million, respectively. All changesfair value of I10s are reflected in

Net income (loss]

Gross Unrealize

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Unrealize

Gain Loss
Included in Gross Unrealized Included in
Accumulated Gain Accumulated Gross Unrealized
Other Included in Total Gross Other Loss Included in Total Gross
Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 26,53¢ $ - $ 26,53¢ $ (550 $ - $ (550
Senior, intere-only - 13,90¢ 13,90¢ - (45,117) (45,119
Subordinate: 103,98t - 103,98t (497) - (497)
Subordinated, intere-only - 207 207 - (2,729 (2,729
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 787,77! 2,75( 790,52! - - -
Agency RMBS
Pas-through 59,68t - 59,68¢ (31,929 - (31,929
Interes-only - 63¢ 63¢ - (3,581) (3,581)
Total $ 977,98. $ 17,50 $ 99548: $ (32,976 $ (51,41 $ (84,397
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Unrealizec Gross Unrealizec
Gain Loss
Included in Gross Unrealize Included in
Accumulated Gain Accumulated Gross Unrealize
Other Included in Total Gross Other Loss Included in Total Gross
Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 974 % - % 974 % (209 $ - (209
Senior, interest onl - 11,80: 11,80: - (66,009) (66,009
Subordinatet 119,23: - 119,23: (2,896 - (2,896
Subordinated, interest or - 2,48: 2,48: - (57¢) (57¢)
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 901,77: 4,17( 905,94: - - -
Agency RMBS
Pas-through 22,32( - 22,32( (51,499 - (51,499
Interes-only 2 33C 332 - (1,316) (1,316)




Total $ 1,044,30. $ 18,78 $ 106308 $ (53,499 $ (67,900 $  (121,40)

Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, andfleass expected to be collected, among other iteaares affected by the collateral
characteristics of each asset class. The portf®lioost heavily weighted to contain Non-Agency RMWBith credit risk. The Company
chooses assets for the portfolio after carefullgleating each investment’s risk profile.
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The following tables provide a summary of the Comps RMBS portfolio at September 30, 2014 and Ddoen31, 2013.

September 30, 201

Principal or
Notional Weighted
Value Weighted Average
at Periodend Average Weighted Weighted Yield
(dollars in Amortized Average Fail Average at Periodend
thousands Cost Basis Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 312,61¢ $ 68.4¢ $ 76.7¢€ 2.4% 5.5%
Senior, intere-only $ 5,38345 $ 444 $ 3.8€ 1.€% 15.2%
Subordinatec $ 689,33 $ 48.81 $ 63.8¢ 3.2% 10.5%
Subordinated, intere-only $ 21852° % 451 $ 3.3€ 0.9% 8.4%
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI $ 3,226,290 $ 546z $ 79.4¢ 4.6% 17.1%
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Pas-through $ 755361 $ 104.9¢ $ 105.3: 4.C% 3.1%
Interes-only $ 2,016,717 $ 581 $ 5.6€ 1.1% 3.7%
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
December 31, 201
Principal or
Notional Weighted
Value Weighted Average
at Periodend Average Weighted Weighted Yield
(dollars in Amortized Average Fail Average at Periodend
thousands Cost Basis Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 128,21 $ 69.27 $ 69.9: 1.4% 5.9%
Senior, interest onl $ 5742,78 $ 49: % 3.9¢ 1.4% 17.2%
Subordinatec $ 830,63: $ 40.9¢ $ 55.0¢ 2.9% 13.5%
Subordinated, interest on $ 27446 $ 53¢ % 6.04 1.7% 9.C%
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI $ 391237 $ 5417 $ 77.82 4.7% 15.8%
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Pas-through $ 1,898,113 $ 1045 $ 105.2¢ 3.6% 3.2%
Interest only $ 247,34 $ 17.6¢ $ 17.3( 3.2% 5.2%

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er

The following table presents the weighted averagditrating, based on the lowest rating availablehe Company’s Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio at September 30, 2014 and December 31320

Septembe Decembe

30, 201« 31, 201.
AAA 0.S% 0.C%
AA 0.5% 0.7%
A 0.C% 0.C%
BBB 0.4% 0.C%
BB 1.€% 1.4%
B 5.€% 4.2%
Below B or not ratet 90.7% 93.t%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemthiae stated contractual maturities. Actual méagiof the Compang’ RMBS are affecte
by the contractual lives of the underlying mortgageeriodic payments of principal and prepaymehtwiacipal. The following tables
provide a summary of the fair value and amortizest of the Company’s RMBS at September 30, 2014Dewkmber 31, 2013 according to
their estimated weighted-average life classifigaioThe weighted-average lives of the RMBS intéiides below are based on lifetime
expected prepayment rates using an industry prepatymodel for the Agency RMBS portfolio and the Qamy’s prepayment assumptions
for the Non-Agency RMBS. The prepayment model mers current yield, forward yield, steepness efititerest rate curve, current
mortgage rates, mortgage rates of the outstandang loan age, margin, and volatility.
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September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi

Greater than

one Greater thal
year and less five
Less than on than years and less Greater than te
year five years than ten year years Total
Fair value
Nor-Agency RMBSE
Seniol $ 2,591 $ 60,51 $ 170,52 % 6,30¢ $ 239,93:
Senior intere-only 641 61,27 111,80¢ 34,11¢ 207,84(
Subordinate - 49,17: 234,24¢ 156,54¢ 439,96
Subordinated intereonly - - 5,92¢ 1,411 7,34C
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - 199,60( 1,606,82: 721,90° 2,528,33!
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 7,830,53 88,42¢ 36,84¢ 7,955,80!
Interes-only - 31,79¢ 82,37 - 114,16¢
Total fair value $ 3,23 $ 8,232,888 $ 2,300,131 $ 957,13! $ 11,493,39
Amortized cos
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 250¢ $ 54,96¢ $ 154,62: $ 1,85¢ $ 213,95(
Senior intere-only 1,39t 70,86¢ 129,34t 37,44. 239,04
Subordinate - 36,70: 170,15: 129,62: 336,47t
Subordinated intere¢only - - 8,65: 1,20¢ 9,851
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - 143,03t 1,119,80 474,96 1,737,811
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 7,805,81 85,39( 36,84: 7,928,04
Interes-only - 32,000 85,10« - 117,11:
Total amortized cos $ 3,89¢ $ 8,143,39. $ 1,753,07. $ 681,93: $ 10,582,30
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi
Greater thai
one Greater thai
year and less five
Less than one than years and les:  Greater than te
year five years than ten year years Total
Fair value
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ - % 29,28! % 60,40¢ $ - $ 89,687
Senior intere-only 37¢€ 103,68t 96,96¢ 28,03: 229,06!
Subordinate 3,35¢ 63,17° 321,33 69,70( 457,56¢
Subordinated intereonly - - 14,86: 1,70¢ 16,57
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 5,72¢ 276,75. 1,986,87! 712,21t 2,981,57
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 20,37t 1,808,341 126,07! 1,954,791
Interes-only 54 63€ 42,09: - 42,78:
Total fair value $ 9,51 $ 49391, $ 4,330,88. $ 937,73 % 5,772,04
Amortized cos
Nor-Agency RMBSE
Seniol $ - % 28,90( $ 59,92 $ - $ 88,82:
Senior intere-only 1,017 131,15¢ 117,00¢ 34,08 283,27:
Subordinate 2,871 50,48 243,35( 43,522 340,23:
Subordinated intere-only - - 13,344 1,322 14,66¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 4,74, 211,92! 1,356,98. 501,97¢ 2,075,62
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 18,60¢ 1,837,61. 127,75: 1,983,97
Interes-only 122 82F 42,81¢ - 43,76¢
Total amortized cos $ 8,76( $ 441,900 $ 3,671,03" $ 708,66( $ 4,830,35!

The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to credik. The Company seeks to mitigate credit risktigh its asset selection process. The
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralizdry what the Company classifies as Alt-A first limortgages. An Alt-A mortgage is a
type of U.S. mortgage that, for various reasonspissidered riskier than paper, or prime, and less risky than subprimerittkgest category
Alt-A interest rates, which are determined by creidk, therefore tend to be between those of pame subprime home loans. Typically, Alt-
A mortgages are characterized by borrowers with flean full documentation, lower credit scores higther loan-to-value ratios. The
Company defines Alt-A mortgage securities as hoenag RMBS where (i) the underlying collateral hasghted average FICO scores
between 680 and 720 or (ii) for instances wheredr§Cores are greater than 720, RMBS have 30% sofgbe underlying collateral
composed of full documentation loans. At Septen3@er2014 and December 31, 2013, 65% and 61% dfitimeAgency RMBS collateral
was classified as Alt-A, respectively. At SeptemB@, 2014 and December 31, 2013, 24% and 28%edfltin-Agency RMBS collateral was
classified as prime, respectively.
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September 30, December 31,
2014 2013
Weighted average maturity (yea 221 24.1
Weighted average amortized loan to
value (1) 67.5% 69.4%
Weighted average FICO ( 68t 71C
Weighted average loan balance (in
thousands $ 371 $ 38t
Weighted average percentage owner
occupied 83.1% 84.(%
Weighted average percentage single
family residence 65.5% 65.4%
Weighted average current credit
enhancemer 1.€% 1.€6%
Weighted average geographic
concentration of top five stat CA 32.8% CA 33.4%
FL 8.5% FL 9.1%
NY 7.6% NY 7.1%
NJ 2.5% NJ 3.C%
MD 2.7% MD 2. 7%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the collhte the time of loan

origination.

(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan

origination.

The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the fallog collateral characteristics at September 30428hd December 31, 2013.

The table below presents the origination year efuhderlying loans related to the Company’s pddfof Non-Agency RMBS at September
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

September 3 December 3:

Origination Yeal 201¢ 201z
1999 0.2% 0.C%
2000 0.6% 0.€%
2001 2.1% 1.2%
2002 0.4% 1.C%
2003 2.€% 1.4%
2004 4.C% 3.6%
2005 20.(% 17.€%
2006 28.5% 32.2%
2007 37.&% 40.1%
2008 2.2% 2.1%
2013 0.% 0.C%
2014 0.7% 0.C%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

Gross realized gains and losses are recorded inrddézed gains (losses) on sales of investmearigthe Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Incdmhe.proceeds and gross realized gains and grakzea losses from sales of
investments for the quarters and nine months eBeptember 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

For the Quarter Ende For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
(dollars in thousands
Proceeds from sal $ 1,683,37 $ 394,36. $ 1,816,84! $ 823,92:
Gross realized gair 66,56¢ 18,81¢ 75,05¢ 72,94
Gross realized lossi (2,459 - (6,917 (3
Net realized gain (los:  $ 64,107 $ 18,81¢ $ 68,14 § 72,93¢

Included in the gross realized gains in the tableva are exchanges of securities with a fair vafuk89 million where the Company
exchanged its investment in eremic security for the underlying collateral suppuay the group related to the exchanged assetsél



exchanges were treated as non-cash sales and gesdrad resulted in a realized gain of $23 milteftected in earnings.
4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment
The Company is considered to be the primary beiagjiof VIEs formed for the purpose of securitizwbole mortgage loans. Refer to Note

8 for additional details regarding the Companyiinement with VIEs. The securitized loans heldifvestment are carried at amortized
cost or at fair value.
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Securitized loans held for investment, net of adiloge for loan losses

The prime jumbo securitized loans held for investtrfer which the Company has not elected the fain® option are carried at amortized
cost which is their principal balance outstandiplgs unamortized premiums, less unaccreted dissamt an allowance for loan losses. The
following table provides a summary of the changethe carrying value of these securitized loand Fal investment at September 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013:

For the Nine Month
Ended For the Year Ende
September 30, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Balance, beginning of peric $ 783,48: $ 1,300,13.
Purchase - -
Principal paydown (100,672 (507,68
Net periodic amortization (accretio (4,05%) (10,769)
Change to loan loss provisit 112 1,79¢
Balance, end of peric $ 678,86t $ 783,48:

The following table represents the Company’s prjumebo securitized residential mortgage loans hetdrivestment which are carried at
amortized cost at September 30, 2014 and Decenih&033:

September 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(dollars in thousand:
Securitized loans, at amortized ¢ $ 686,26¢ $ 792,54
Less: allowance for loan loss 7,40: 9,06
Securitized loans held for investme $ 678,86t $ 783,48

The securitized loan portfolio carried at amortizedt is collateralized by prime, jumbo, first lissidential mortgages of which 41% were
originated during 2012, 37% were originated du@8d 1, 7% during 2010, and the remaining 15% ofdhes were originated prior to
2010. A summary of key characteristics of thesasofollows.

September 30,
2014 December 31, 20:
Number of loan: 93C 1,05:
Weighted average maturity (yea 26.7 27.2
Weighted average loan to value 71.6% 71.1%
Weighted average FICO ( 76€ 76€
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 72t $ 737
Weighted average percentage owner occu 95.1% 94.1%
Weighted average percentage single family
residence 71.(% 70.(%
Weighted average geographic concentration «
top five state: CA 35.4% CA 34.1%
VA 5.4% VA 5.6%
NJ 5.4% NY 5.5%
MD 5.0% NJ 5.1%
NY 4.8% TX 4.€%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the collhta the time of
loan origination

(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan

origination.

The following table summarizes the changes in tlesvance for loan losses for the securitized mayggban portfolio carried at amortized
cost at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

For the Nine Month
Ended For the Year Ende
September 30, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Balance, beginning of peric $ 9,06: $ 11,62«
Provision for loan losse (112 (1,799
Chargeoffs (1,549 (762)




Balance, end of peric $ 7,407 $ 9,06:¢

The Company has established an allowance for lmssek related to jumbo prime securitized loansechat amortized cost that is composed
of a general and specific reserve. The balantieeimllowance for loan losses related to the génesarve at September 30, 2014 and

December 31, 2013 was $3 million and $4 milliospectively. The balance in the allowance for lmsses related to the specific reserve at
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was $dmahd $5 million, respectively.
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The total unpaid principal balance of impaired w#&r which the Company established a specificrueseas $23 million and $26 million at
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resplyctivhe Company’s recorded investment in impaloaahs for which there is a related
allowance for credit losses at September 30, 20#4December 31, 2013 was $17 million and $19 mmi/li@spectively. The total unpaid
principal balance of non-impaired loans for whibke Company established a general reserve was $ifdnrand $750 million at September
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Gdrapany’s recorded investment in loans that arémpaired for which there is a related
general reserve for credit losses at Septembe2@0} and December 31, 2103 was $662 million and $7ilion, respectively. Interest
income on impaired loans carried at amortized isosbt significant.

The following table summarizes the outstandinggpal balance of the jumbo prime loans carriednabiized cost which are 30 days
delinquent and greater as reported by the seratc8eptember 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days

Delinquent  Delinquent  Delinquent  Bankruptcy Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousand:
September 30, 201 $ 1,90¢ $ 0 % 550¢ $ 0 $ 381« % 47 $ 11,70:
December 31, 201 $ 99¢ $ 57C $ 2,087 $ 47 $ 7,53( $ 1,17¢  $ 12,83¢

With the exception of its ability to approve cemntédan modifications, the Company is not involveithwhe servicing or modification of the
jumbo prime loans held for investment which areiedrat amortized cost. The trustee and servit#reorespective securitization ¢
responsible for servicing and modifying these loafke Company is required to make certain asswmpin accounting for these loans due
to the limitation of information available to th@@pany. The following table presents the loansweae modified by the servicer during the
nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

Unpaid Principa Unpaid Principa Amortized Cost o Amortized Cost o
Balance of Balance of Modified Loans For Modified Loans For
Number of Loans Modified Modified Which Which
Modified During Loans (Pre- Loans (Post- Amortized Costo  There is an Allowance fc  There is No Allowance fc
Period modification) modification) Modified Loans Loan Losse: Loan Losse:

(dollars in thousand:
Nine Months Ende
September 30, 201 2 3 1,13¢ % 1,25¢ $ 1,17 $ 1,17 $ 0
September 30, 201 3 % 2,34¢  $ 2,35¢  $ 2,248 $ 2,248 $ 0

Loans are modified by the servicer as a methodsd iitigation. Based on the information availableing the quarter ended September 30,
2014, the Company determined that all loans caatexnortized cost which were modified by the smwivere considered TDRs, as defined
under GAAP. A TDR is generally any modificationafoan to a borrower that is experiencing finanditflculties, where a lender agrees to
terms that are more favorable to the borrower trarotherwise available in the current market.l@dih modifications during the quarters
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 included a fedwitthe stated interest ratetoans modified by the servicer have been indivigual
assessed for impairment and measurement of impairisibased on the excess of the recorded invesiméme loan over the present value
the expected cash flows, post modification, distediat the loan’s effective interest rate at iniwept In the absence of additional loan
modifications by the servicer in future periodstthge considered to be TDRs, the $4 million spec#serve related to TDRs as of September
30, 2014 will be recognized in net income in futpegiods by way of a decrease in the provisioridan losses. If there are further
modifications, the reduction of the cashflow ideefed in the provision for loan losses.

As of September 30, 2014, there were no loansitbee modified in the past twelve months and delamjwn scheduled payments.
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair ealu
The securitized loans held for investment for witled Company has elected the fair value optiorcarged at fair value. See Note 5 to our

Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussiohow we determine the fair values of the seagitiloans held for investment. As
changes in the fair value of these securitizeddaae reflected in earnings, the Company doesstishate or record a loan loss provision.
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The following table provides a summary of the chemim the carrying value of securitized loans Hetdnvestment for which the Company

has elected the fair value option at Septembe2304 and December 31, 2013:

From

Acquisition to
September 30,

2014

(dollars in

thousands
Balance, beginning of peric $ >
Purchase 4,722,82.
Principal paydown (44,809
Net periodic amortization (accretio (484)
Change in fair valu 139,02(
Balance, end of peric $ 4,816,55.

The securitized loan portfolio for which the Compdras elected fair value option is collateralizgdsbasoned sub-prime residential

mortgages originated during the following years:

Origination Yeal September 30, 20

2002 and prio 6.1%
2003 4.4%
2004 12.2%
2005 20.6%
2006 18.1%
2007 26.2%
2008 9.9%
2009 1.2%
2010 and late 1.1%
Total 100.(%
A summary of key characteristics of these loanees.
September 30,
2014
Number of loan: 59,44’
Weighted average maturity (yea 6.2
Weighted average loan to value 80.2%
Weighted average FICO ( 62¢
Weighted average loan balance (in
thousands $ 79,87
Weighted average percentage owner
occupied 95.&%
Weighted average percentage single far
residence 79.2%
Weighted average geographic concentr
of top five state: CA 9.2%
FL 7.C%
NC 7.C%
VA 6.4%
OH 6.C%

(1) As provided by the Truste

The following table summarizes the outstanding @pal balance of loans carried at fair value whach 30 days delinquent and greater as

reported by the servicer at September 30, 2014.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days

Delinquen Delinquen Delinquen Bankruptcy Foreclosur

(dollars in thousand:

REO Total

September 30

2014 $ 155,89t $ 66,79¢$ 114,22: $ 292,980 $

72,897 $ 12,71( $715,50:
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The fair value of the loans 90 days or more pastidi$80 million. The fair value of REO asset$6smillion and is recorded in Other assets
of consolidated VIEs.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accomawith GAAP to account for its financial instrunt@nThe Company categorizes its
financial instruments, based on the priority of itguts to the valuation technique, into a thraesldair value hierarchy. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted @siin active markets for identical assets or liadd (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs ugedheasure the financial instruments fall withirfeliént levels of the hierarchy, the
categorization is based on the lowest level inpat is significant to the fair value measuremerthefinstrument. Financial assets and
liabilities recorded at fair value on the Consdi@hStatements of Financial Condition or disclasetthe related notes are categorized based
on the inputs to the valuation techniques as fatow

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imewquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukktm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

Fair value measurements categorized within Lewak3sensitive to changes in the assumptions oradelbgy used to determine fair value
and such changes could result in a significantiase or decrease in the fair valday changes to the valuation methodology are regtbiy
management to ensure the changes are appropriateakets and products evolve and the pricing éotan products becomes more
transparent, the Company will continue to refisevidluation methodologies. The methodology utilibgdhe Company for the periods
presented is unchanged. The methods used to madizir value calculation may not be indicativanet realizable value or reflective of
future fair values. Furthermore, while the Comphgijeves its valuation methods are appropriatecandistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologiesassumptions, to determine the fair value of @effiaancial instruments could result in a
different estimate of fair value at the reportirsgjed The Company uses inputs that are currertthe smneasurement date, which may include
periods of market dislocation, during which pricantsparency may be reduced.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time and continues to existotigervability of prices and inputs can be
difficult for certain investments. If third parpricing services are unable to provide a priceafoasset, or if the price provided by them is
deemed unreliable by the Company, then the as#idiewalued at its fair value as determined by@wenpany without validation to third-
party pricing. llliquid investments typically exfience greater price volatility as an active madats not exist. Observability of prices and
inputs can vary significantly from period to periadd may cause instruments to change classificatigthin the three level hierarchy.

A description of the methodologies utilized by tbempany to estimate the fair value of its finana@igtruments by instrument class follows:
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Agency and Nc-Agency RMBS

For each reporting period, the Company determineddir value of its investment securities basedisnounted cash flows utilizing an
internal pricing model that incorporates factorstsas coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted avéfageollateral composition, borrower
characteristics, expected interest rates, life qa@sodic caps, reset dates, collateral seasoniugcted losses, expected default severity,
credit enhancement, and other pertinent factoree Gompany reviews the fair values generated bynibel to determine whether prices are
reflective of the current market by corroboratitgyd@stimates of fair value by comparing the regoltsonbinding independent prices provic
by two independent third party pricing servicesdbrsecurities. For certain highly liquid asskisses, such as Agency fixed-rate pass-
throughs, the Company’s valuations are also congparguoted prices for To-Be-Announced (“TBA”) sdtias.

Each quarter the Company develops thresholds verieldetermined utilizing current bid/ask spreadsidity, price volatility and other

factors as appropriate. If internally developeides differ from the independent prices providedybsater than a predetermined threshold for
the period, the Company highlights these differerfoe further review, both internally and with ttherd party pricing service. The Company
obtains the inputs used by the third party prigegvices and compares them to the Company'’s inphesCompany updates its own inputs if
the Company determines the third party pricing tapuore accurately reflect the current market emwirent. If the Company believes that its
internally developed inputs more accurately refteetcurrent market environment, it will requesittthe third party pricing service review
market factors that may not have been considerdbtebthird party pricing service. The Company regi@s and resolves all pricing
differences in excess of the predetermined threshméfore a final price is established.

The Company’s estimate of prepayment, default avérity curves all involve management judgment asslimptions that are deemed to be
significant to the fair value measurement processch renders the resulting Néxgency RMBS fair value estimates Level 3 inputshia fair
value hierarchy.

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company estimates the fair value of its seigedtloans held for investment on a loan by loagidasing an internally developed model
which compares the loan held by the Company witaa currently offered in the market. The loarceris adjusted in the model by
considering the loan factors which would impactibtie of a loan. These loan factors include:nloaupon as compared to coupon curre
available in the market, FICO, loan-to-value ratibslinquency history, owner occupancy, and prgprie, among other factors. The
Company develops a baseline for each significaart factor and adjusts the price up or down depgnaiinhow that factor for each specific
loan compares to the baseline rate. Generallynibgt significant impact on loan value is the lagaerest rate as compared to interest rates
currently available in the market and delinquenisydny. These two factors are based on relevasgmiable inputs.

The Company also monitors market activity to idgrttiades which may be used to compare internalyetbped prices; however, as the
portfolio of loans held at fair value by the Compasma seasoned sub-prime pool of mortgage loamsparables are not common or directly
comparable. There are limited transactions imtlaeketplace to develop a comprehensive direct rahgalues. However, if market data
becomes available, the Company will compare thia ttathe internally developed prices to ensureaeableness of the valuation.

The Company reviews the fair values generated éyrthdel to determine whether prices are reflecfvhe current market by corroborating
its estimates of fair value by comparing the restdtnon-binding independent prices provided by itvdependent third party pricing services
for the loan portfolio.

If the internally developed fair value of the lgamols differ from the independent prices providgdjbeater than a predetermined threshold
for the period, the Company highlights these défees for further review, both internally and wthie third party pricing service. The
Company obtains certain inputs used by the thirtypaicing services and evaluates them for redsien@ss. The Company updates its own
model if the Company determines the third partgipg inputs more accurately reflect the currentkeaenvironment or observed informat
from the third party vendors. If the Company bedigthat its internally developed inputs more adelyaeflect the current market
environment, it will request that the third partycpng service review market factors that may natdnbeen considered by the third party
pricing service. The Company reconciles and resolliepricing differences in excess of the predateed thresholds before a final price is
established.

The Company's estimates of fair value of secudtipans held for investment involve managementgmagnts and assumptions that are

deemed to be significant to the fair value measergmrocess, which renders the resulting fair vaktenates Level 3 inputs in the fair value
hierarchy.
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Securitized Debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMBEfhsferred to Consolidated VIEs and SecuritizethtDLoans Held for Investment at
cost

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes financed without recourse to the Compagecuritization or re-securitization
transactions treated as secured borrowings. Tihgp@oy carries securitized debt at the principadhed outstanding plus unamortized
premiums, less unaccreted discounts recorded inempion with the financing of the loans or RMBSihird parties. The premiums or
discounts associated with the financing of the siotecertificates are amortized over the contrddifiesof the instrument using the interest
method. The Company estimates the fair value airitized debt by estimating the future cash flassociated with the underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Thepany models the fair value of each underlyirggby considering, among other items,
the structure of the underlying security, coupamyiger, actual and expected defaults, actual apdaed default severities, reset indices, and
prepayment speeds in conjunction with market resefar similar collateral performance and managehsesxpectations of general econol
conditions in the sector and other economic factors

Securitized Debt, collateralized by Loans Heldlforestment at fair value

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes financed without recourse to the Compasecuritization or re-securitization
transactions treated as secured borrowings. Tingp@oy carries certain securitized debt at fair @allihe Company estimates the fair value
of this securitized debt consistent with non-ageR&BS by estimating the future cash flows assodiatih the underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Chepany models the fair value of each underlyirsgpby considering, among other items,
the structure of the underlying security, coupamyieer, actual and expected defaults, actual apdaed default severities, reset indices, and
prepayment speeds in conjunction with market resefar similar collateral performance and managehsesxpectations of general econol
conditions in the sector and other economic factors

See the further discussion of the valuation proaessbenchmarking process in thgency and Non-Agency RMBiScussion of fair value.

The Company's estimates of fair value of Secudtidebt, collateralized by loans held for investnarair value involve management
judgements and assumptions that are deemed tgiécnt to the fair value measurement processchvienders the resulting fair val
estimates Level 3 inputs in the fair value hiergrch

Derivatives
Interest Rate Swaps

The Company determines the fair value of its irgerate swaps based on the net present valuewéfaash flows of the swap. The Comg
compares its own estimate of fair value to dealertes received to evaluate for reasonableness.d@dler quotes incorporate common
market pricing methods, including a spread measen¢ho the Treasury yield curve or interest ratapeurve as well as underlying
characteristics of the particular contract. Interate swaps are modeled by the Company by incatipgr such factors as the term to maturity,
Treasury curve, overnight index swap rates, angb#lyenent rates on the fixed portion of the interagt swaps. The Company has classified
the characteristics used to determine the fairevafuinterest rate swaps as Level 2 inputs in direvBlue hierarchy.

Mortgage Options

Mortgage options are valued using an option pricmaglel which considers the strike price of theaptithe price of the underlying security,
settle date, a discount rate and the implied Miiatirhe implied volatility is determined from thdaily price of the underlying security as well
as prices on similar financial instruments. The @any has classified the characteristics used &rne the fair value of mortgage options
as Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.

Treasury Futures

The fair value of Treasury futures is determinedjbgted market prices for similar financial instemis in an active market. The Company
has classified the characteristics used to deterthia fair value of Treasury futures as Level Lutspn the fair value hierarchy.
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Repurchase Agreemet

Repurchase agreements are collateralized finati@ngactions utilized by the Company to acquir@gtment securities. Due to the short
term nature of these financial instruments, the gamy estimates the fair value of these repurchgieements using the contractual
obligation plus accrued interest payable at maturit

Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, receivable for secitividends payable, payable for securities
and accrued interest payable are considered tadasanable estimate of fair value due to the gbar nature of these financial instruments.
The Company'’s financial assets and liabilitiesiearat fair value on a recurring basis, including tevel in the fair value hierarchy,

at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 ismgrezbbelow.

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Counterparty and

Cash
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Collateral, nettinc Total
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - % 239,93: $ - % 239,93:
Senior intere-only - - 207,84( - 207,84(
Subordinatel - - 439,96 - 439,96
Subordinated intere-only - - 7,34( - 7,34(
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 2,528,33! - 2,528,33!
Securitized loans held for investment, at faiue: - - 4,816,55 - 4,816,55
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 7,955,80! - - 7,955,80!
Interes-only - 114,16¢ - - 114,16¢
Other Derivative:
Liabilities:
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized agris held for investme - - (3,737,60) - (3,737,60)
Derivatives, ne 7,80( (38,017 - 21,79( (8,427)
Total $ 7,80C $ 8,031,96. $ 4,502,360 $ 21,79C $ 12,563,91
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Counterparty an
Cash
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Collateral, nettinc Total
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - 8 - $ 89,687 $ - % 89,68"
Senior intere-only - - 229,06! - 229,06!
Subordinatel - - 457,56¢ - 457,56¢
Subordinated intere-only - - 16,57 - 16,57
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 2,981,57 - 2,981,57
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 1,954,79 - - 1,954,791
Interes-only - 42,78: - - 42,78:
Derivatives, ne 10,62¢ - - (2,539 8,09t
Liabilities:
Derivatives, ne - (30,199 - - (30,199
Total $ 10,62¢ $ 1,967,370 $ 3,774,46.  $ (2,539) $ 5,749,93
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The table below provides a summary of the chanyésa fair value of securities classified as Le3/ak September 30, 2014 and December

31, 2013.

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level

For the Nine Months Ende

September 30, 201

(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency
RMBS Derivatives Securitized Loar  Securitized Deh Total
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 3,774,46. $ - 8 - 8 - 8 3,774,46.
Transfers in to Level 3 asst - - - - -
Transfers out of Level 3 asst - - - - -
Purchase 405,99« - 4,722,82. (4,033,30) 1,095,51.
Principal payment (247,106 - (44,809 266,19¢ (25,71
Sales and Settlemer (600,51) (8,749 - - (609,26()
Accretion (amortization) of purchase discot 74,46 - (4849 4 73,98
Gains (losses) included in net inco
Other than temporary credit impairment los (8,87)) - - - (8,87))
Realized gains (losses) on sales and settler 62,55¢ 8,74¢ - - 71,30°
Realized gain on deconsolidati 47,84¢ - - - 47,84¢
Net unrealized gains (losses) included in inct 17,15¢ - 139,02( 29,50( 185,67¢
Gains (losses) included in other comprehensivena
Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe (102,57¢) - - - (102,57¢)
Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,423,411 $ - $ 4,816,55 $ (3,737,60) $ 4,502,36!
Fair Value Reconciliation, Level
For the Year Ende
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency
RMBS Derivatives Securitized Loan  Securitized Deh Total
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 3,961,20: - - - $ 3,961,20:
Transfers in to Level 3 asst - - - - -
Transfers out of Level 3 asst - - - - -
Purchase 317,29¢ - - - 317,29¢
Principal payment (475,09) - - - (475,09
Sales and Settlemer (181,21) (10,227 - - (191,439
Accretion of purchase discour 106,29( - - - 106,29(
Gains (losses) included in net inco
Other than temporary credit impairment los (45,167 - - - (45,167
Realized gains (losses) on sales and settler 36,64 10,22: - - 46,86¢
Realized losses on principal w-downs of NorAgency RMBS (18,31¢) - - - (18,31¢)
Net unrealized gains (losses) included in inc (43,257) - - - (43,259
Gains (losses) included in other comprehensivena
Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe 116,06: - - - 116,06:
Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,774,46. $ - $ - $ - $ 3,774,46.

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 forriree months ended September 30, 2014 and for yeldeDecember 31, 2013.
Sensitivity of Significant Inputs — Non-agency RMBS8 securitized debt carried at fair value

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevialue measurement of the Company’s Non-Agency BNBd securitized debt carried at
fair value are the weighted average discount ratasstant prepayment speed (“CPR”), cumulativedefate, and the loss severity.

Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the CPR, vagyding to interest rates, the type of financiatioment, conditions in financial markets,
and other factors, none of which can be predictitd any certainty. In general, when interest raiss, it is relatively less attractive for
borrowers to refinance their mortgage loans, ara @sult, prepayment speeds tend to decreasen iMeeest rates fall, prepayment speeds
tend to increase. For RMBS investments purchasagetmium, as prepayment speeds increase, thenawfdncome the Company earns
decreases as the purchase premium on the bondtzasdaster than expected. Conversely, decréaggspayment speeds result in
increased income and can extend the period oveahvithe Company amortizes the purchase premium RMBS investments purchased at a
discount, as prepayment speeds increase, the ambimebme the Company earns increases from thel@etion of the accretion of the
discount into interest income. Conversely, decre@sprepayment speeds result in decreased incertieeaccretion of the purchase discount
into interest income occurs over a longer period.

For securitized debt carried at fair value issued gremium, as prepayment speeds increase, thenambinterest expense the Company
recognizes decreases as the issued premium oelhamiortizes faster than expected. Conversetyedses in prepayment speeds result in
decreased income and can extend the period ovehwiie Company amortizes the premium.
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For debt issued at a discount, as prepayment sjie@eésse, the amount of interest the Company esqseimcreases from the acceleration of
the accretion of the discount into interest expe@smversely, decreases in prepayment speeds iesl@treased expense as the accretion of
the discount into interest expense occurs ovengdoperiod.

Cumulative default rates represent an annualiziedafedefault on a group of mortgages. The constafgult rate (“CDR”) represents the
percentage of outstanding principal balances irptia that are in default, which typically equatethe home being past 60-day and 90-day
notices and in the foreclosure process. When ttefates increase, expected cash flows on the ydgrcollateral decreases. When default
rates decrease, expected cash flows on the unigidypilateral increases.

Loss severity rates reflect the amount of loss etqukfrom a foreclosure and liquidation of the uhdeg collateral in the mortgage loan

pool. When a mortgage loan is foreclosed the tldis sold and the resulting proceeds are wsedttle the outstanding obligation. In
many circumstances, the proceeds from the sal@tfully repay the outstanding obligation. In thesses a loss is incurred by the

lender. Loss severity is used to predict how gdstiure losses are likely to be. An increaseosslseverity results in a decrease in expected
future cashflows. A decrease in loss severityltedu an increase in expected future cashflows.

The discount rate refers to the interest rate us#tk discounted cash flow analysis to determtreepresent value of future cash flows. The
discount rate takes into account not just the tiadae of money, but also the risk or uncertaintyudiire cash flows. An increased uncerta
of future cash flows results in a higher discoatiér The discount rate used to calculate the ptesdue of the expected future cash flows is
based on the discount rate implicit in the secuaityf the last measurement date. As discourd mtee up, the discounted cash flows are
reduced.

A summary of the significant inputs used to estartae fair value of No#gency RMBS held for investment at fair value asSeptember 3(
2014 and December 31, 2013 follows:

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Discount Loss Discount Loss
Rate CPR CDR Severity Rate CPR CDR Severity
Range Range
Non-Agency RMBS
50%- 50%-
Senior 4.8% 1%- 12% 0%- 30% 85% 6.4% 1%-6% 0%- 33% 85%
50%- 50%-
Senior intere-only 13.4% 1%-25% 0%- 34% 85% 14.1% 1%-28% 0%- 33% 85%
50% - 50% -
Subordinatec 6.0% 1%-20% 0%- 20% 78% 6.1% 1%-22% 0%- 38% 85%
50%- 50%-
Subordinated intere-only 22.0% 1%-10% 0%- 14% 66% 12.7% 2%- 13% 0%- 18% 73%
50%- 50%-
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 4.6% 1%-17% 0%- 33% 85% 5.3% 1%-20% 0%- 33% 85%

A summary of the significant inputs used to estartae fair value of Securitized debt at fair vadiseof September 30, 2014 follows:

September 30, 201
Significant Inputs

Loss
CPR CDR Severity
Range Range Range
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized 50% -
loans held for investmel 3%-7% 0%-9% 66%

All of the significant inputs listed have some degof market observability, based on the Compakysvledge of the market, information
available to market participants, and use of commarket data sources. Collateral default and legerity projections are in the form of
“curves” that are updated quarterly to reflect@@mpany’s collateral cash flow projections. Methoded to develop these projections
conform to industry conventions. The Company usssi@ptions it considers its best estimate of futash flows for each respective secu

The discount rates applied to the expected caslsfto determine fair value are derived from a raoigebservable prices on securities bac
by similar collateral. As the market becomes nwrkess liquid, the availability of these obseneainiputs will change.

The prepayment speed specifies the percentage abthateral balance that is expected to prepa&gach point in the future. The prepayment

speed is based on factors such as collateral Fi©f@ sloan-to-value ratio, debt-toeome ratio, and vintage on a loan level basisiausdalec
up or down to reflect recent collateral-specifieayment experience as obtained from remittancertsepnd market data services.
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Default vectors are determined from the currenpépine” of loans that are more than 30 days dekmdiuin foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are
REO. These delinquent loans determine the firshd@ths of the default curve. Beyond month 30, thiaalt curve transitions to a value that
is reflective of a portion of the current delinqagmipeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s egpaiss severity is based on collatesjpécific experience with consideration given toec
mitigating collateral characteristics. Charact@&ssuch as seasoning are taken into considergicause severities tend to initially increase
on newly originated securities, before beginnindéacline as the collateral ages and eventuallylizab Collateral characteristics such as |
size, loan-to-value, and geographic location ofatefal also effect loss severity.

Sensitivity of Significant Inputs — Securitizednsdeld for investment at fair value
The significant unobservable inputs used to estrtta fair value of the securitized loans heldifioestment, at fair value, as of September
30, 2014 include coupon, FICO score, loan-to-vaai®s (LTV), owner occupancy status, and propsae. A summary of the significant

inputs used to estimate the fair value of Secwtitbans held for investment at fair value as gft&mber 30, 2014 follows:

September 30, 201
Significant Inputs

Weighted
Average/Perce
of
Base Rati loan pool
Factor:
Coupo
Cles 4.65% 7.01%
Reperformit 5.5(% 6.98%
FICC 62C 62¢
Loa-to-value (LTV) 90% 80%
Occupanc
Owner Occupi N/A 96%
Invest N/A 4%
Seconds N/A 0%
Property Tyg
Single fami N/A 79%
Manufactured hous N/A 15%
Mul-family/mixed use/othe N/A 6%

The loan factors are generally not observableHerindividual loans and the base rates developgtidbZompany’s internal model are
subjective and change as market conditions champe.impact of the loan coupon on the value ofitlaa is dependent on whether the log
clean or reperforming. A clean loan, with no higtof delinquent payments and a relatively higmlagerest rate would result in a higher
overall value than a reperforming loan which hagstory of delinquency. Similarly, a higher FIC€ose and a lower LTV ratio results in
increases in the fair market value of the loan atalver FICO score and a higher LTV ratio wouldutes a lower value.
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Property types also affect the overall loan valuesoperty types include single family, manufactuneusing and multi-family/mixed use and
other types of properties. Single family homegespnt properties which house only one family uManufacture homes include mobile
homes and modular homes. Loan value for propetiggsare investor or secondary homes have a rddusdee as compared to the baseline
loan value. Additionally, single family homes widlsult in an increase to the loan value where ifia&twred and multi-family/mixed use and
other properties will result in a decrease to tanlvalue, as compared to the baseline.

The following table presents the carrying value &idvalue, as described above, of the Compangantial instruments not carried at fair
value on a recurring basis at September 30, 20dDagember 31, 2013.

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Level in Fair
Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value
Securitized loans held for investm 3 678,86t 672,95:
Repurchase agreeme; 2 (7,838,16) (7,850,59)
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 3 (742,89 (748,319
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifeestmen 3 (572,749 (560,662

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Level in Fair
Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value
Securitized loans held for investme 3 783,48« 762,55(
Repurchase agreeme! 2 (1,658,56) (1,660,94)
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 3 (933,73) (940,719
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifeestmen 3 (669,987 (647,629

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $7.8 billion and $illibib of repurchase agreements with weighted ayetaorrowing rates of 0.57% and
0.44% and weighted average remaining maturiticg’alays and 58 days as of September 30, 2014 arehiber 31, 2013, respectively. At
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, Agend®Rpedged as collateral under these repurchasemgnts had an estimated fair
value of $7.1 billion and $1.7 billion, respectiyelAt September 30, 2014, Non-Agency RMBS pledgedollateral under these repurchase
agreements had an estimated fair value of $1.iillThere were no Non-Agency RMBS pledged asateral at December 31, 2013. The
average daily balances of the Company’s repurchgseements for the quarters ended September 30,82l December 31, 2013 were $7.7
billion and $1.5 billion, respectively. The intereates of these repurchase agreements are ggriacked to the one-month or the three-
month LIBOR rate and re-price accordingly.

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, thechase agreements collateralized by RMBS hatbtlesving remaining maturities.

September 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ -$ =
1-29 days 3,556,70: 644,33.
30 to 59 day: 1,691,67 606,94!
60 to 89 day: 957,22. -
90 to 119 day 556,40t 129,04¢
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 1,076,15 278,23!
Total $ 7,838,16: $ 1,658,56.

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, thep@oy did not have any amount at risk under itsingpase agreements greater than
10% of its equity with any counterparty.

32




7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateratl by residential mortgage loans or Non-AgencyB8M For financial reporting purposes,
the Company’s securitized debt is accounted faeasred borrowings. Thus, the residential mortdeges or RMBS held as collateral are
recorded in the assets of the Company as secudritzes held for investment or Non-Agency RMBS $farred to consolidated VIEs and the
securitized debt is recorded as a non-recourstitjaib the accompanying Consolidated StatemefitSimancial Condition.

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 thep@oy's securitized debt collateralized by loanslfiet investment had a principal
balance of $4.4 billion and $670 million, respeelwof which $3.8 billion as of September 30, 204 securitized debt for which the
Company has elected the fair value option with gleanin fair value reflected in earnings. During tluarter ended September 30, 2014, the
company recognized a gain of $30 million on theuséized debt carried at fair value in Net unreatimyains (losses) on financial instruments
at fair value. At September 30, 2014 and Decer8lheR013 the total securitized debt collateralizgdoans held for investment carried a
weighted average cost of financing equal to 3.48%%31% respectively. The debt matures betweeydhars 2023 and 2065.

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 thep@oy's securitized debt collateralized by Non-AgeR&MBS had a principal balance
of $769 million and $966 million, respectivelyAt September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, thiecderied a weighted average cost of
financing equal to 4.27% and 4.26%, respectivallge debt matures between the years 2035 and 2047.

During the first quarter of 2014, the Company aceplisecuritized debt collateralized by Non-Agen®¥88 with an outstanding principal
balance of $54 million for $56 million in cash. i$transaction resulted in a loss on the extinguett of debt of $2 million. This loss is
reflected in earnings for the nine months endede®eiper 30, 2014.

During the third quarter of 2014, the Company sedttlebt collateralized by loans held for investnveitth an outstanding principal balance of
$220 million for $220 million in cash. As the detms carried at and settled at par, no gain ord@ssrecognized.

The carrying value of securitized debt collatediby jumbo prime loans is based on its amortizex, ©et of premiums or discounts related
to sales of senior certificates to third partid$ie carrying value of securitized debt collateediby seasoned sub-prime residential mortgage
loans with a weighted average FICO score of 62faged on fair value. The following table preséinésestimated principal repayment
schedule of the securitized debt at September@®0} and December 31, 2013, based on expectedloaghdf the residential mortgage loans
or RMBS, as adjusted for projected losses on tlietlying collateral of the debt. All of the sediréd debt recorded in the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditiorois-recourse to the Company.

September 30, December 31,

2014 2013

(dollars in thousand:
Within One Yeal $ 858,05( $ 370,25(
One to Three Yeal 1,346,39 497,94
Three to Five Year 910,60 264,45¢
Greater Than Five Yea 1,811,10. 396,91t
Total $ 4,926,15; $ 1,529,56!

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt arpeshelent upon cash flows received from the undeglioans. The estimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentise underlying loans. This estimate will diffesm actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experiencezeiN&es 3 and 4 for a more detailed discussiohe&ecurities and loans collateralizing
securitized debt.

8. Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Othevariable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VbE$fe purpose of securitizing whole mortgage laam®-securitizing RMBS and obtaini
permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Compaajuated its interest in each VIE to determirieid the primary beneficiary.

As of September 30, 2014, the Company’s Consolid&tatements of Financial Condition includes cadstéd VIEs with $8.0 billion of

assets and $5.1 billion of liabilities. As of Dedger 31, 2013, the Company’s Consolidated Statesradritinancial Condition includes
consolidated VIEs with $3.8 billion of assets add6ébillion of liabilities.
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VIE Activity:
SLFMT Trusts

During the third quarter of 2014, the Company alithe rights to approximately $4.8 billion of seaed sub-prime residential mortgage
loans through the purchase of certain subordinatiesrand trust certificates in Springleaf Mortgagan Trusts 2011-1, 2012-1, 2012-2,
2012-3, 2013-1, 2013-2 and 2013-3 (“SLFMT TrustBy purchasing these securities, the Company raaytime, at its option, terminate
the SLFMT Trusts by redeeming all outstanding baatdsar and obtain the underlying mortgage colddti@raccordance with each respective
trust indenture. The Company evaluated the SLFMISTE and determined that the total equity investragrisk is not sufficient to permit
these trusts to finance its activities without éiddial subordinated financial support provided bpther party. Therefore, the Company
concluded that the SLFMT Trusts were VIEs. The @any further determined that their interests inSh&MT Trusts gave the Company
power to direct the activity of these VIEs that isignificantly impacted their economic performaw¢ehe VIEs. Therefore, the Company
concluded that it was the primary beneficiary & 8LFMT Trusts and consolidated the assets antlitiedof the SLFMT Trusts. The
Company eliminated all intercompany interests. @tesolidation of the SLFMT Trusts resulted in #uglition of the following amounts, net
of eliminations, at the time of acquisition.

SLFMT Trusts
(dollars in
thousands
Assets
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair &: $ 4,722,82!
Other Asset: 84,83(
Liabilities
Securitized debt at fair valt $ 4,033,30:

During the third quarter of 2014, the Company tfansd its interests in SLFMT 2011-1 to a dealat antered into a forward trade with the
dealer to repurchase all securities of the newrgieration entity backed by the collateral of SLFNMU11-1. The financing for this transaction
is reflected as a payable for securities of $348aniat the end of the third quarter of 2014. §transfer and commitment of repurchase is
reflected as financing for GAAP presentation.

CSMC 2010-12R/CSMC 2014-4R

During the first quarter of 2014, the Company saldf its interests in CSMC 2010-12R, a consokdiaVIE, to an unrelated third

party. Subsequent to this sale, the purchaséreohterests in this VIE liquidated the VIE andkgmssession of the underlying securities of
the original VIE for the purposes of creating a rmevgecuritization entity. The Company agreedctpuire certain interests in the new re-
securitization entity, CSMC 2014-4R, collateralizgdthe underlying securities of the original VIEhese new interests acquired by the
Company were evaluated for consolidation under GAARe Company determined that the acquired inteieghe new re-securitization
entity represented variable interests in only dptassets of the new re-securitization entityhase specified assets are essentially the only
source of payment for the related variable intere$the new re-securitization entity. As the Campacquired 100% of certain classes of
the new resecuritization entity, it concluded thatas the primary beneficiary of certain specifas$ets and interests of the new re-
securitization entity for which it owned 100% oétblass and, therefore, consolidated the assetiadildies related only to their interests
acquired.

As the Company did not repurchase all of the irstisran the new re-securitization entity, a gaib48 million was recognized during the
second quarter of 2014 related to the sale ohfeésts in the previously consolidated VIE whictrevnot repurchased by the Company as
part of the new re-securitization entity. Thisrgai presented as a Gain on deconsolidation dtinegecond quarter of 2014.

As of September 30, 2014, the balance sheet inglteunderlying assets of the original consolidiatie the Company agreed to repurchase

from the new re-securitization entity; therefore,gain or loss is recognized on that portion oftthesaction. All intercompany balances
related to the consolidated interests are elimihateonsolidation.
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VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficia

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for whihle Company is the primary beneficiary are typyctide subordinated tranches of these re-
securitizations and in some cases the Company widyiriterests in additional tranches. The tableweeflects the assets and liabilities
recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Finaficiadition related to the consolidated VIEs aSeptember 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013.

September 30, December 31,
2014 2013
(dollars in thousand:

Assets
Nor-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V $ 2,528,333 $ 2,981,57.
Securitized loans held for investment, net afaéince fo

loan losse: 678,86t 783,48:
Securitized loans held for investment, at faiue: 4,816,55. -
Accrued interest receivak 40,58 17,17:
Other Asset 80,45¢ 6,534

Liabilities
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS  $ 742,89: $ 933,73
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans held fo

investmen 572,74 669,98
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralizeddsns held

for investmen 3,737,60: -
Accrued interest payab 16,38: 5,27¢

Income and expense and OTTI amounts related totidated VIES recorded in the Consolidated StateamehOperations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss) is presented in tHe tzddow.

For the Quarter Ende
September 30,  September 30,

2014 2013
(dollars in thousand:
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $ 103,74: $ 91,54
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (28,989 (23,499
Net interest incom $ 74,75¢ $ 68,04¢
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss - (2,209
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensicgeline
(loss) (695) (13,427)
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (695) $ (15,63¢)
For the Nine Months Ende
September 30,  September 30,
2014 2013
(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $ 274,21! $ 282,20°
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (66,859 (75,477)
Net interest incom $ 207,35t $ 206,73!
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (479 (2,209
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensiceine
(loss) (4,166 (13,56%)
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (4,645 $ (15,777)

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Bieraafy

The Company is not required to consolidate VIEwlich it has concluded it does not have a contrglfinancial interest, and thus is not the
primary beneficiary. In such cases, the Company do¢ have both the power to direct the entitiesshsignificant activities and the
obligation to absorb losses or right to receivedfignthat could potentially be significant to #Es. The Company’s investments in these
unconsolidated VIEs are carried in Non-Agency RMBSthe Consolidated Statements of Financial Camd#ind include senior and
subordinated bonds issued by the VIEs. The Companykstments in unconsolidated VIEs at SeptemBg2@14, ranged from less than $1
million to $46 million, with an aggregate amount®&95 million. The Company’s investments in uncdidsted VIEs at December 31, 2013,
ranged from less than $1 million to $42 millionthvan aggregate amount of $793 million. The Comjgamaximum exposure to loss from
these unconsolidated VIEs was $799 million at Saptr 30, 2014 and $727 million at December 31, 20h& maximum exposure to Ic



was determined as the amortized cost of the untidased VIE, which represents the purchase pricghefinvestment less any unamortized
premiums or discounts as of the reporting date.
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9. Derivative Instruments

In connection with the Company’s interest rate nsknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest rate risk
by entering into derivative financial instrumennt@cts in the form of interest rate swaps and Susafutures. The Company’s swaps are
used to lock in a fixed rate related to a portibitocurrent and anticipated payments on its relpase agreements. The Company typically
agrees to pay a fixed rate of interest (“pay rate’xchange for the right to receive a floatintgraf interest (“receive rate”) over a specified
period of time. Treasury futures are derivativédsalr track the prices of specific Treasury secesitind are traded on an active exchange. It
is generally the Comparg/policy to close out any Treasury futures posgtiprior to taking delivery of the underlying setyriThe Compan
uses Treasury futures to lock in prices on thelpase or sale of Agency RMBS and to hedge changeteirest rates on its existing portfolio.

In addition to interest rate swaps, from time odithe Company purchases and sells mortgage optMaggage options give the Company
the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sebnigage backed securities at a future date forealfprice. The Company uses mortgage
options to lock in prices on the purchase or shlsgency RMBS and to enhance investment returns.

The use of derivatives creates exposure to crisflirelating to potential losses that could be gaired if the counterparties to these
instruments fail to perform their obligations undlee contracts. In the event of a default by thenterparty, the Company could have
difficulty obtaining its RMBS or cash pledged adlateral for these derivative instruments. The @any periodically monitors the credit of
its counterparties to determine if it is exposeddanterparty credit risk. See Note 14 for furttisicussion of counterparty credit risk.

The table below summarizes the location and fdurevaf the derivatives reported in the Consolidétatements of Financial Condition after
counterparty netting and posting of cash collatasabf September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

September 30, 201

Derivative Asset: Derivative Liabilities
Net Estimated Net Estimated
Notional Location on Consolidated Fair Location on Fair
Amount Statements of Financial Value/Carrying  Consolidated StatementsValue/Carrying
Derivative Instrument Outstandinc Condition Value of Financial Conditior Value

(dollars in thousand:
Derivatives, at fair value,

Interest Rate Sway $ 3,435,000 Derivatives, at fair value, nn = $ - et $ (16,227
Derivatives, at fair value,

Mortgage Option: - Derivatives, at fair value, n - het -
Derivatives, at fair value,

Treasury Future 1,240,000 Derivatives, at fair value, n 7,80C net -
Total $ 4,675,00 $ 7,80( $ (16,227
December 31, 201

Derivative Asset: Derivative Liabilities
Net Estimatec Net Estimatec
Notional Location on Consolidated Fair Location on Fair
Amount Statements of Financial Value/Carrying  Consolidated Statement Value/Carrying
Derivative Instrument ~ Outstanding Condition Value of Financial Conditior Value
(dollars in thousand:
Interest Rate Sway $ 1,355,000 Derivatives, at fair value, . $ - Derivatives, at fair valu $ (30,199
Treasury Future 550,000 Derivatives, at fair value, ni 8,09t Derivatives, at fair valu -
Total $ 1,905,00 $ 8,09t $ (30,199

The effect of the Company’s derivatives on the @tidated Statements of Operations and Comprehehsboene (Loss) is presented below.
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Net gains (losses) on derivativ
For the Quarter Ende
Location on Consolidated Statements

of
Derivative  Operations and Comprehensive September 30, September 30,
Instruments  Income (Loss 2014 2013

(dollars in thousand:
Interest Rate Net unrealized gains (losses)

Swaps derivatives $ 7,041 $ 237

Interest Rate Net realized gains (losses)

Swaps derivatives (17,139 (5,459
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Mortgage Option:derivatives (4,340 (29¢)
Net realized gains (losses)

Mortgage Option:derivatives 5,85: 3,59(
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Treasury Future derivatives 10,43¢ (12
Net realized gains (losses)

Treasury Future derivatives (11,54°) (1,529
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Swaptions derivatives (162) -
Net realized gains (losses)

Swaptions derivatives (325) -

Total $ (10,177 $ (3,369

Net gains (losses) on derivativ
For the Nine Months Ende
Location on Consolidated Statemen

of
Derivative Operations and Comprehensive September 30, September 30,
Instruments Income (Loss 2014 2013

(dollars in thousand:
Interest Rate Net unrealized gains (losses)

Swaps derivatives $ (8,72¢) $ 18,817

Interest Rate Net realized gains (losses)

Swaps derivatives (34,849 (16,380
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Mortgage Option:derivatives - (19¢)
Net realized gains (losses)

Mortgage Option:derivatives 7,50¢ 3,59(
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Treasury Future derivatives (2,829 (12
Net realized gains (losses)

Treasury Future derivatives (21,029 (1,529
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Swaptions derivatives (162) -
Net realized gains (losses)

Swaptions derivatives (325) -

Total $ (60,412 $ 4,29t

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’sesstteate swaps at September 30, 2014 was 2.26%haneeighted average receive rate
was 0.20%. The weighted average pay rate on thep@oy’s interest rate swaps at December 31, 20531lvd % and the weighted average
receive rate was 0.17%.

Certain of the Company’s derivative contracts atgect to International Swaps and Derivatives Aggan Master Agreements or other
similar agreements which may contain provisions ¢inant counterparties certain rights with respeche applicable agreement upon the
occurrence of certain events such as (i) a dealiséockholders’ equity in excess of specified sfn@ds or dollar amounts over set periods of
time, (ii) the Company’s failure to maintain its REstatus, (iii) the Company’s failure to complytiviimits on the amount of leverage, and
(iv) the Company'’s stock being delisted from thesN¥ork Stock Exchange (NYSE). Upon the occurrenicany one of items (i) through

(iv), or another default under the agreement, thenterparty to the applicable agreement has a tigterminate the agreement in accordance
with its provisions. Certain of the Company’s nat&t rate swaps are cleared through a registeradhodities exchange. Each of the
Company'’s ISDAs and clearing exchange agreemenisics provisions under which the Company is resglito fully collateralize its
obligations under the interest rate swap agreenieat@iny point the fair value of the swap represe liability greater than the minimc



transfer amount contained within the agreements.Gtmpany is also required to post initial collatermpon execution of certain of its swap
transactions. If the Company breaches any of themdsions, it will be required to settle its oldigpns under the agreements at their
termination values, which approximates fair val@eared swaps are fair valued using internal pgichodels and compared to the exchange
market values. The aggregate fair value of alhdgive instruments with credit-risk-related contndjfeatures that are in a net liability
position at September 30, 2014 is approximately@on including accrued interest, which represahie maximum amount the Company
would be required to pay upon termination, whicfully collateralized.

10. Common Stock
During the quarters ended September 30, 2014 ah8, 28e Company declared dividends to common sbétets totaling $92 million, or

$0.09 per share. During the nine months endede8dyr 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company declaredatidiglto common shareholders
totaling $277 million, or $0.27 per share.
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Earnings per share for the quarters and nine mamitied September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectivelgomputed as follows:

For the Quarter Ende
September 30, September 30,

2014 2013
Numerator:
Net income $ 377,580 $ 67,367
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 377,58 $ 67,367
Denominator
Weighted average basic sha 1,027,183,38 1,027,121,43
Effect of dilutive securities 325,50( 437,75(
Weighted average diluted shares 1,027,508,88 1,027,559,18
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder:-
Basic $ 037 $ 0.07
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder:-
Diluted $ 037 $ 0.07
For the Nine Months Ende
September 30  September 30
2014 2013
(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:
Net income $ 582,71 $ 290,37!
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 582,71 $ 290,37"

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,027,218,02 1,027,075,62
Effect of dilutive securities 325,71 506,95!
Weighted average dilutive shares 1,027,543,73 1,027,582,58
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder:-

Basic $ 057 $ 0.2¢
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder:-

Diluted $ 0.57 $ 0.2¢

38




11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the changes in thegmrants of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incd®@ClI”) for the nine months

ended September 30, 2014 and 2013:

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized gain

(losses) on
available- Total
for-sale Accumulated
securities, ne  OCI Balance
Balance as of December 31, 201$ 990,80 $ 990,80
OCI before reclassificatior 63,99t 63,99¢
Amounts reclassified from AOCI (109,79) (109,79)
Net current period OC (45,7979 (45,797
Balance as of September 30, 20 $ 945,00¢ $ 945,00t

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized gain

(losses) on
available- Total
for-sale Accumulated
securities, ne  OCI Balance
Balance as of December 31, 201$ 989,93t $ 989,93t
OCI before reclassificatior 61,83¢ 61,83¢
Amounts reclassified from AOCI (50,327 (50,327
Net current period OC 11,51¢ 11,51¢
Balance as of September 30, 20 $ 1,001,45. $ 1,001,45:

The following table presents the details of thdassifications from AOCI for the nine months en@®mptember 30, 2014 and 2013:

September September
30, 2014 30, 2013
Amounts Amounts
Reclassified  Reclassified
from from Affected Line on the Consolidated
Accumulatec  Accumulatec Statements Of Operations And
Details about Accumulated OCI Compone OCl OCl Comprehensive Income (Los

Unrealized gains and losses on avail-for-sale securitie

(dollars in thousand:

Net realized gains (losses) on sale
72,93¢ investment:

Realized gain on deconsolidati

Net othe-thantemporary credit impairme!
(22,619 losses

50,32. Income (loss) before income tax
- Income taxes

$ 70817 $
47,84¢
(8,87)

$  109,79. $

$ 109,79, $

50,327 Net of tax

12. Long Term Incentive Plan

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrgttedk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 sharemfilayees of FIDAC and its affiliates
and the Company’s independent directors. The amarthe independent directors vested on the dajeaat and the awards to FIDAC'’s

employees vest quarterly over a period of 10 yeBxsing the quarters ended September 30, 201£2@18, 16 thousand and 26 thousand
shares of restricted stock issued by the CompaRyRAC’s employees vested, respectively. Duringriree months ended September 30,

2014 and 2013, 53 thousand and 80 thousand sHarestricted stock issued by the

Company to FID&\&nployees vested, respectively.

of September 30, 2014 there were 214 thousand nemgaion-vested shares representing $650 thoudanthbunrecognized compensation

costs granted under the long term incentive plased on the closing price of the shares at quanigr That cost is expected to be recognized

over a period of approximately 3.25 years.

13. Income Taxes



For the quarter ended September 30, 2014, the Gompas qualified to be taxed as a REIT under Caalgiéhs 856 through 860. As a
REIT, the Company is not subject to federal incaaeto the extent that it makes qualifying disttibns of taxable income to its
stockholders. To maintain qualification as a REHE, Company must distribute at least 90% of itsuah REIT taxable income to its
shareholders and meet certain other requiremeatsaaiassets it may hold, income it may generatetsishareholder composition. Itis
generally the Company’s policy to distribute tostereholders all of the Company’s taxable income.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which @@mpany is subject to tax-filing obligations renag the Company’s status as a REIT, and
therefore, the Company generally does not pay igctax in such jurisdictions. The Company may, havebe subject to certain minimum
state and local tax filing fees and its TRS’s angject to federal, state, and local taxes. Thexeewo significant income tax expenses for the
guarters or nine months ended September 30, 2012GiS8.
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In general, common stock cash dividends declaretid¥ompany will be considered ordinary incomsttzkholders for income tax
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitalsgai return of capital.

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from itsribined federal, state and city corporate statutmxyate primarily due to the deduction of
dividend distributions required to be paid unded€&ection 857(a).

The Company’s 2013, 2012 and 2011 federal, statdamal tax returns remain open for examination.
14. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeglit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to interest rate risk in
connection with its investments in Agency and NageAcy RMBS, residential mortgage loans, and bomgw/under repurchase
agreements. When the Company assumes interesistgti attempts to minimize interest rate riekaugh asset selection, hedging and
matching the income earned on mortgage assetgheitbost of related liabilities. The Company agsrto minimize credit risk through due
diligence and asset selection by purchasing loadsmwvritten to agreed-upon specifications of seléairiginators. The Company has
established a whole loan target market includingn@rand sub-prime borrowers, Alt-A documentaticepgyaphic diversification, owner-
occupied property, and moderate loan-to-value satithese factors are considered to be importaitators of credit risk.

By using derivative instruments and repurchaseeageats, the Company is exposed to counterpartyt cigklif counterparties to the
contracts do not perform as expected. If a countgrgails to perform on a derivative hedging instient, the Company’s counterparty credit
risk is equal to the amount reported as a derigasset on its balance sheet to the extent thairgreaceeds collateral obtained from the
counterparty or, if in a net liability position,afextent to which collateral posted exceeds thmlilia to the counterparty. The amounts repo

as a derivative asset/(liability) are derivativetacts in a gain/(loss) position, and to the exsebject to master netting arrangements, net of
derivatives in a loss/(gain) position with the sasnanterparty and collateral received/(pledgedéfcounterparty fails to perform on a
repurchase agreement, the Company is exposew#ss &0 the extent that the fair value of collatpiatiged exceeds the liability to the
counterparty. The Company attempts to minimizentenparty credit risk by evaluating and monitorthg counterparty’s credit, executing
master netting arrangements and obtaining collat@nd executing contracts and agreements withiphell€ounterparties to reduce exposure
to a single counterparty, where appropriate.

Our repurchase agreements and derivative transadci®@ governed by underlying agreements that geedair a right of setoff under master
netting arrangements, including in the event ohdfor in the event of bankruptcy of either pddyhe transactions. We present our assets
and liabilities subject to such arrangements oataasis in our consolidated statements of findiwoiadition. The following table presents
information about our liabilities that are subjezsuch arrangements and can potentially be ofiseiur consolidated statements of financial
condition as of September 30, 2014 and Decembe&2@13. The Company has no financial instrumenigestito master netting
arrangements, or similar arrangements, in an assiion on a gross basis.
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September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Amounts Not Offset with Financ
Assets (Liabilities) in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Positi

Gross Amounts Net Amounts
Offset Offset
Gross Amounts in the in the
of Recognized Consolidated Consolidated Cash Collatere
Assets Statements of Statements of Financial (Received)
(Liabilities) Financial Positiot  Financial Positiot Instruments Pledged (1 Net Amount
Repurchase agreemel $ (7,838,16) $ - $ (7,838,16) $ 8,524,27. $ - $ 686,11(
Interest Rate Sway (38,019 21,79 (16,22 29,22( 78,72t 91,72:
Mortgage Option: - - - - - -
Treasury Future 7,80( - 7,80( - 8,85¢ 16,65t
Total Liabilities $ (7,868,37) $ 21,79C % (7,846,58) $ 8,553,49. $ 87,58 $ 794,48t

(1) Included in other asse

(dollars in thousand:

Gross Amounts Not Offset with Financ
Assets (Liabilities) in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Positi

Gross Amounts Net Amounts
Offset Offset
Gross Amounts in the in the
of Recognized Consolidated Consolidated Cash Collatere
Assets Statements of Statements of Financial (Received)
(Liabilities) Financial Positiot  Financial Positiot Instruments Pledged (1 Net Amount
Repurchase agreemel $ (1,658,56) $ - $ (1,658,56) $ 1,737,38  $ - $ 78,82(
Interest Rate Sway (30,199 - (30,199 39,47( - 9,271
Mortgage Option: - - - - - -
Treasury Future 10,62¢ (2,539 8,09¢ - - 8,09t
Total Liabilities $ (1,678,13) $ (2539 $ (1,680,66) $ 1,776,85.  $ - 3 96,18t

15. Management Agreement and Related Party Transéons
Management Agreeme

The Company entered into a management agreemdnEWAC, which provided for an initial term througrecember 31, 2010 with an
automatic one-year extension option and subjecettain termination rights. Effective November 2812, the management fee was reduced
from 1.50% to 0.75% per annum of gross stockholdysity, which remained in effect until the Comgamas current on all of its filings
required under applicable securities laws.

On August 8, 2014, the management agreement wasdea@nd restated. Effective August 8, 2014, thaeagement fee was increased to
1.20% of gross stockholders’ equity. In additiBIFDAC agreed to pay the Company a one-time paymeapproximately $24 million to
resolve issues raised in derivative demand lesieng to Chimera’s Board of Directors. This amaemuials a base management fee equal to
0.75% per annum of gross stockholders’ equity &snere in effect from January 1, 2012 through Blmber 27, 2012. This payment was
received by the Company during the third quarte2@if4 and is included in Other income in the Cadstéd Statement of Operations.

The agreement provides for a two year term endinguat 7, 2016 and may be automatically renewetiforyear terms at each anniversary
date unless at least two-thirds of the independiattors or the holders of a majority of the cansting shares of common stock elects not to
renew the agreement in their sole discretion anarfy or no reason. Unless the management agréésrterminated for “cause” or FIDAC
terminates the management agreement, in the evarthie management agreement is terminated oenetved, the Company must pay to
FIDAC a termination fee equal to two times the agerannual management fee, calculated as of theféhd most recently completed fiscal
quarter prior to the date of termination. FIDAC lmibntinue to provide services under the managemgreement for a period not less than
180 days from the date the Company delivers thieeobt to renew the management agreement.
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The Company may also terminate the managementragreavith 30 days’ prior notice from the Companly&ard of directors, without
payment of a termination fee, for cause or upohamnge of control of Annaly or FIDAC, each as ddiiie the management

agreement. FIDAC may terminate the managementaggst if the Company becomes required to registananvestment company under
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, suich termination deemed to occur immediately ige$ach event, in which case the
Company would not be required to pay a terminafii@ FIDAC may also decline to renew the managemgreement by providing the
Company with 180-days’ written notice, in which edse Company would not be required to pay a teatidn fee.

The management agreement provides that FIDAC waill gl past and future expenses that the Compatiypathe Audit Committee of the
Company incur to: (1) evaluate the Company’s actingipolicy related to the application of GAAP te Non-Agency RMBS portfolio (the
“Evaluation”); (2) restate the Company’s finangtdtements for the period covering 2008 throughl2dla result of the Evaluation (the
“Restatement Filing”)and (3) investigate and evaluate any shareholderati’e demands arising from the Evaluation andtierRestateme
Filing (the “Investigation”); provided, however,ahFIDAC'’s obligation to pay expenses applies dolgxpenses not paid by the Company’s
insurers under its insurance policies. Expensal isiclude, without limitation, fees and costsuned with respect to auditors, outside
counsel, and consultants engaged by the Compargrahd Audit Committee of the Company for the Enaion, Restatement Filing and the
Investigation. The amount paid by FIDAC relatedhese expenses for the quarters ended Septemb20B0and 2013 is $2 million and $3
million, respectively, and is presented in the @didated Statements of Operations and Comprehenhsieene (Loss) as Expense recoveries
from Manager. The amount paid by FIDAC relatethise expenses for each of the nine months engedriger 30, 2014 and 2013 is $5
million, respectively.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC fortsascurred on the Company’s behalf under the mamamt agreement. In addition, the
management agreement permits FIDAC to require tiragany to pay for its pro rata portion of rentep#lone, utilities, office furniture,
equipment, machinery and other office, internal anerhead expenses that FIDAC incurred in conneatith the Company’s

operations. These expenses are allocated betwB&CFand the Company based on the ratio of the Gomis proportion of gross assets
compared to the gross assets managed by FIDAG@datad at each quarter end. FIDAC and the Comypath modify this allocation
methodology, subject to the approval of the Comjsabygard of directors if the allocation becomegjimable (i.e., if the Company becomes
very highly leveraged compared to FIDAC's otherdsirand accounts). During the quarters and ninglms@nded September 30, 2014 and
2013, reimbursements to FIDAC were not significant.

The Company paid management fees of $9 millionghillion for each of the quarters ended SepterBbe2014 and 2013,

respectively. The Company paid management fe&22million and $20 million for each of the nine mtios ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. We also paid our Manager reinsdments of $2 million and $1 million for the oieas ended September 30, 2014 and
2013 and $5 million for each of the nine monthseeh8eptember 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Wbtie reimbursement payments is
attributable to the compensation of our named ekexofficers.

RCap

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an adtrative services agreement with RCap Securities (“RCap”). RCap is a SEC-
registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned sulsjddf Annaly that clears the Company’s securitiedes in return for normal and
customary fees that RCap charges for such servR€map may also provide brokerage services to tmagany from time to time. During tl
quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2011204 3, fees paid to RCAP were less than $1 millio

16. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoinedhrious claims and legal actions arising indhdinary course of business. In
connection with certain re-securitization transatsi engaged in by the Company, the Company hasbtfgation under certain circumstances
to repurchase assets from the VIE upon breachrtdingepresentations and warranties. Managersenttiaware of any contingencies that
require accrual or disclosure as of September @4 2nd December 31, 2013.

17. Subsequent Events

The Board of Directors has determined that thetkebwia quarterly dividend of $0.09 per share Fa fourth quarter of 2014.
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ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financi&ondition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s (“we”“our”) financial condition and results of operations skdug read in conjunction with t
consolidated financial statements and notes teetbtaements included in Item 1 of this quartegfyart on Form 10-Q.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
We make forward-looking statements in this reploat are subject to risks and uncertainties. Thexseafrd-looking statements include

information about possible or assumed future resaflbur business, financial condition, liquiditgsults of operations, plans and objectives.
When we use the words “believe,” “expect,” “dicipate,” “estimate,” “plan, " should,” “may,” “would,”

“will” or similar expressions, we intend to ideifit forward-looking statements. gt)ar:tttl-:‘mgﬁts rltra];;gﬁe following subjects, among others,
are forward-looking by their nature:

e our business and investment strategy;

e our ability to maintain existing financing arramgents and our ability to obtain future financimgpagements;

e our ability to timely file our periodic reportsitiv the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC;

e our expectations regarding materiality or sigrifice;

e the effectiveness of our disclosure controls jardedures;

e material weaknesses in our internal controls déwmancial reporting;

e additional information that may arise from thepration of our financial statements;

e inadequacy of or weakness in our internal costoser financial reporting of which we are not emtty aware or which have not been
detected,;

e general volatility of the securities markets ihigh we invest;
e the impact of and changes to various governmegrpms;

e our expected investments;

e changes in the value of our investments;

e interest rate mismatches between our investnamdour borrowings used to finance such purchases;
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e changes in interest rates and mortgage prepaynaest
e effects of interest rate caps on our adjustade-investments;
e rates of default, delinquencies or decreasedvegaates on our investments;

e prepayments of the mortgage and other loans Iyiaigiour mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS, theoasset-backed securities, or
ABS;

e the degree to which our hedging strategies magayr not protect us from interest rate volatility;

e impact of and changes in governmental regulatitanslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and aimikatters;

e availability of investment opportunities in restate-related and other securities;

e availability of qualified personnel,

e estimates relating to our ability to make disitibns to our stockholders in the future;

e our understanding of our competition;

e market trends in our industry, interest rates,dbbt securities markets or the general economy;

e our ability to maintain our classification asealestate investment trust, or REIT, for fedarabme tax purposes; and

e our ability to maintain our exemption from regisima under the Investment Company Act of 1940,raeraded, or 1940 Ac
The forwardlooking statements are based on our beliefs, adsomspand expectations of our future performanaking into account ¢
information currently available to us. You shoulut place undue reliance on these forwiaking statements. These beliefs, assumption
expectations can change as a result of many pessiants or factors, not all of which are knownuso Some of these factors are desci
under the caption “Risk Factors” in our 2013 FoltfK. If a change occurs, our business, financialdition, liquidity and results «
operations may vary materially from those expresseatlr forward-looking statements. Any forwdabking statement speaks only as of
date on which it is made. New risks and uncertagngérise from time to time, and it is impossible dse to predict those events or how |

may affect us. Except as required by law, we areobligated to, and do not intend to, update eiseeany forwardeoking statement
whether as a result of new information, future ésvem otherwise.
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Executive Summary

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced ojpeiabn November 21, 2007. We acquire, eitherctiyer indirectly through our
subsidiaries, residential mortgage-backed secsyitieRMBS, residential mortgage loans, commero@ltgage loans, real estate related
securities and various other asset classes. Wextamally managed by Fixed Income Discount Adwigsdoompany, which we refer to as
FIDAC or our Manager. FIDAC is a fixed-income istment management company that is registered ese@stment adviser with the

SEC. FIDAC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ann&gpital Management, Inc., or Annaly. FIDAC hagaald range of experience in
managing investments in Agency RMBS, which are gage pass-through certificates, collateralized gagr¢ obligations, or CMOs, and
other RMBS representing interests in or obligatibasked by pools of mortgage loans issued or gieedrby Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and
Ginnie Mae, Non-Agency RMBS, collateralized debligdtions, or CDOs, and other real estate relatgdstments.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, prify through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achig objective by investing in a diversified inteent portfolio of RMBS, residential
mortgage loans, real estate-related securitievandus other asset classes, subject to maintadundREIT status and exemption from
registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, B3/ and CDOs we purchase may include investmermtegaad non-investment grade
classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated and noedralasses.

We rely on our Manager's expertise in identifyirggats within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on
various factors, including expected cash yieldatre¢ value, risk-adjusted returns, current anggeted credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentpaogcted supply and demand, credit and markietcosicentration limits, liquidity, cost
of financing and financing availability, as well agintaining our REIT qualification and our exeroptifrom registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek sonmiee the returns from our investment
portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined wothr Manager’s experience, will enable us to payddinds and achieve capital appreciation
through various changing interest rate and credikes and provide attractive long-term returnateestors.

Our targeted asset classes and the principal imezgs we have made and in which we may in the dunwrest are:

Asset Class Principal Investments

RMBS e Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade aond-investment grade classes, including the BBerat
B-rated and nc-rated classe

e Agency RMBS
e Interes-only (“I0”) RMBS

Residential Mortgac e Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage ldaatsdonform to the underwriting guidelines of Fankiae
Loans and Freddie Mac, which we refer to as Agency Ginest and jumbo prime mortgage loans, which are
mortgage loans that conform to the Agency Guidslimecept as to loan si

e Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that Imaag been originated using documentation stant
that are less stringent than the documentatiordatas applied by certain other first lien mortgbasn
purchase programs, such as the Agency Guideline$idve one or more compensating factors such as a
borrower with a strong credit or mortgage historgignificant asset
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e Seasoned sub-prime mortgage loans, which argage loans that may have been originated using
documentation standards that are less stringentghme mortgage loans
and that have borrowers who have ti@dinortgage history which would not meet the deads for prime
mortgage loans or £-A mortgage loans

e FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage lodret tomply with the underwriting guidelines of thederal
Housing Administration (FHA) or Department of VetarAffairs (VA) and which are guaranteed by the FHA
or VA, respectively

e Mortgage servicing rights associated with resiigé mortgage loans, which reflect the value @& tirture
stream of expected cash flows from the contracatghts to service a given pool of residential magg loan:

Commercial e First or second lien loans secured by multifgrpiloperties, which are residential rental progsrtionsisting

Mortgage Loans of five or more dwelling units; and mixed residehtir other commercial properties; retail propertifice
properties; or industrial properties, which mayray not conform to the Agency Guidelir

Other Asset-Backed e CMBS

Securities

e Debt and equity tranches of CD

e Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investagrade and non-investment grade classes, imgjudi
the BE-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

Hedging Instrument e Swaps

Swaptions

Futures

Index options

Mortgage option:

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquiNieg-Agency and Agency RMBS
and on purchasing residential mortgage loans that been originated by select originators, inclgdire retail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. At September 30, 2014, baseébdeoamortized cost balance of our interest earagsgts, approximately 50% of our
investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, 16% of owdstment portfolio was Non-Agency RMBS, and 34%uwif investment portfolio was
securitized residential mortgage loans. At Decarie 2013, based on the amortized cost balanoerahterest earning assets,
approximately 36% of our investment portfolio wageicy RMBS, 50% of our investment portfolio was Negency RMBS, and 14% of o
investment portfolio was securitized residentiaktgage loans. During the third quarter of 2014 ,imezeased our securitized loans held for
investment by $4.8 billion, primarily financed wislecuritized debt collateralized by the loans aeglduring the quarter.

We have engaged in transactions with residentiatgage lending operations of leading commerciakbamd other originators in which we
identified and re-underwrote residential mortgaggnk owned by such entities, and purchased andtszeni such residential mortgage
loans. In the past we have also acquired formi&fp-rated Non-Agency RMBS and immediately re-setimeid those securities. We sold
the resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBS and regdithe rated or unrated mezzanine RMBS.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We expect to adjust
our strategy to changing market conditions by sigfour asset allocations across these various elesses as interest rate and credit cycles
change over time. We believe that our strategymhined with FIDAC'’s experience, will enable us yplividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. eifeect to take a long-term view of assets andliliais, and our reported earnings and
estimates of the fair value of our investmentdatand of a financial reporting period will notrsiticantly impact our objective of providing
attractive risk-adjusted returns to our stockhdaddmrer the long-term.
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We use leverage to seek to increase our potertialns and to finance the acquisition of our ass@isr income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income wea@aour assets and the cost of our borrowings. eWpect to finance our investments
using a variety of financing sources including, wia&ailable, repurchase agreements, warehousdiésciind securitizations. We may
manage our debt and interest rate risk by utilizimgrest rate hedges, such as interest rate swaps, options and futures to reduce the effect
of interest rate fluctuations related to our finagcsources.

We have elected and believe we are organized areldgerated in a manner that qualifies us to bedas a REIT under the Code. A REIT
generally will not be subject to federal income textaxable income that is distributed to stockbdd Furthermore, substantially all of our
assets consist of qualified REIT real estate ageéthe type described in Code Section 856(c)(5Ye calculate that at least 75% of our a:
were qualified REIT assets, as defined in the Cttehe quarters ended September 30, 2014 angktirs ended December 31, 2013 and
2012. We also calculate that our revenues qudilffie the 75% REIT income test and for the 95% REBEome test for the quarter and nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and for the yadexidDecember 31, 2013 and 2012. We also me&ll Rquirements regarding the
ownership of our common stock and the distribubbour REIT taxable income. Therefore, for theeraand nine months ended Septen
30, 2014 and for the years ended December 31, 20d 2012, we believe that we qualified as a REldeutthe Code.

We operate our business to be exempt from regmtrander the 1940 Act, and therefore we are reguio invest a substantial majority of
our assets in loans secured by mortgages on radé esd real estate-related assets. Subjectitaaimng our REIT qualification and our
1940 Act exemption, we do not have any limitationghe amounts we may invest in any of our targateset classes.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentageun assets that will be invested in each asseisabr whether we will invest in other
classes of investments. We may change our investstietegy and policies without a vote of our ktadders.

Net Income Summary

The table below presents our net income on a GAadistfor the quarters and nine months ended Septe®®h 2014 and 2013.
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Net Income (Loss)
(dollars in thousand:

(unaudited
For the Quarter Ende For the Nine Months Ende
September September September September
30, 2014 30, 2013 30, 2014 30, 2013
Net Interest Income:
Interest incom: $ 86,61 $ 38,81¢ $ 171,12 $ 101,51-
Interest expens (9,902 (1,580 (15,137 (5,042
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 103,74. 91,54 274,21! 282,20°
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of consolidated VI (28,989 (23,499 (66,859 (75,477)
Net interest income (expens 151,46¢ 105,28 363,34¢ 303,20
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (72€) (2,209 (4,939 (2,209
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (1,264 (14,246 (3,932 (20,409
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (1,990 (16,455 (8,870 (22,61¢)
Other gains (losses)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 12,97¢ 27 (11,720 18,60
Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (23,159 (3,390 (48,69 (14,319
Realized gains (losses) on terminations of intaiEst swap: - - - -
Net gains (losses) on derivativ (10,177 (3,369 (60,417 4,29t
Net unrealized gains (losses) on financial instnotmat fair value 162,92: (27,879 183,72. (41,867)
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investr 64,10" 18,81¢ 68,14: 72,93¢
Gain on deconsolidatic - - 47,84¢ -
Realized losses on principal w-downs of No-Agency RMBS - - (2,189 -
Total other gains (losse 216,85: (12,427) 237,11 35,37
Net investment income (los 366,33( 76,41( 591,59! 315,96.
Other (income) and expenses
Management fee 9,381 6,57( 21,87: 19,51°
Expense recoveries from Manay (1,975 (1,082) (4,820 (6,252)
Net management fes 7,40¢ 5,48¢ 17,05 13,26¢
General and administrative expen 5,77 3,62¢ 15,71¢ 13,66¢
(Income)/expense for change in loan loss provi (645) (69 (112) (1,349
Other (income) expen: (23,787) - (23,787) -
Total other expense (11,250 9,04: 8,87¢ 25,58t
Income (loss) before income taxe 377,58( 67,36 582,71¢ 290,37
Income taxe: - - 2 2
Net income (loss $ 37758 % 67,36 $ 582,71 $ 290,37!

Our net income increased by $310 million to $378iom, or $0.37 per average basic common sharghquarter ended September 30, :
as compared to $67 million, or $0.07 per averag&climmmon share, for the quarter ended Septenth@033. The increase in earnings for
the quarter ended September 30, 2014 over the parioel of 2013 is primarily attributable to the olga in unrealized gain on financial
instruments at fair value, which is recognizedaméngs, of $191 million. The unrealized gain orahcial instruments at fair value is
primarily driven by a $139 million gain on the Ieaheld for investment acquired in the third quaidewhich we elected the fair value option
with changes in fair value recognized in earninghkis gain is unrealized and may not ultimatelyrdaized and does not affect our ability to
pay dividends.

During the third quarter of 2014, we increasedintarest income, net of interest expense, by $4Bomito $151 million as compared to $105
million in the same period of 2013. During thedhjguarter of 2014, we recognized net realizedgamsales of investments of $64 million,
an increase of $45 million over the same perio2l0h3. During the third quarter, we also receivexha time $24 million payment from our
manager during the quarter.

Our net income increased by $292 million to $588iom, or $0.57 per average basic common sharghf®nine months ended September
2014 as compared to $290 million, or $0.28 perayebasic common share, for the nine months engeidi®@ber 30, 2013. The increase in
earnings for the nine months ended September 3@, @@er the same period of 2013 is again primatilsibutable to the change in unreali.
gain on financial instruments at fair value, whisliecognized in earnings, of $226 million.

During the first nine months of 2014, we increasadinterest income, net of interest expense, liyrfilion to $363 million for the first nine
months of 2014 as compared to $303 million in e period of 2013. The Company has added positmhoth its Agency and loans hi



for investment portfolios during 2014 which we egip® have a positive impact on net interest incower the next few quarters.

We discuss the changes in our net income in grelatail in the discussion on our results of opereatibelow.
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Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be &fteby various factors, many of which are beyondamntrol. Our results of operations will
primarily depend on, among other things, the I®felur net interest income, the market value ofassgets, and the supply of and demand for
such assets. Economic trends, both macro as svtlose directly affecting the residential housimayket, and the supply and demand of
RMBS may affect our operations and financial resuliVe also evaluate market information regardimgent residential mortgage loan
underwriting criteria and loan defaults to managemrtfolio of assets, leverage, and debt. Ouinierest income, which reflects the
amortization of purchase premiums and accretiatisgfounts, varies primarily as a result of charigesterest rates, borrowing costs, credit
impairment losses, and prepayment speeds, whizlmisasurement of how quickly borrowers pay dowrutiygaid principal balance on their
mortgage loans. Further description of these fadtoprovided below.

Prepayment Speec Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constappéyiment Rate, or CPR, vary according to inteagss, the type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, angeotfactors, none of which can be predicted with @rtainty. In general, when interest
rates rise, it is relatively less attractive fortoavers to refinance their mortgage loans, and@sat, prepayment speeds tend to
decrease. When interest rates fall, prepaymemetdspiend to increase. For mortgage loan and RMB&stments purchased at a premium, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of inconeamedecreases as the purchase premium on the horadtizes faster than

expected. Conversely, decreases in prepaymendspegult in increased income and can extend thiechever which we amortize the
purchase premium. For mortgage loan and RMBS invexsts purchased at a discount, as prepayment sipeeease, the amount of income
we earn increases from the acceleration of theeioarof the discount into interest income. Congbrsdecreases in prepayment speeds r
in decreased income as the accretion of the pueatiasount into interest income occurs over a lopgeiod. Recently, the correlation
between interest rates and prepayment has notelanormal trends for certain asset classes. ®aednomic hardship, some borrowers
have been unable to refinance their loans as umiergvstandards are more stringent and credit itimmd remain restrictive.

Rising Interest Rate Environme As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prapat speeds generally decrease. Rising inteatest,r
however, increase our financing costs which maylt@s a net negative impact on our net interesbime. In addition, if we acquire Agency
and Non-Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly resg#justable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, and threefigaeyear hybrid ARMs, such
interest rate increases could result in decreasesrinet investment income, as the increase iradjuistable rate assets may increase slower
than our adjustable rate financing. We expectdhbatixed-rate assets would decline in value isgg interest rate environment and that our
net interest spreads on fixed rate assets coulthden a rising interest rate environment to thteat such assets are financed with floating
rate debt.

Falling Interest Rate Environmer As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prapat speeds generally decrease. Rising intextest,r
however, increase our financing costs which maylt@s a net negative impact on our net interesbime. The company attempts to mitigate
some of the risk of rising interest rates by usimgrest rate derivative hedges such as swapsgefiind options that are designed to increase
in value if interest rates rise. When interestsdtll, the value of such interest rate derivatiatso fall in value as the risk the derivative is
designed to hedge is lower. We expect our inteegsthedges to lose value in a falling interets esmvironment and reduce net income.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is on acquiringessted Non-Agency RMBS that have been downgradealise of defaults in the
mortgages collateralizing such RMBS. When we aegsiich RMBS we attempt to purchase it at a prcé shat its loss-adjusted return
profile is in line with our targeted yields. Weain the risk of potential credit losses on altleé residential mortgage loans we hold in our
portfolio as well as all of the Non-Agency RMBS. eVdttempt to mitigate credit risk in the assetct@la process. Prior to the purchase of
investments, we conduct a credit-risk based arsbfsihe collateral securing our investment thalides examining borrower characteristics,
geographic concentrations, current and projectéidgleencies, current and projected severities,atdal and expected prepayment speeds
among other characteristics to estimate expectm We also acquire assets which we believe ob thigh credit quality.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as meastogthe aggregate unpaid principal balance of contgage
loans and aggregate principal balance of our mgetgelated securities and the other assets weiswatso a key revenue driver. Generally,
as the size of our investment portfolio grows, aheunt of interest income we receive increase® ldiflger investment portfolio, however,
may result in increased expenses if we incur aufthi interest expense to finance the purchasercdssets.
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Financial Condition
Estimated Economic Book Valu

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotatas analysis and discussion of financial infoliorathat utilizes or presents ratios
based on GAAP book value. The table and discussgtow present our estimated economic book valife.calculate and disclose this non-
GAAP measurement because we believe it represam@stamate of the fair value of the assets we omar® able to dispose of, pledge, or
otherwise monetize. The estimated economic bobalevshould not be viewed in isolation and is neubstitute for book value computed in
accordance with GAAP.

GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securitmatand re-securitization transactions where we lietermined that we are the primary
beneficiary. In these transactions, we transfeaesibts to the trusts, which issued tranches @frsand subordinate notes or certificates. We
sold the senior tranches and therefore have naneomg involvement in these trusts other than beirglder of notes or certificates issued by
the trusts, with the same rights as other holdktiseonotes or certificates, except as it relabecetrtain VIEs collateralized by loans held for
investment. As it relates solely to certain VIEfateralized by loans held for investment, we hthesability to approve loan modifications
and determine the course of action to be takehrafates to loans in technical default, includivigether or not to proceed with

foreclosure. The notes and certificates we owhwlesie issued by the trusts are largely subordihetterests in those trusts. The trusts have
no recourse to our assets other than pursuanteaah by us of the transaction documents relatéuettransfer of the assets by us to the
trusts, but are presented as if we own 100% ofrtie.

For re-securitized RMBS transactions and loan s$izations, we present the pre-securitized assetsterred into the consolidated trusts in
our Consolidated Statements of Financial CondiéisNon-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidatedaldei interest entities or Securitized
loans held for investment. Post securitization R3VH&sets sold are presented as liabilities in ons@idated Statements of Financial
Condition as Securitized debt, collateralized byndMgency RMBS and Securitized debt, collateralizeddans held for investment. We hi
presented the underlying securities we transfewede trusts for the calculation of GAAP book vaht fair value and recorded the
corresponding liability for the notes or certifieatsold to third parties at amortized cost. Falue adjustments that are not credit related are
recorded in Other comprehensive income (loss). iCreldted impairments are deemed other-than-teerp@nd are recorded in earnings.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetizeedgplthe RMBS or loans we transferred into thdgruge also present our estimated
economic book value. We believe this measure sepits the estimated value of the securities isbydhlese trusts that we own. In contrast
to GAAP book value, our estimated economic booki@aonsiders only the assets we own or are allispose of, pledge, or otherwise
monetize. To determine our estimated economic lvatike, we consider only the fair value of the saiecertificates issued by the
securitization and re-securitization trusts thatagially own. Accordingly, our estimated econotmok value does not include assets or
liabilities for which we have no direct ownershgpecifically the notes or certificates of the sé@ation and re-securitization trusts that were
sold to third parties.

At September 30, 2014, the difference between GAAEK value and estimated economic book value wisdaed to be $359 million, or
$0.35 per share. At December 31, 2013, the diffexdbetween GAAP book value and estimated econbatk value was determined to be
$438 million, or $0.42 per share. This differefcerimarily driven by the value of the RMBS assetshave retained in these re-
securitization transactions as compared to theavaliconsolidated loans and securities net of RMB&ets sold, but treated as a secured
financing and recorded at amortized cost on thestant of financial condition. In these re-sedzaiion transactions, we have generally
retained the subordinated, typically non-ratedt fioss notes or certificates issued by the sezatiibn trusts. These securities are complex,
typically locked out as to principal repaymentatelely illiquid, and do not necessarily appreciatalepreciate in tandem with the broader
Non-Agency RMBS market or with the loans on securitiesed by the trusts. As the senior notes paywfexpect the difference between
our economic and our GAAP book value to decredse tables below present the adjustments to GAAKK balue that we believe are
necessary to adequately reflect our calculatiosstimated economic book value as of September(B@l and December 31, 2013.
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September 30, 201

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

GAAP Book Estimated Economic
Value Adjustments Book Value

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior 239,93 $ 218,71 % 458,65:

Senior intere-only 207,84( 70,707 278,54

Subordinatec 439,96° 1,970,55! 2,410,52!

Subordinated intere-only 7,34(C 3,61( 10,95(

RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 2,528,33! (2,528,33) -
Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Pas-through 7,955,80! - 7,955,80!

Interes-only 114,16¢ - 114,16¢
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aage for loan losse 678,86t (678,86¢) -
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair e: 4,816,55 (4,816,55) -
Other asset 502,16: - 502,16:
Total asset 17,490,97 $ (5,760,16) $ 11,730,81
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreemel 7,838,16. - 7,838,16:
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 742,89: (742,89 -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestmen 572,74. (572,74 -
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized dgris held for investme 3,737,60: (3,737,60) -
Other liabilities (1) 1,008,34: (347,800 660,54:
Total liabilities 13,899,74 (5,401,03) 8,498,70!
Total stockholders' equit 3,591,22' (359,129 3,232,10!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ 17,490,977 $ (5,760,16) $ 11,730,81
Book Value Per Shai 35 $ (0.35) $ 3.1

(1) Primarily payable for investments purchas

December 31, 201

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

GAAP Book Estimated Economic
Value Adjustments Book Value

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior 89,687 $ 12,36F $ 102,05:

Senior intere-only 229,06! 116,95: 346,01t

Subordinatec 457,56 1,593,92. 2,051,49:

Subordinated intere-only 16,57 28C 16,85:

RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 2,981,57 (2,981,57) -
Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Pas-through 1,954,791 - 1,954,791

Interes-only 42,78 - 42,78:
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aaae for loan losse 783,48:¢ (783,48 -
Other asset 380,55t - 380,55t
Total asset 6,936,08. $ (2,041,53) $ 4,894,541
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, RM 1,658,56 - 1,658,56
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 933,73. (933,73) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifigestmen 669,98: (669,98)) -
Other liabilities 342,29 - 342,29
Total liabilities 3,604,57 (1,603,71) 2,000,85:
Total stockholders' equit 3,331,511 (437,827 2,893,68:
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ 6,936,08. $ (2,041,53) $ 4,894,54i
Book Value Per Shai 324 $ (0.42) $ 2.82

Our estimate of economic book value has imporiaritdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as gfant in time and subject to significant
judgment, primarily the estimate of the fair vabfehe securities issued by the trusts which we anth can freely sell or pledge. Should
sell the assets in our portfolio, we may realizeéamally different proceeds from the sale than \agenestimated as of the reporting date.
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The calculation of estimated economic book valuscdbed above is used by management to underdtarfdit value of the assets we own
and the liabilities for which we are legally obligd, and is presented for informational use ofiliie estimated economic book value should
not be viewed in isolation and is not a substifatebook value computed in accordance with GAAP.

Portfolio Review

During the nine months ended September 30, 2014n@ygregate basis, we purchased $8.2 billiod,&bB billion, and received $654
million in principal payments related to our AgerRiIBS, Non-Agency RMBS, and loans held for invesiimdn addition, we used $564
million of proceeds from our assets to repay ppaton our securitized debt during this same periblde $8.2 billion of purchases includes
$774 million used to acquire our interests in thelp of seasoned sub-prime residential mortgagesidaring the third quarter of 2014.

The following table summarizes certain charactessaf our portfolio at September 30, 2014 and Dewer 31, 2013.

September 30, December 31,
2014 2013
Interest earning assets at pe-end (1) $ 16,988,80 $ 6,555,52!
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 12,891,40 $ 3,262,27.
Leverage at peric-end 3.8:1 1.0:1
Leverage at peri-end (recourse 2.6:1 0.5:1
Portfolio Composition, at amortized cc
Non-Agency RMBS 15.%% 49.8%
Senior 1.53% 1.5%
Senior, interest onl 1.5% 5.1%
Subordinatet 2.1% 6.C%
Subordinated, interest on 0.1% 0.2%
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 10.9% 36.5%
Agency RMBS 0.C% 36.1%
Pas-through 49.7% 35.2%
Interes-only 0.7% 0.8%
Securitized loan 33.1% 14.1%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 92.2% 76.2%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 7.7% 23.1%

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale

The following table presents details of each aslsesis in our portfolio at September 30, 2014 andeb®er 31, 2013. The principal or
notional value represents the interest income egipalance of each class. The weighted averageecgare weighted by each investment’s
respective principal/notional value in the assass!
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September 30, 201
Weightec  Weightec

Principal Average  Average
or Weighte( 3 12 Principal
Notional Weightec Average Month Month Weightec Writedown:
Value at Average  Weightec Yield at CPR CPR Weighted Average Weighted During
PeriodEnd Amortizec  Average Weightec Period- at at Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in Cost Fair Average End Period- Period- Delinquenc' Severity Credit (dollars in
thousands Basis Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhancemer  thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 31261¢ $ 68.4€ $ 76.7¢ 2.4% 5.5% 11.2% 11.4% 31.6% 66.7% 9.7% $ 1,11¢
Senior, interest onl $5,383,45 % 444§  3.8¢ 1.6% 15.2% 13.7% 13.¢% 21.1% 50.7% 0.% $ -
Subordinate« $ 689,33 $ 4881 $ 63.8¢ 3.2% 10.5% 15.5% 15.9% 15.9% 46.(% 11.7% $ 6,04%
Subordinated, interest on $ 218527 $ 451 $ 3.3¢ 0.%% 8.4% 13.(% 13.&% 14./% 45.% 0.(% $ -
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI $3,226,290 $ 546 $ 79.4¢€ 4.€% 17.1% 11.8% 11.1% 23.% 58.4% 1.3% $ 27,23
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Pas-through $7,553,61. $ 104.9¢ $ 105.3. 4.C% 3.1% 6.C% 9.C% NA NA 0.(% $ -
Interes-only $2,016,71 $ 581 $ b5.6€ 1.1% 3.7% 9.1% 9.1% NA NA 0.(% $ -
Securitized loan $5,421,97. $ 99.0¢ $ 101.3¢ 6.€% 49.£% 7.1% 6.€% 5.C% 50.6% 36.5% $ 57C
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weightedefage Yield is calculated using each investmeespective amortized co:
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daliging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, 1-month loss, etc.
December 31, 201
Weightec  Weightet
Principal Average  Average
or Weightec 3 12 Principal
Notional Weightec Average Month Month Weightec Writedowns
Value at Average  Weighte( Yield at CPR CPR Weighted Average Weighted During
PeriodEnd Amortizec  Average Weightec Period- at at Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in Cost Fair Average End Period- Period-  Delinquenc  Severity Credit (dollars in
thousands Basis Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhancemel  thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 128217 $ 6927 $ 69.9¢ 1.4% 5.% 12.1% 15.1% 38.(% 63.2% 8% $ 297
Senior, interest onl $5,742,78 $ 49: $ 3.9¢ 1.4% 17.2% 15.2% 16.£% 19.% 51.1% 0.(% $ -
Subordinate( $ 830,63: $ 40.9¢ $ 55.0¢ 2.%% 13.5% 17.(% 19.6% 16.2% 49.6% 12.6% $ 6,56
Subordinated, interest on $ 274,46, $ 53/ $ 6.04 1.7% 9.(% 17.(% 18.1% 15.2% 45.(% 0.% $ -
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI $3,912377 $ 5417 $ 77.8% 4.7% 15.8% 11.7% 14.7% 25.8% 57.%% 16% $ 34,38¢
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Pas-through $1,898,13 $ 104.5. $ 105.2¢ 3.6% 3.% 7.7% 18.2% NA NA 0.(% $ -
Interes-only $ 24734 $ 17.6¢ $ 17.3( 3.2% 5.2% 9.8% 17.5% NA NA 0.% $ -
Securitized loan $ 776,07« $ 102.1: $ 98.2¢ 4.7% 3.5% 18.2% 36.4% 1.5% 22.2% 16.4% $ (6)

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weightedefage Yield is calculated using each investmeespective amortized co:
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to dalieing widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc.

Based on the projected cash flows for our Non-AgeRRIBS that are not of high credit quality, a pontiof the original purchase discount is
designated as Accretable Discount, which refldespurchase discount expected to be accretednitgest income, and a portion is
designated as Non-Accretable Difference, whichesgnts the contractual principal on the securiy ifnot expected to be collected. The
amount designated as Non-Accretable Difference besgdjusted over time, based on the actual perfazenaf the security, its underlying
collateral, actual and projected cash flow fromhscallateral, economic conditions and other factrthe performance of a security is more
favorable than previously estimated, a portiorhef amount designated as Non-Accretable Differerag Ime accreted into interest income
over time. Conversely, if the performance of a siégis less favorable than previously estimatée, amounts designated as Non-Accretable
Difference may increase, resulting in an OTTI loss.

The following table presents changes to Accret&lideount and Non-Accretable Difference as it paeddb our entire Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio for assets with purchase discounts dutihmgprevious five quarters.

For the Quarter Ende
September 30, December 31, September 30,
2014 June 30, 201 March 31, 201« 2013 2013
(dollars in thousand
Accretable Discour

Balance, beginning of peric $ 951,30 $ 990,20: $ 996,69: $ 1,012,551 $ 1,026,92
Accretion of discoun (39,067 (42,107 (40,309 (40,817 (40,007
Purchase 126,75: (6,779 18,81t - -
Sales and deconsolidati (66,167) (669) (3,849 - (6,65%)
Transfers from credit reser 11,80¢ 17,13« 31,66¢ 28,96: 35,05¢
Transfers to credit reser (7,601 (6,489 (12,826) (3,969 (2,806
Balance, end of peric $ 977,04. $ 951,30' $ 990,20. $ 996,69: $ 1,012,51
For the Quarter Ende
September 3( December 31 September 3(
2014 June 30, 201 March 31, 201« 2013 2013

(dollars in thousand
Non-Accretable Differenc

Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,046,551 $ 1,171,13¢  $ 1,217,79. $ 1,261,994 $ 1,370,79:.
Principal Writedown: (81,289 (41,15Y) (47,079 (41,709 (93,059
Purchase 126,75: (6,779 18,81¢ - -
Sales and deconsolidati (156,09¢) (71,389 (1,099 - -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 1,99( 5,347 1,53¢ 22,54¢ 16,45t
Transfers from credit reser (11,809 (17,139 (31,66¢€) (28,96:) (35,059
Transfers to credit reser 7,601 6,48¢ 12,82¢ 3,96¢ 2,80¢




Balance, end of peric $ 933,66 $ 1,046,511 $ 1,171,131 $ 1,217,79 _ $ 1,261,94
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our financial statements in accordaritteagcounting principles generally accepted inlinited States, or GAAP, which
requires the use of estimates and assumptions. déamnt has discussed and reviewed the developssettion, and disclosure of critical
accounting estimates with the Company’s Audit Cotteai Management believes that the most criticabasting policies and estimates,
since these estimates require significant judgnaeetjnterest income and other-than-temporary impait, or OTTI, on NorAgency RMBS
the determination of the appropriate accounting ehéamr Non-Agency RMBS, the impact of default amdgayment assumptions on RMBS,
and fair value measurements. Financial resultsdcoelmaterially different if other methodologiesreveised or if management modified its
assumptions.

For a discussion of the Company’s critical accougpolicies and estimates, see “Critical Accounfudicies and Estimates” in Part 11, Iltem
7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€ondition and Results of Operations” includedhi@ Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

Refer to Note 2(q) in the Notes to ConsolidatechRimal Statements for a discussion of accountindagce recently adopted by the Comp
or expected to be adopted by the Company in thedut

Results of Operations for the Quarters and Nine Moths Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Our primary source of income is interest incomenedron our assets and our primary expense is gttexpense, including our periodic
interest costs of interest rate derivatives.

Interest Income

Interest income increased by $60 million to $190iom for the quarter ended September 30, 2014 f$d:30 million for the same period of
2013. The increase is primarily due to the ineeaasagency holdings of approximately $6.0 billexguired at the end of the second quarter
and the increase in securitized loans of approxm&i4.8 billion acquired during the third quart@tet interest income on our Agency RM
portfolio increased by $35 million and net inter@siome on our securitized loan portfolio increabgd25 million. Both portfolios increas:
from the prior quarter due to significant purchas€ke significant increase in these two groupsitrest earning assets is expected to
contribute to our interest income earned for fupggods.

Interest income increased by $62 million to $448iom for the nine months ended September 30, Z6dm $384 million for the same period
of 2013. The increase is also primarily due toeased Agency RMBS and securitized loans during 20&r the same period of the prior
year.

Interest Expenst

Interest expense increased by $14 million to $38anifor the quarter ended September 30, 2014 &% million for the same period of
2013. The increase is primarily due to increaséerést expense on our repurchase agreementoaatedser extent, the increase in our
securitized debt. Our repurchase agreement oldigatcreased by $6.2 billion to $7.8 billion asS#ptember 30, 2014 as compared to $1.6
billion as of September 30, 2013. This increasmudwing was used to acquire both Agency and Noe#ty RMBS. Interest expense for
GAAP reporting does not include the periodic cadtsur derivatives, which are reported separately.

Interest expense increased by $1 million to $8%aniffor the nine months ended September 30, 284 $81 million for the same period of
2013. Anincrease in interest expense of $10a@nilbn our repurchase agreements and $6 millioruosexcuritized debt collateralized by
residential mortgage loans was largely offset lpoed financing costs of $15 million on our sedzet debt collateralized by Non-Agency
RMBS as this financing has continued to pay doWwhe interest expense on the securitized debt ciolaget! with the securitized loans
acquired in the third quarter did not significanittypact the year to date interest expense asittainding was acquired in the second half of
the third quarter.
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Net Economic Interest Incom

Our economic net interest income equals interesinre excluding interest earned on cash and castiadents less interest expense and
realized losses on our interest rate hedges. Hegourpose of computing economic net interest ircand ratios relating to cost of funds
measures throughout this section, interest expesieles net payments on our interest rate swabpshws presented as a part of Realized
gains (losses) on derivatives in our ConsolidatedeBhents of Operations and Comprehensive Incdnterest rate hedges are used to
manage the increase in interest paid on repurcdm@sements in a rising rate environment. Presgtii@ net contractual interest payment:
interest rate hedges with the interest paid oméstebearing liabilities reflects our total contread interest payments. We believe this
presentation is useful to investors because tleisgmtation depicts the economic value of our imuent strategy, by showing actual interest
expense and net interest income. Where indicattstest expense, including interest payments tarést rate hedges, is referred to as
economic interest expense. Where indicated, netast income reflecting interest payments on @stierate hedges, is referred to as econ
net interest income.

The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAkeasurements reflected in the Management's Bignuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Add: Net Less: Ne
Realized Realized Economic
GAAP GAAP Losses on Economic GAAP Net Losses on Net
Interest Interest Interest Rat: Interest Interest Interest Rat: Interest
Income Expense Hedges Expense Income Hedges Income (1)
For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2 $ 190,35 $ 38,88t $ 17,13: $ 56,01¢ $ 151,46¢ $ 17,13 $ 134,33
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $ 13431 $ 20,68 $ 12,06 $ 32,74. $ 11363 $ 12,06 $ 101,57
For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 120660 $ 22,428  $ 565( $ 28,07t $ 98,24: $ 565( $ 92,58¢
For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2 $ 128,06. $ 21,488 $ 5477 $ 26,96: $ 106,57 $ 547: $ 101,09
For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2 $ 130,36: $ 25,07¢ % 545¢ $ 30,53 $ 105,28 $ 545¢ $ 99,82«

(1) Excludes interest income on cash and cash algmis.

Net Interest Rate Sprea

The following table shows our average earning adselt, interest earned on assets, yield on avénégrest earning assets, average debt
balance, economic interest expense, economic avee of funds, economic net interest income,regtdnterest rate spread for the periods
presented.
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For the Quarter Ende
September 30, 201 September 30, 201

(dollars in thousand:

Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost
Assets:
Interes-earning assets (1
Agency RMBS $ 7,614,23 64,06t 3.31% $ 2,061,27 16,59¢ 3.22%
Non-Agency RMBS 812,66 22,54¢ 11.1% 671,71: 22,21* 13.2%
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V 1,787,99. 71,10¢ 15.91% 2,217,07 82,77¢ 14.9%
Jumbo Prime securitized residential mortgage |befc
for investmen 710,86! 5,28: 2.97% 885,96! 8,761 3.9€%
Seasoned sub-prime securitized residential mortigeges
held for investmen 1,556,94 27,35:. 7.02% - - -
Total $ 12,482,71 190,35: 6.1(% $ 5,836,022 130,35° 8.92%
Liabilities and stockholders' equit
Interes-bearing liabilities
Agency repurchase agreements $ 7,181,00! 23,87 1.3% $ 1,533,73 7,03¢ 1.84%
Non-Agency repurchase agreeme 560,83t 3,16: 2.26% - - -
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 765,02¢ 13,54( 7.08% 1,067,70 16,90¢ 6.3%%
Securitized debt, collateralized by jumbo primedestial
mortgage loan 588,69¢ 5,20¢ 3.54% 759,06¢ 6,58¢ 3.47%
Securitized debt, collateralized by seasoned sirbepr
residential mortgage loai 1,255,68! 10,23¢ 3.26% - - -
Total $ 10,351,25 56,01¢ 2.16% $ 3,360,50 30,53 3.62%
Net economic interest income/net interest rate spael 134,33: 3.9% 99,82« 5.2%
Net interesi-earning assets/net interest margil $ 2,131,46! 43(% $ 2,475,551 6.8%
Ratio of interest-earning assets to interest bearing liabilitie: 1.21 1.7¢
(1) Interes-earning assets at amortized ¢
(2) Interest includes cash paid on sw
For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, 201 September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost
Assets:
Interes-earning assets (1
Agency RMBS $ 4,321,09 109,32: 3.3% $ 1,850,32 47,39: 3.41%
Non-Agency RMBS 796,29 61,79: 10.3%% 646,74: 54,09: 11.1%
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V 1,921,60! 22541 15.6%% 2,309,70. 257,10° 14.8%
Jumbo Prime securitized residential mortgage |befc
for investmen 742,85¢ 21,44¢ 3.85% 1,044,49: 25,10( 3.2(%
Seasoned si-prime securitized residential mortgage lo
held for investmen 518,98: 27,35: 7.0% - - -
Total $ 8,300,82 445,321 10.7% $ 5,851,26: 383,69: 13.11%
Liabilities and stockholders' equit
Interes-bearing liabilities
Agency repurchase agreements $ 3,921,08 46,03¢ 157% $ 1,503,96 21,42 1.9(%
Non-Agency repurchase agreeme 246,60: 3,93¢ 2.1%% - - -
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 823,11: 39,55¢ 6.41% 1,178,24. 54,16 6.1%
Securitized debt, collateralized by jumbo primedestial
mortgage loan 621,14: 17,06: 3.6€6% 911,86: 21,31 3.12%
Securitized debt, collateralized by seasonewprime
residential mortgage loal 418,56: 10,23¢ 3.26% - - -
Total $ 6,030,51 116,83: 3.87% $ 3,594,07 96,89¢ 5.3%
Net economic interest income/net interest rate spael 328,49: 6.85% 286,79 7.72%
Net interesi-earning assets/net interest margil $ 2,270,31 7.91% $ 2,257,19 9.8(%
Ratio of interesi-earning assets to interest bearing liabilitie: 1.3¢ 1.68

(1) Interes-earning assets at amortized ¢
(2) Interest includes cash paid on sw

Net Economic Interest Income and the Average EargiAsset:

Our net economic interest income increased by $8bmto $134 million for the quarter ended Septem30, 2014 from $100 million for tl
same period of 2013. Our net interest rate sprehith equals the yield on our average assetstessconomic average cost of fur



decreased by 136 basis points for the quarter eBdptember 30, 2014 as compared to the same pErEfid 3. The net interest margin,
which equals the net economic interest incomeereentage of the net average balance of our Bitesgning assets less our inteftgsaring
liabilities, decreased by 254 basis points forgharter ended September 30, 2014 as compared sauhe period of 2013. Our net interest
margin declined due to a lower total average yigladur interest-earning assets of 284 basis puihitsh was not fully offset by the decline in
our average cost of funds of 146 basis points. pidrdfolio has experienced changes in 2014 as coeda 2013 as we have increased our
average Agency RMBS and securitized loans heléhf@stment and our Non-Agency RMBS has declined fiffance these increase, we
have primarily increased our repurchase agreenastsecuritized debt. These financing increased tesspurchase additional interest-
earning assets have increased our leverage registing in an overall increase in our return qoigy.
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Our net economic interest income increased by $4libmto $328 million for the nine months endedp8smber 30, 2014 from $287million

for the same period of 2013. Our net interest sptead, which equals the yield on our averagesiksss the economic average cost of funds
decreased by 40 basis points for the nine monttisce8eptember 30, 2014 as compared to the sanoel @ér2013. The net interest margin,
which equals the net economic interest income@ereentage of the net average balance of our siteening assets less our intetgsaring
liabilities, decreased by 189 basis points forrtime months ended September 30, 2014 as compatied same period of 2013. The decline
in our net interest margin for the nine month peti@consistent with the decline for the quartesvaver, as the increase in Agency RMBS
and securitized debt and repurchase agreementsedauring the second half of the nine month gkribe impact on the nine month period
is less significant.

Our average interest-earning assets increased.Byb#ion, or 114%, for the quarter ended Septeniie 2014 as compared to the same
period of 2013. Our average interest-earning asseteased by $2.4 billion, or 42%, for the ninenthhs ended September 30, 2014 as
compared to the same period of 2013. We will cargtito expand our holdings as we identify favoratglportunities in the market.

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Fur

The borrowing rate at which we are able to finamgeassets using repurchase agreements is typaraliglated to LIBOR and the term of 1
financing. The table below shows our average begtbfunds, economic interest expense, averageot@shds (inclusive of realized losses
on interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBO&age six-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBORtre¢ to average six-month
LIBOR, and average cost of funds relative to avemge- and six- month LIBOR.

Average On-
Month Average Cos Average Cos
LIBOR of Funds of Funds
Relative to Relative to Relative to
Economic Average Average On- Average Si- Average Six- Average One- Average Six-
Average Deb Interest Cost of Month Month Month Month Month
Balance Expense (1 Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ended September

2014 $ 10,351,25 $ 56,01¢ 2.16% 0.15% 0.33% (0.17%) 2.01% 1.8%%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 4,483,57. $ 32,74: 2.92% 0.15% 0.32% (0.17%) 2.71% 2.6(%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2 $ 3,145,02!  $ 28,07¢ 3.57% 0.16% 0.33% (0.17%) 3.41% 3.2%
For The Quarter Ended December

2013 $ 3,285,58 $ 26,96: 3.28% 0.17% 0.35% (0.18%) 3.11% 2.9%%
For The Quarter Ended September

2013 $ 3,360,50:  $ 30,53 3.65% 0.15% 0.35% (0.2(%) 3.4%% 3.2&%

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interatd swaps

Average interest-bearing liabilities increased Byodbillion, or 208%, for the quarter ended Septen@®, 2014 as compared to the same
period of 2013. Economic interest expense incbageb26 million, or 84%, for the quarter endedt8eber 30, 2014 as compared to the
same period of 2013. The increase in averageeisitdrearing liabilities is a result of the increaskeverage from repurchase agreements and
securitized debt entered into during the secondtlaind quarters of 2014, offset by declines in securitized debt collateralized by Non-
Agency RMBS. The additional financing was usethtwease our Agency RMBS and secured residentiaigage loans. As our average
interest-bearing liabilities increased, we have &adhcrease in interest expense. Lower inteegssiin the 2014 as compared to the same
period of 2013 have offset some of the increaset@rest expense. We note that average one-mautkia month LIBOR are down 4 basis
points and 6 basis points in the third quarterGiff2as compared to the same period of 2013. Wldo acquire interest rate hedges to
mitigate changes in interest rate risks, the hedggsnot fully offset interest expense movements.

Average interest-bearing liabilities increased By3%illion, or 91%, for the nine months ended 8epier 30, 2014 as compared to the same
period of 2013. Economic interest expense incikageb20 million, or 21%, for the nine months en&sptember 30, 2014 as compared to
the same period of 2013. The increase in averdgeest-bearing liabilities is a result of the w&se in leverage from repurchase agreements
and securitized debt entered into during the secoiadter and third quarters of 2014, offset by idesl in our securitized debt collateralized
by Non-Agency RMBS. Economic interest expense alss affected by the lower LIBOR interest rates dadines in our securitized debt
collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS which offset therease in the average interest-bearing liakslitie
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Net other~than-temporary credit impairment losses

OTTI losses are generated when fair values debkh@v our amortized cost basis, an unrealized brs3 the expected future cash flows
decline from prior periods, an adverse change. Wameunrealized loss and an adverse change irfloashoccur, we will recognize an OT
loss in earnings. In addition, if we intend tdl sesecurity, or believe we will be required tol salsecurity in an unrealized loss position, we
will recognize an OTTI loss in earnings equal te timrealized loss.

OTTI losses were $2 million and $16 million for baaf the quarters ended September 30, 2014 and 2R ctively. OTTI losses were $9
million and $23 million for each of the nine mon#rsded September 30, 2014 and 2013, respecti¥elyf September 30, 2014, we had
three securities in an unrealized loss positicalittg less than $1 million for which we did not ognize impairment. We intend to hold these
securities until they recover their amortized cdste continue to monitor our investment portfoliaawill impair all investments in an
unrealized loss position for which we do not bedieve will recover our amortized cost prior to méaguor sale.

Net gains (losses) on derivativ

The table below shows a summary of our gain (loegjerivative instruments, net for the quarters giné months ended September 30, 2014
and 2013.

For the Quarter Ende

September 3( September 3( September 3( September 3(
2014 2013 2014 2013

Periodic interest cost of interest rate swaps $ (17,13) $ (5,459 $ (34,84) $ (16,380
Realized gain (loss) on derivative instruments, (dollars in thousand:

Mortgage Option: 5,85z 3,59( 7,50¢ 3,59(

Treasury Future (11,54°) (1,522 (21,029 (1,522

Swaptions (325) - (325) -
Total realized gain (loss) on derivative instrunsentet (6,020 2,06¢ (13,849 2,06¢
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, |

Interest Rate Sway 7,041 $ 237 (8,729 18,81°

Mortgage Option: (4,340) (19¢) - (19¢)

Treasury Future 10,43¢ (12) (2,829 (12)

Swaptions (162) - (162) -
Total unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instratsenet: 12,97¢ 27 (11,720 18,60°
Total gain (loss) on derivative instruments, $ (10,177 $ (3,369 $ (60,41) $ 4,29t

Our derivative portfolio includes interest rate paaTreasury futures, and mortgage options. Duhiegnine months ended September 30,
2014, we entered into 27 new interest rate swapeagents with a notional value of $2.0 billion,&flwhich were added during the second
quarter of 2014. We also increased our Treasuryéstpositions by $680 million of notional valueidg the nine months ended September
30, 2014. The new swaps and Treasury futures areply related to the increase in Agency RMBS finad primarily with new repurchase
agreements to mitigate the effects of changestémést rates on our portfolio.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2014, wagrézed net losses on derivatives of $10 milliompared to net losses of $3 million for
the same period of 2013. During the nine montliedrSeptember 30, 2014, we recognized net lossdsroratives of $60 million compared
to net gains of $4 million for the same period 812. The net gains and losses on our derivatividade both unrealized and realized gains
and losses. Realized gains and losses includeetheash paid and received on our interest ratpswaring the period as well as sales and
settlements of our Treasury futures and mortgagierap Unrealized gains and losses include theghdn market value, period over period,
on our derivatives portfolio. We may or may ndtrahtely realize these unrealized derivative gaind losses depending on trade activity,
changes in interest rates and the values of therlyiinlg securities.
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Our interest rate swaps are primarily used to exocally hedge the effects of changes in interetstsran our portfolio specifically our
floating rate debt. Therefore, we included thdqaic interest costs of the interest rate swapshferquarters and nine month periods ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013 on these economic higdgar presentation of economic net interestime@nd our net interest spreads. As
we do not account for these as hedges for GAAReptaton, we present these gains and losses selgarathe consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income. The inciieabe net periodic interest cost of the interast swaps are primarily due to declines in
interest rates year over year as we pay a fixedamatour interest rate swaps and are receivingvarlioating rate.

Treasury futures are not included in our economierest expense and economic net interest incoifealso do not include any gains or
losses on our mortgage options in our economicastexpense and economic net interest incomesasditgage options were sold for
income generation and not as an economic hedgehéorges in interest rates in our portfolio. Asigantify opportunities in mortgage bacl
securities market, we may from time to time purehaissell mortgage options, including both call antloptions to take advantage of these
opportunities. The realized gains on our mortgagf@ns for the quarter and nine months ended &d@e 30, 2014 was $6 and $8 million,
respectively. We had no mortgage options duriregohharter and nine months ended September 30, 2013.

Net Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Financial Instrumis at Fair Value

We have elected a fair value option with changdaiinvalue reflected in earnings for our Agencyl &on-Agency IO RMBS securities,
certain of our securitized loans held for investtmeallateralized by a seasoned sub-prime pooésitiential mortgage loans, and the related
financing for the securitized loans consolidate@ &E in our statement of financial condition. eftable below shows the unpaid principal,
fair value and impact of change in fair value oateaf these financial instruments:

As of As of For the Quarter Ende
September 3( September 3(
September 30, 201 September 30, 201 2013 2013
(dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousand:
Unpaid Unpaid Gain/(Loss) or  Gain/(Loss) or
Principal/ Principal/ Change in Fair  Change in Fair
Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value Value Value
10 RMBS securitie! 7,663,11 335,77: 6,794,46. 336,37« (5,599 (27,879
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair e: 4,748,16! 4,816,55 - - 139,02( -
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized agris held fc
investment 3,842,42 3,737,60: - - 29,50( -
Total gain (loss) on financial instruments, net $ 16,25369 $ 8,889,921 $ 6,794,46, $ 336,37 $ 162,92 $ (27,879

Unrealized gains and losses on our Agency and Ngendy IO RMBS portfolio represent the change invalue the security from the prior
period. Unrealized gains and losses on our eAtjency and Non-Agency IO RMBS portfolio are refatin earnings. 10 securities
represent the right to receive the interest ona pbmortgage backed securities, including botleAgy and Non-Agency mortgage

pools. The fair value of IO RMBS securities aravily impacted by changes in expected prepayméesraVhen IO securities prepay, the
holder of the 10 security will receive less intdres the investment due to the reduced principal.

The securitized loans at fair value were acquingtihd the third quarter of 2014. We consolidatesl $ecuritized debt at fair value,
collateralized by loans held for investment, ontio statement of financial condition during the dhguarter of 2014. This debt represents the
obligations of the certain consolidated VIEs whégh not held by us and are collateralized by thfgim of seasoned sub-prime residential
mortgage loans.

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets and Loss anguishment of securitized debt

Net realized gains on sales of investments weren§ifién for the quarter ended September 30, 20dmpmared to realized gains of $

million for the same period of the prior year. Medlized gains on sales of investments were $@&mfor the nine months ended Septerr
30, 2014 compared to realized gains of $73 milfmrthe same period of the prior year.

We do not forecast sales of investments as we giyexpect to invest for long term gains, howeyem time to time, we may sell assets to

achieve targeted leverage ratios as well as farsgaghen prices indicate a sale is most beneficiakt or is the most prudent course of action
to maintain a targeted risk adjusted yield for iowestors.
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During the second quarter of 2014, we recognize&diridlion of gains on sales on $284 million of hiolgs related to consolidated VIEs. The
gain on sale of VIE assets is included in Gain ecothsolidation in the Consolidated Statement ofr&@tjmns and Comprehensive Income.

During the first quarter of 2014, the company pasgd $54 million of securitized debt collateralibgchonagency RMBS for cash payme:
of $56 million. When the Company acquires its tartding debt, it extinguishes the outstanding deltrecognizes a gain or loss based on
the difference between the carrying value of thet ded the cost to acquire the debt. This acdgoisiesulted in a net loss of $2 million wh
is reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Qjpmra and Comprehensive Income as a loss on exsimgient of debt during the nine
months ended September 30, 2014.

Net Management Fees and General and Administratiwepenses

The table below shows our total management feegandral and administrative, or G&A, expenses agpaved to average total assets and
average equity for the periods presented.

Total Total Total
Managemer Management Management Fee
Fee Fee and G&A and G&A
and G&A Expenses/Tot Expenses/Averay

Expense: Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in
thousands
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 201: $ 13,17¢ 0.4%% 1.54%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 10,317 0.42% 1.22%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 9,27¢ 0.54% 1.11%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 $ 8,96¢ 0.51% 1.04%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 2 $ 9,112 0.51% 1.01%

(1) Does not include ortime management fee reduction of $24 mill

We incurred management fees of $9 million and $iionifor each of the quarters ended Septembe2304 and 2013, respectively. We ¢
recognized reimbursements from our manager retatéte amended management agreement of $2 miltidr$8 million for the quarters
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013. We incurredgeament fees of $22 million and $20 million for tiiee months ended September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. We recognized reissuents from our manager related to the amendedgearent agreement of $5 million
for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 ah8. ZDhe management fee is based on our stockisdleiguity as defined in the
investment management agreement. See further disousf the management fee, including amendmerttseetonanagement agreement, as
well as other agreements with our Manager in oseuision of related party transactions below.

G&A expenses were $6 million and $4 million for tipearters ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 anchiih and $14 million for each
of the nine month periods ended September 30, 28d42013. Our G&A expenses have remained consiségind over
period. Additionally, during the third quarter 2014, our manager agreed to pay us a one time payshapproximately $24 million.

Provision for Loan Losse

The provision for loan losses related to our priomebo securitized loans held for investment at dined cost represents managements
estimate of expected future cash flows on the #&ma loans held. The provision in 2014 declifsgdan insignificant amount. We do not
expect significant changes in our loan loss provisis the total loans held for investment portfobatinues to decline as a result of principal
repayments.

The seasoned sub-prime residential mortgage laamsotidated during the third quarter are carriefhimtvalue with changes in fair value
reflected in earnings and, therefore, do not hapmosision for loan losses. Credit changes ateerateflected in the change in fair value
recorded in earnings.

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equ
The table below shows our economic net interestrire; realized gains (losses) on sale of assettharatedit related OTTI, realized and

unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swaph$@s), total management fee and G&A expenses,ramainie tax, each as a percentage of
average equity, and the return on average equitshéoperiods presented.
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Realized ani
Unrealized Gains

Realized Gain (Losses) on Total
Economic Ne (Losses) on Interest Rate Management Fee
Interest Sales and Swaps and & G&A
Income/Average OTTI/Average I0s/Average Expenses/Average Return on Averag
Equity * Equity Equity Equity Equity
(Ratios have been annualiz¢
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 2 15.6%% 7.41% 2.51% (1.54%) 43.9%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! 12.0% (1.17%) 2.55% (1.22%) 12.3%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( 11.0%% 0.7¢% 1.31% (1.11%) 11.99%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 13.1% (3.12%) 1.55% (1.04%) 8.39%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 2 11.3% 0.27% (3.1(%) (1.01%) 7.4%

* Includes effect of realized losses on interett gvaps

Our net income was $378 million and $67 million fioe quarters ended September 30, 2014 and 2Gk®atévely. Economic net interest
income as a percentage of average equity incrdas8@4 basis points for the quarter ended SepteBle2014 as compared to the same
period of 2013. The increase in our economic metréest income as a percentage of average equityeiso an increase in interest earned, net
of economic interest expense, on assets over they@ar as we have increased our leverage to eehagt economic interest income. The
return on average equity increased significanthttie quarter ended September 30, 2014 as comfzatkd same period of 2013. The
increase in our return on average equity is pripaltie to higher income as a result of gains oarfgial instruments carried at fair value with
changes in fair value reflected in earnings.

Core earnings

Our core earnings were $116 million, or $0.11 perage basic common share, for the quarter endetgi@ber 30, 2014 compared to $93
million, or $0.09 per average basic common sharethe same period in 2013. We attribute the m@jafi the increase in core earnings for
the quarter ended September 30, 2014 from theeyuamtled September 30, 2013 to the increase intee¢st income from the acquisition of
additional Agency RMBS during the second and thjudrters of 2014. Our core earnings were $282anjlbr $0.27 per average basic
common share, for the nine months ended Septenth@034 compared to $263 million, or $0.26 per agerbasic common share, for the
same period in 2013. We attribute the majorityhaf increase in core earnings for the nine montbse@&eptember 30, 2014 from the nine
months ended September 30, 2013 to the increass interest income from the acquisition of additibAgency RMBS during the second
and third quarters of 2014.

Core earnings is a non-GAAP measure and is defisd8AAP net income (loss) excluding unrealized gjaimthe aggregate portfolio,
impairment losses, realized gains on sales of tmests, gain on deconsolidation, extinguishmemtatft and certain other non-recurring
gains or losses. As defined, Core earnings inslinterest income and expense as well as realized gr losses on derivatives used to he
interest rate risk. Core earnings is providedoiamposes of comparability to other peer issuershhs important limitations. Core Earnings
described above helps evaluate our financial pexdioice without the impact of certain transactiorsiarof limited usefulness as an analyt
tool. Therefore, core earnings should not be vétimasolation and is not a substitute for net imeoor net income per basic share computed
in accordance with GAAP.

The following table provides GAAP measures of mebime (loss) and net income (loss) per basic shai#able to common stockholders for
the quarters and nine months ended September 38,a2@1 2013 and details with respect to reconctliregline items to core earnings and
related per average basic common share amounts:

For the Quarter Ende For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
GAAP Net income (loss $ 377,580 $ 67,360 $ 582,71 $ 290,37!
Adjustments
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 1,99( 16,45t 8,871 22,61¢
Net unrealized (gains) losses on derivati (12,979 (27 11,72( (18,607
Total other (gains) losst (227,029 9,05¢ (297,529 (31,079
Other (income) expense (23,787 - (23,787 -
Core Earnings $ 115,78: $ 92,85! $ 281,96¢ $ 263,30¢
GAAP net income per basic common share $ 0.37 $ 0.07 $ 0.57 $ 0.2¢
Core earnings per basic common share $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ $ 027 $ 0.2¢

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General
Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, purchase RMBS, mortg:

loans and other assets for our portfolio, pay diuis and other general business needs. Our mirstiprces of capital and funds for
additional investments primarily include earningsnf our investments, borrowings under securitizetiand r-securitizations, repurcha



agreements and other financing facilities, and @eds from equity offerings.

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidigds, we expect to continue to borrow fundseénftihm of repurchase agreements and,
subject to market conditions, other types of finagc The terms of the repurchase transaction bongs under our master repurchase
agreements generally conform to the terms in thedstrd master repurchase agreement as publishtée Becurities Industry and Financial
Markets Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment, gimarequirements and the segregation of all saearite have initially sold under the
repurchase transaction. In addition, each lengwcally requires that we include supplemental teand conditions to the standard master
repurchase agreement. Typical supplemental tensh€@nditions include changes to the margin maariea requirements, cross default
provisions, required haircuts (or the percentageithsubtracted from the value of RMBS that cellalizes the financing), purchase price
maintenance requirements, and requirements thdispllites related to the repurchase agreemertideedid or arbitrated in a particular
jurisdiction. These provisions may differ for easftour lenders.

We expect to meet our short term liquidity needsddying on the cash flows generated by our investim These cash flows are primarily
comprised of monthly principal and interest payrsaeteived on our investments. We may also selinmestments and utilize those
proceeds to meet our short term liquidity needsmer into non-recourse financing of our assetsuilin sales of securities to third parties of
loan securitizations or RMBS re-securitization sattions, similar to transactions that we have deteg in prior periods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetzswill be sufficient to enable us to
meet anticipated shotérm liquidity requirements. However, a declinghie value of our collateral could cause a tempadiguidity shortfall
due to the timing of margin calls on the financargangements and the actual receipt of the caateceto principal paydowns. If our cash
resources are at any time insufficient to satisfylmuidity requirements, we may have to sell isiveents, potentially at a loss, or issue debt
or additional equity securities in a common stoffkring.
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To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitaleand funds to continue to be provided
by earnings from our investments, borrowings ursgeuritizations and reecuritizations, repurchase agreements and otrending facilities
as well as proceeds from equity offerings. Assalteof our failure to file our SEC filings by tliéing date required by the SEC (including 1
grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under thaiStées Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), we atreligible to file a new Form S-3
registration statement or use our existing ForBr8gistration statements to raise additional gqrapital until filings with the SEC have be
timely made for a full year. Our ineligibility tase Form S-3 during this time period will have gatese impact on our ability to quickly
access the public capital markets because we wieutéquired to file a long-form registration stagemnand wait for the SEC to declare such
registration statement effective.

In addition to the principal sources of capitalaésed above, we may enter into warehouse faligied use longer dated structured
repurchase agreements. The use of any partiaulaces of capital and funds will depend on markeiditions, availability of these facilities,
and the investment opportunities available to us.

Current Period

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&&42 million and $78 million at September 30, 2@bdl December 31, 2013,
respectively.

Our operating activities provided net cash of appnately $157 million and $219 million for the ningonths ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. The cash provided by our opmratis primarily due to interest received in excekinterest paid during the

period. During the first three months of 2014emest received net of interest paid was $315 milliburing the first nine months of 2014, we
paid cash to cover margin requirements on ouresterate swaps and other financial instrumentppfaimately $112 million, which is
primarily reflected in other assets and other paymé&om derivative sales and settlements duriegnihe months ended September 30, 2014.

Our investing activities used cash of approxima$&y6 billion and provided cash of $296 million tbe nine months ended September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. During the nine meethded September 30, 2014 we purchased investofedits3 billion, primarily Agency
RMBS. This use of cash was offset during the pefiom sales of investments of $2.4 billion andhpipal repayments of $654 million
during the first nine months of 2014. Additionaltiuring the third quarter of 2014, we used cash7a% million to acquire interests in a
group of trusts collateralized by pools of seasondprime residential mortgage loans. Duringrime months ended September 30, 2013,
we received cash from principal repayments andss#l®&MBS securities in our portfolio of $1.3 lfi and $627 million respectively. This
receipt of cash was offset by cash used of $1li@iito acquire Agency and Non-Agency RMBS secesiti

Our financing activities provided cash of $5.5ibilland used cash of $1 billion for the nine morghded September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. During the nine months ended Septer@b, 2014, we received proceeds on our repura@d@geements, net of repayments on
our repurchase agreements of $6.2 billion. Thesegeds were offset by payments and repurchasesraecuritized debt of $564 million
and payments of dividends of $483 million. Themawts of dividends during the nine months endedeBeper 30, 2014 includes the $205
million of special dividends announced in the faugtiarter of 2013, but paid during the first quaaie2014. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2013, we used cash for paymentscanitseed debt of $795 million and paid dividendsb@77 million.

As a result of our operating, investing and finagcactivities described above, our cash positicreased by $164 million from December
2013 to September 30, 2014. Our investments inAlgency RMBS and Agency RMBS, at fair value, inaediby $6.2 billion during the
nine months ended September 30, 2014, not incluatsgts of consolidated VIEs. The majority of ¢hegrchases were financed through
repurchase agreements.

There were no secondary stock offerings duringhthe months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013uRsecleverage is 2.6:1 and 0.6:1 at
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. Ouunszteverage excludes the securitized debt wtdoloaly be repaid from the proceeds
on the assets securing this debt in their respediEs. The increase in our recourse leveragaésuat of the increase in repurchase
agreements to primarily expand our Agency RMBSfpbatas well as to finance significant acquisitsoof Non-Agency RMBS investment
assets. Our recourse leverage is presented #e soraur economic net equity. We believe théd thcreased leverage will result in higher
net income to our investors.
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We believe that our cash balances provide an apptepevel of liquidity. Even though we have wtrected Agency RMBS investments, we
expect to meet our future cash needs primarily fpoimcipal and interest payments on our portfohol @o not anticipate we will need to sell
unrestricted Agency RMBS investments to meet aidiity needs. We expect to continue to financeRMBS portfolio largely through
repurchase agreements and loans through the $eatioit market. In addition, we may from time tmé sell securities or issue debt as a
source of cash to fund new purchases.

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, thainging maturities on our RMBS repurchase agreesngate as follows.

September 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ - $ =
1-29 days 3,556,70! 644,33.
30 to 59 day: 1,691,67. 606,94!
60 to 89 day: 957,22. -
90 to 119 day 556,40t 129,04¢
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 1,076,15 278,23!
Total $ 7,838,16. $ 1,658,56.
Average days to maturit 67 day: 58 day:

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weouggance our operations with our RMBS investmer@air counterparties negotiate a
‘haircut’ when we enter into a financing transaectiovhich varies from lender to lender. The siz¢hefhaircut reflects the perceived risk
associated with holding the RMBS by the lendere Thircut provides lenders with a cushion for daigrket value movements that reduce
the need for a margin call to be issued or mamioet returned as normal daily increases or decséageMBS market values occur. At
September 30, 2014, the weighted average haircauprepurchase agreements collateralized by AgBMBS was 4.9%. The weighted
average haircut on our repurchase agreementsaraliaed by Non-Agency RMBS was 29.6%. As thevalue of the Non-Agency RMBS
is more difficult to determine, as well as moreatidé period to period than Agency RMBS, the NoneAgy RMBS requires a larger

haircut. Despite the haircut, repurchase agreesrseiject us to two types of margin calls. Fitstré are monthly margin calls that are
triggered as principal payments and pegaments are received by us as these payments tbevgalue of the collateral. As a result, we ex
to receive margin calls from our repurchase copatgies monthly simply due to the principal paydsevam our Agency RMBS. The monthly
principal payments and pre-payments are not knovadvance and vary depending on the behavior didh@wers related to the underlying
mortgages. Second, counterparties make marginarateturn margin as a result of normal daily ims®s or decreases in asset fair values. In
addition, when financing assets using standard fafr®IFMA Master Repurchase Agreements, the copatéyr to the agreement typically
nets its exposure to us on all outstanding repwelgreements and issues margin calls if movenfi¢né dair values of the assets in the
aggregate exceeds their allowable exposure tdudecline in asset fair values could create a nmacgil, or may create no margin call
depending on the counterpagyspecific policy. In addition, counterparties sioler a number of factors, including their aggregatposure t
us as a whole and the number of days remainingd®#fie repurchase transaction closes prior torigsaiimargin call. See Note 5 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussiohow we determine the fair values of the RMBS3atetalizing our repurchase
agreements.

The table below presents our average daily repsechalance and the repurchase balance at each peddor the periods presented. Our
balance at period-end tends to have little fluétuefrom the average daily balances except in perishere we are adjusting the size of our
portfolio by using leverage as we did in the secand third quarter of 2014. Our average repurchgseement balance at September 30,
2014 increased compared to our average repurclgasenaent balance for the quarter ended Decemb@033B, due to additional borrowings
on our repurchase agreements in excess of repagmenng the first nine months of 2014. We congito deploy capital for strategic
purchases of investments.
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Repurchase

Average Balance at
Repurchase Period
Period Balance End

(dollars in thousand:

7,741,833 $ 7,838,16:
3,054,73 % 5,564,55:
1,648,42! $ 1,561,92
157487 $ 1,658,56.
1,464,67 $ 1,589,32!

Quarter End September 30, 2(
Quarter End June 30, 20
Quarter End March 31, 20:
Quarter Ended December 31, 2(
Quarter Ended September 30, 2!

AP PHBH

We are not required to maintain any specific debequity ratio. We believe the appropriate leverfogehe particular assets we are financing
depends on the credit quality and risk of thosetassAt September 30, 2014 and December 31, 20d®tal debt was approximately $13.7
billion and $3.3 billion, including payables forcseities, which represented a debt-to-equity refiapproximately 3.8:1 and 1.0:1,
respectively. We include repurchase agreementserutitized debt in the numerator of our debtgaiy ratio and stockholders’ equity as
the denominator.

We do not manage our portfolio to have a pre-degeghamount of borrowings at quarter-end or yat- Our borrowings at period end ai
shapshot of borrowing as of a date, and this nursiheuld be expected to differ from average borrgwiaver the period. Our borrowings
will change as we implement our portfolio and nsknagement strategies to address changing marnk@itions by increasing or decreasing
leverage. Our borrowings may change during pendasn we raise capital, and in certain instancesmwag purchase additional assets and
increase borrowings prior to an expected capifakraSince our average borrowings and period enaings can be expected to differ, we
believe our average borrowings during a period iol®@a more accurate representation of our expdsute risks associated with leverage.

During the second and third quarter of 2014, weeiased our leverage through increased repurchaseragnts. During the second quarte
2014 we added four new repurchase agreement cpanties and increased our repurchase agreemegatbiis with 9 other

counterparties. At September 30, 2014, we havarcbpse agreements with 14 counterparties. Aduofrepurchase agreements are secured
by Agency and Non-Agency RMBS. Under these remselagreements we may not be able to reclaim diateral but still be obligated to
pay our repurchase obligations. We mitigate fisis oy limiting our exposure to any counterpartyess than 15% of our total equity as well
as ensuring all our counterparties are highly ratBaerefore, we believe the risk of loss of outateral posted is mitigated by the terms of
our agreements. As of September 30, 2014 and 204 Bave pledged $8.5 billion and $1.7 billion e€srities against our repurchase
agreement obligations.

Our repurchase agreements have original maturdieging from 30 to 365 days. The average termunepurchase agreements at
September 30, 2014 is 111 days. We expect to reaebv of our repurchase agreements at maturityente renew our repurchase
agreements, there is a chance that we will nobleeta obtain as favorable an interest rate asualtref rising rates. We offset the risk of our
repurchase agreements primarily through the usgterfest rate swaps. The average remaining migsion our interest rate swaps range °

2 years to 20 years and have a weighted averageityaif approximately 11 years. We use theseregt rate swaps to protect the portfolio
from short term changes in interest rates. Weeatly have four swap counterparties. When ourésterate swaps our in a net loss position
(expected cash payments are in excess of expeasbdreceipts on the swaps), we post collatera@sned by the terms of our swap
agreements. As of September 30, 2014, we have@83429 million of cash and securities as collateraur swap counterparties.

Secured Debt Financing Transactior

During the third quarter of 2014, we acquired coltitrg interests in several trusts collateralizgddeasoned suprime pools of residenti
mortgage loans. As we held the controlling intere® consolidated the assets and liabilities,easing our investments in mortgage loan
$4.7 billion and secured debt by $4.0 billion. Theestment of $774 million was financed througtombination of cash raised from sale
investments and additional repurchase agreemebtsing the third quarter, we refinanced the sedutebt related to one of the consolidi
trusts acquired during the quarter.

We did not re-securitize any RMBS or jumbo primgidential mortgage loans during the nine monthedreptember 30, 2013.
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Exposure to European Financial Counterpartie

Our Agency RMBS are primarily financed with repuaisk agreements. We secure our borrowings undssr #ygeements by pledging our
Agency RMBS as collateral to the lender. The cetlatwe pledge exceeds the amount of the borrowingsr each agreement, typically with
the extent of over-collateralization being at le284t of the amount borrowed. If the counterpartthrepurchase agreement defaults on its
obligations and we are not able to recover ourgeedassets, we are at risk of losing the overieslidized amount. The amount of this
exposure is the difference between the amount tbémas plus interest due to the counterparty haddir value of the collateral pledged by
us to the lender including accrued interest red#é/an such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouesgttete risks. Under these swap agreements,atlg@lAgency RMBS as collateral as part
of a margin arrangement for interest rate swapsattgain an unrealized loss position. If a swapnterparty were to default on its obligation,
we would be exposed to a loss to the extent tleaathount of our Agency RMBS pledged exceeded thealimed loss on the associated
swaps and we were not able to recover the excdisseral.

Over the past several years, several large Eurdipearcial institutions have experienced finandidiiculty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeaksha institutions. Some of these financial tusibns or their U.S. subsidiaries have
provided us financing under repurchase agreementg tiave entered into interest rate swaps with smstitutions. We have entered into
repurchase agreements and/or interest rate swapsiwicounterparties as of September 30, 2014igtether domiciled in Europe or is a
U.S.-based subsidiary of a European-domiciled fir@nnstitution. The following table summarizesr@xposure to such counterparties at
September 30, 2014:

Repurchase Interest Rate Exposure as a

Number of Agreement Swaps at Fair Percentage of Tot
Country Counterpartie Financing Value Exposure (1 Assets

(dollars in thousand:

France 1 $ 593,27¢ $ (21,790 $ 10,41« 0.06%
Germany 1 - (3,56¢) (3,56¢) -0.02%
Netherlands 1 491,29 - 20,91( 0.12%
Switzerlanc 2 1,533,93 (13,56¢) 356,72 2.04%
United Kingdom 1 545,59( - 8,02¢ 0.05%
Total 6 $ 3,164,10 $ (38,92) $ 392,50: 2.25%

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledgedl&geral to each counterparty less the aggreafatepurchase agreement financing and unreal ed
loss on swaps for each counterpa

At September 30, 2014, we did not use credit defaushps or other forms of credit protection to hetlge exposures summarized in the table
above.

If the European credit crisis continues to impaese major European financial institutions, itasgble that it will also impact the operations
of their U.S. subsidiaries. Our financings andrapiens could be adversely affected by such eveWws.monitor our exposure to our
repurchase agreement and swap counterpartiesemular basis, using various methods, includingew\of recent rating agency actions,
financial relief plans, credit spreads or otheralepments and by monitoring the amount of cashsadrities collateral pledged and the
associated loan amount under repurchase agreearatits the fair value of swaps with our countelipart We make reverse margin calls on
our counterparties to recover excess collaterpkasitted by the agreements governing our finanaimgngements or interest rate swaps, or
may try to take other actions to reduce the amotintir exposure to a counterparty when necessary.

Stockholder’ Equity
On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equityiloigton agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securitiedd,lor UBS. Through this
agreement, we may sell through UBS, as our sakestagp to 125,000,000 shares of our common stockdinary brokers’ transactions at

market prices or other transactions as agreed ketwe and UBS. We did not sell any shares of ommeon stock under the equity
distribution agreement during the quarters or miramths ended September 30, 2014 or 2013.
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During the quarters ended September 30, 2014 ah8l 2@ declared dividends to common shareholdéafirig $92 million, or $0.09 per
share. During the nine months ended Septembe&2(3@, and 2013, we declared dividends to commorekbéders totaling $277 million, or
$0.27 per share.

The Board of Directors has determined that thetieb@ia quarterly dividend of $0.09 per share Fa fourth quarter of 2014.
There was no preferred stock issued or outstarabrgf September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Related Party Transaction

The Management Agreement

We entered into a management agreement with FIDWG;h provided for an initial term through DecemBéar 2010 with an automatic one-
year extension option and subject to certain teation rights. Effective November 28, 2012, the agement fee was reduced from 1.509
0.75% per annum of gross stockholders’ equity, tvhé@nained in effect until we were current on &lit®filings required under applicable
securities laws.

On August 8, 2014, the management agreement wasdati@nd restated. Effective August 8, 2014, theagement fee was increased to
1.20% of gross stockholders’ equity. In additiBfiDAC agreed to pay us a one-time payment of apprately $24 million to resolve issues
raised in derivative demand letters sent to our@o# Directors. This amount equals a base managefae equal to 0.75% per annum of
gross stockholders’ equity as if it were in effroim January 1, 2012 through November 27, 2012s payment was received by the
Company during the third quarter of 2014 and isuded in Other income in the Consolidated Stateroétperations.

The agreement provides for a two year term endinguAt 7, 2016 and may be automatically renewetforyear terms at each anniversary
date unless at least two-thirds of the independiattors or the holders of a majority of the cansting shares of common stock elects not to
renew the agreement in their sole discretion andrg or no reason. Unless the management agreésrterminated for “cause” or FIDAC
terminates the management agreement, in the dvarthie management agreement is terminated oenetvwed, we must pay to FIDAC a
termination fee equal to two times the average ahmanagement fee, calculated as of the end ahtis recently completed fiscal quarter
prior to the date of termination. FIDAC will contia to provide services under the management agrédorea period not less than 180 days
from the date the Company delivers the notice moeéhew the management agreement.

We may also terminate the management agreemenB@ittays’ prior notice from our board of directasgthout payment of a termination
fee, for cause or upon a change of control of FIDk@nnaly Capital Management, Inc. (the parerEl@AC), each as defined in the
management agreement. FIDAC may terminate the gesnent agreement if we become required to regastan investment company un
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, suich termination deemed to occur immediately fge$ach event, in which case we
would not be required to pay a termination feeDAC may also decline to renew the management agreehy providing us with 180-days’
written notice, in which case we would not be reedito pay a termination fee.

The management agreement provides that FIDAC waill gl past and future expenses that we and/oAadit Committee incur to: (1)
evaluate our accounting policy related to the aapibn of GAAP to our Non-Agency RMBS portfolio é&HEvaluation”); (2) restate our
financial statements for the period covering 2008ugh 2011 as a result of the Evaluation (the t&ement Filing”); and (3) investigate and
evaluate any shareholder derivative demands ariging the Evaluation and/or the Restatement Fifthg “Investigation”); provided,
however, that FIDAC's obligation to pay expensegligs only to expenses not paid by our insurereuodr insurance policies. Expenses
shall include, without limitation, fees and coststirred with respect to auditors, outside courasal, consultants engaged by us and/or our
Audit Committee for the Evaluation, RestatemeninBiland the Investigation. The amount paid by FDrelated to these expenses for the
quarters ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 islb@maind $3 million, respectively, and is presehite the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) as Bepetoveries from Manager. The amount paid byAElPelated to these expenses for
both of the Nine months ended September 30, 20d42@h3 is $5 million, respectively.
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We are obligated to reimburse FIDAC for costs inedron our behalf under the management agreenfreaidition, the management
agreement permits FIDAC to require us to pay farpo rata portion of rent, telephone, utilitieffja furniture, equipment, machinery and
other office, internal and overhead expenses tHaAE incurred in connection with our operationshebe expenses are allocated between
FIDAC and us based on the ratio of our proportibgross assets compared to the gross assets mama§HdAC as calculated at each
quarter end. We and FIDAC will modify this alloiat methodology, subject to the approval of ourrtdaa directors if the allocation
becomes inequitable (i.e., if we become very hidéleraged compared to FIDAC's other funds and aets). The reimbursements to
FIDAC are less than $1 million for the quarter awite months ended September 30, 2014.

Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administrateices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apnto clear trades for us and RCap is paid custgrfees in return for such

services. RCap may also provide brokerage serticas from time to time. The fees paid to RCaplass than $1 million for the quarter :
nine months ended September 30, 2014.

Restricted Stock Grant

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stoektployees of our Manager and its affiliates and bensof our board of directors on
January 2, 2008. At September 30, 2014 and Deaedih@013, there were approximately 214,000 arfj(B® unvested shares of restricted
stock issued to employees of FIDAC, respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following tables summarize our contractual gédgions at September 30, 2014 and December 31, ZX8 estimated principal repaym
schedule of the securitized debt is based on eggeetsh flows of the residential mortgage loarRMBS, as adjusted for expected principal
writedowns on the underlying collateral of the debt

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Greater Thal

Within One One to Thret Three to Five or Equal to
Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
Repurchase agreements for RM $ 7,838,16. $ - $ - $ - $ 7,838,16:
Securitized dek 858,05( 1,346,39 910,60« 1,811,10 4,926,15:
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 12,43: 3 - - 12,43¢
Interest expense on securitized debt 185,21« 313,47! 245,47 643,50 1,387,66
Total $ 8,893,85 $ 1,659,871 $ 1,156,07- $ 2,454,60. $ 14,164,41
(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effecifeSeptember 30, 201

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Greater Thal

Within One One to Thret Three to Five or Equal to
Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1,658,56 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,658,56
Securitized dek 370,25( 497,94: 264,45t 396,911 1,529,56:
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 2,38( - - - 2,38(
Interest expense on securitized debt 57,54¢ 80,44¢ 58,62( 178,39: 375,00:
Total $ 2,088,73 $ 578,38¢ $ 323,07¢  $ 575,300 $ 3,565,50!

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effecifdDecember 31, 201
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any relationships with unconsolidiatatities or financial partnerships, such as iestibften referred to as structured finance
or special purpose entities, which would have hestablished for the purpose of facilitating offdrate sheet arrangements or other

contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtlveg,have not guaranteed any obligations of uncaeteld entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any secitities.
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Capital Requirements

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we t@vimitted to acquire all interests of a new resgzation vehicle collateralized wit
loans acquired during the third quarter of 2014e Tommitment is $348 million as of September 814 however, we expect that a majc
of the interests in this new securitization vehigl# be acquired by unrelated third parties.

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetedsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxamd®me (subject to certain adjustments).
We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to stockholders. Before we pay any dividend, we rfitsttmeet any operating requirements
and scheduled debt service on our financing fasliand other debt payable.

Inflation

A significant portion of our assets and liabiliti® interest rate sensitive in nature. As a resud#irest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chaigénterest rates do not necessarily correlatk inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our consolidated financial statements apgved in accordance with GAAP and our distribitindill be determined by our board of
directors consistent with our obligation to distiti® to our stockholders at least 90% of our REKRlde income on an annual basis in order to
maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, adtivities and financial condition are measurechwéference to historical cost and/or fair
market value without considering inflation.

Other Matters

We at all times intend to conduct our businessssood to become regulated as an investment comyoashgr the 1940 Act. If we were to
become regulated as an investment company, otityabiluse leverage would be substantially reduced.

Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Adinds an investment company as any issuer thaitgaged or proposes to engage in the
business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holdimgrading in securities and owns or proposestuge investment securities having a vi
exceeding 40% of the value of the issadotal assets (exclusive of U.S. Government sikesiiind cash items) on an unconsolidated bas
“40% test”). Excluded from the term “investmentséties,” among other things, are securities isdpedhajority-owned subsidiaries that re
on the exemption from registration provided by 8ec8(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Addelding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we rfayn in the future, rely on the

exemption from registration provided by Section)@&XC) of the Investment Company Act. Section @XC), as interpreted by the staff of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (or the SEGlires us to invest at least 55% of our assétaortgages and other liens on and
interest in real estate” (or Qualifying Real Estassets) and at least 80% of our assets in Quadjfiieal Estate Assets plus real estate relatec
assets. The assets that we acquire, thereforbrated by the provisions of and the rules and ftatjons promulgated under the Investment
Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept eetébes] “Companies Engaged in the Business of Aoty Mortgages and Mortgage-
Related Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778yddthe concept release, the SEC is reviewingpréére issues related to the Section 3
(c)(5)(C) exemption. We are monitoring developmeatated to this matter.

Based on our calculations, as of September 30, a8d4December 31, 2013, we were in compliance thighexemption from registration
provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) and 3(a)(1)(C) af thvestment Company Act.
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As a result of the Dod8&rank Wall Street Reform and Consumer ProtectionoA010, the U.S. Commaodity Futures Trading Cosgsiain, 0
CFTC, gained jurisdiction over the regulation dtirest rate swaps. The CFTC has asserted thatathées the operators of mortgage real
estate investment trusts that use swaps as ptrtiobusiness model to fall within the statutogfidition of Commaodity Pool Operator, or
CPO, and, absent relief from the Division or therassion, to register as CPOs. On December 7,,24512 result of numerous requests for
no-action relief from the CPO registration requistfor operators of mortgage real estate investinests, the Division of Swap Dealer and
Intermediary Oversight of the CFTC issued no-actedief entitled “No-Action Relief from the CommadgiPool Operator Registration
Requirement for Commodity Pool Operators of CerRooled Investment Vehicles Organized as Mortgagpd Rstate Investment Trusts”
that permits a CPO to receive relief by filing aini to perfect the use of the relief. A claim sutbed by a CPO will be effective upon filing,
so long as the claim is materially complete. Toeditions that must be met to claim the reliefthe the mortgage real estate investment
trust must:

e Limit the initial margin and premiums requireddstablish its commaodity interest positions to marerthan five percent of the fair
market value of the mortgage real estate investtnes’s total asset:

e Limit the net income derived annually from itsrmodity interest positions that are not qualifyhegging transactions to less than
five percent of the mortgage real estate investriren’s gross income

e Ensure that interests in the mortgage real estaéstment trust are not marketed to the publioraa a commodity pool or otherwise
as or in a vehicle for trading in the commodityulets, commaodity options, or swaps markets;

« Either:
o identify itself as ¢ mortgage REI” in Item G of its last U.S. income tax return onmdt12(-REIT; or

o ifit has not yet filed its first U.S. incontex return on Form 1120-REIT, disclose to its shatders that it intends to identify itself as
a“mortgage REI"” in its first U.S. income tax return on Form 1-REIT.

While we disagree that the CFT&)osition that mortgage real estate investmentdithhat use swaps as part of their business nfatilithin
the statutory definition of a CPO, we have subrditieclaim for the relief set forth in the no-actietief entitled “No-Action Relief from the
Commodity Pool Operator Registration Requirementfommaodity Pool Operators of Certain Pooled Investt Vehicles Organized as
Mortgage Real Estate Investment Trusts” and belexeneet the criteria for such relief set forthréie.

Iltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures abut Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, rmarket value risk and real estate risk.
While we do not seek to avoid risk completely, vedidve the risk can be quantified from historicgberience and we seek to actively mar
that risk, to earn sufficient compensation to fystking those risks and to maintain capital lsvansistent with the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments in Non-Agency RMBS and residentiattgege loans and face more credit
risk on assets we own which are rated below “AAAhe credit risk related to these investmentsaestto the ability and willingness of the
borrowers to pay, which is assessed before creditanted or renewed and periodically revieweduphout the loan or security term. We
believe that residual loan credit quality, and tthesquality of our assets, is primarily determitgcthe borrowers’ credit profiles and loan
characteristics. We use a comprehensive credigweprocess. Our analysis of loans includes borrgafiles, as well as valuation and
appraisal data. We use compensating factors sulidués assets, low loan to value ratios and regiamemployment statistics in evaluating
loans. Our resources include a proprietary podfolanagement system, as well as third party soétsgstems. We may utilize a third party
due diligence firm to perform an independent undging review to ensure compliance with existingdglines. In addition to statistical
sampling techniques, we create adverse credit alugition samples, which we individually review. Wgect loans that fail to conform to our
standards and do not meet our underwriting crit@ice we own a loan, our surveillance processided ongoing analysis through our
proprietary data and servicer files. Additionatlye NonAgency RMBS and other ABS which we acquire for partfolio are reviewed by t
to ensure that they satisfy our risk based crit@iar review of Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS irdss utilizing a proprietary portfolio
management system. Our review of Non-Agency RMB&ather ABS is based on quantitative and qualiéagimalysis of the risk-adjusted
returns on Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS. This gsialincludes an evaluation of the collateral cbignastics supporting the RMBS such
as borrower payment history, credit profiles, gaphiic concentrations, credit enhancement, seasoaigother pertinent factors.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many dast including governmental, monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international economic
and political considerations and other factors Inelyour control. We are subject to interest ratieinsconnection with our investments and
related debt obligations, which are generally repase agreements, warehouse facilities and seeigin/re-securitization vehicles. Our
repurchase agreements and warehouse facilitiedmay limited duration that is periodically refirmed at current market rates. We intend to
mitigate this risk through utilization of derivagivcontracts, primarily interest rate swap agreemantaptions, futures and mortgage options.

Interest Rate Effects on Net Interest Incon

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedihces between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementsderéimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type détying asset which collateralizes the financiagcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assetslvdlmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshafrt-term financing, while our fixed
interest rate assets will not be mafahded. During periods of rising interest rates, blorrowing costs associated with our investmentd tc
increase while the income earned on our fixed @#erate investments may remain substantially urgdd This will result in a narrowing of
the net interest spread between the related amseétsorrowings and may even result in losses. Egrtturing this portion of the interest rate
and credit cycles, defaults could increase andtr#saredit losses to us, which could adversefeefour liquidity and operating results. Such
delinquencies or defaults could also have an adwffect on the spread between interest-earnirggsaasd interest-bearing liabilities.
Hedging techniques are partly based on assumels levprepayments of our fixed-rate and hybrid atjblerate mortgage loans and RME

If prepayments are slower or faster than assurhedifée of the mortgage loans and RMBS will be lengr shorter, which would reduce the
effectiveness of any hedging strategies we mayndamay cause losses on such transactions.

Interest Rate Effects on Fair Valu

Another component of interest rate risk is thea@ftdhanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We face the
risk that the fair value of our assets will increas decrease at different rates than that ofiabilities, including our hedging instruments. !
primarily assess our interest rate risk by estingathe duration of our assets and the duratioruofiabilities. Duration essentially measures
the market price volatility of financial instrumerds interest rates change. We generally calcdilatgion using various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodologis produce different duration numbers for the saewarities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signiflgamhen interest rates change beyond 100
basis points from current levels. Therefore, thiatidy in the fair value of our assets could iease significantly when interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points. In addition, other factonzsact the fair value of our interest raensitive investments and hedging instruments,
as the shape of the yield curve, market expecttarto future interest rate changes and otherahaokditions. Accordingly, in the event of
changes in actual interest rates, the change ifathealue of our assets would likely differ fraimat shown below and such difference might
be material and adverse to our stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Ris

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRIMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdedging mortgages are typically
subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate capd floors, which limit the amount by which thegety’s interest yield may change during
any given period. However, our borrowing costs parg to our financing agreements will not be suttiesimilar restrictions. Therefore, in a
period of increasing interest rates, interest catds on our borrowings could increase withouttiton by caps, while the interest-rate yields
on our adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS aveffiéctively be limited. This problem will be mafied to the extent we acquire
adjustable-rate RMBS that are not based on mortgatyech are fully indexed. In addition, the mortga@r the underlying mortgages in an
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps #silt in some portion of the interest being defitared added to the principal
outstanding. This could result in our receipt alsleash income on our adjustable-rate mortgage®8/&S than we need in order to pay the
interest cost on our related borrowings. Thesefaatould lower our net interest income or causetdoss during periods of rising interest
rates, which would harm our financial conditionslkedlows and results of operations.
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Interest Rate Mismatch Ris

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh®WBS with borrowings that, after the effect ofdyéng, have interest rates based on
indices and re-pricing terms similar to, but of savhat shorter maturities than, the interest rad&as and re-pricing terms of the mortgages
and RMBS. In most cases the interest rate indinesre-pricing terms of our mortgage assets andumaling sources will not be identical,
thereby creating an interest rate mismatch betwassats and liabilities. Our cost of funds woul@ljkrise or fall more quickly than would ¢
earnings rate on assets. During periods of charigtegest rates, such interest rate mismatcheslcmdatively impact our financial conditic
cash flows and results of operations. To mitigaterest rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedsjiregegies discussed above. Our analysis
of risks is based on FIDAC's experience, estimategjels and assumptions. These analyses rely orlsatiich utilize estimates of fair
value and interest rate sensitivity. Actual ecormaainditions or implementation of investment dexisiby our management may produce
results that differ significantly from the estimsignd assumptions used in our models and the pedjeesults shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolim@luding derivatives) may be adversely affectedrduany period as a result of changing
interest rates. The following table quantifies plitential changes in net interest income and plt’alue for our Agency RMBS portfolio
should interest rates go up or down 50 and 10G pasits, assuming parallel movements in the yéaldes. All changes in income and ve
are measured as percentage changes from the pubjsett interest income and portfolio value at thgehinterest rate scenario. The base
interest rate scenario assumes interest ratepsarBeer 30, 2014 and various estimates regardeygayment and all activities are made at
each level of rate change. Actual results coutididsignificantly from these estimates.

September 30, 201
Projected Percentay
Change in Portfolio

Value
Projected Percenta with Effect of Interest
Change in Net Interest ~ Rate Swaps and Other
Change in Interest Ra Income (1) Hedging Transactions (
-100 Basis Point (20.90%) (1.23%)
-50 Basis Point (13.86%) (0.84%)
Base Interest Ra - -
+50 Basis Point 8.18% (0.78%)
+100 Basis Point 5.91% (1.95%)

(1) Change in annual economic net interest incomeudied interest expense on interest rate sv
(2) Projected Percentage Change in Portfolio Valumsed on instantaneous moves in interest |

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums and discounts on such investmgihbe amortized or accreted into
interest income. In general, an increase in pregaymates will accelerate the amortization of pasghpremiums, thereby reducing the
interest income earned on the investments. Conlyediscounts on such investments are acceleratédecreted into interest income
increasing interest income.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions déggithe rate at which the borrowers
will prepay the underlying mortgages. In generdlew fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagmé or RMBS are acquired via
borrowings, we may, but are not required to, eimtier an interest rate swap agreement or other hgdgstrument that effectively fixes our
borrowing costs for a period close to the anti@dadverage life of the fixed-rate portion of thiated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates as the boimgwosts are effectively fixed for the duratiortloé fixed-rate portion of the related assets.
However, if prepayment rates decrease in a rigiteyést rate environment, the life of the fixecerportion of the related assets could extend
beyond the term of the swap agreement or otherihgdgstrument. This could have a negative impacbor results from operations, as
borrowing costs would no longer be fixed after ¢émel of the hedging instrument while the income e@mwn the fixed and hybrid adjustable-
rate assets would remain fixed. In extreme sitnatiove may be forced to sell assets to maintaigquate liquidity, which could cause us to
incur losses.
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Basis Risk

We seek to limit our interest rate risk by hedgiagtions of our portfolio through interest rate psand other types of hedging instruments.
Interest rate swaps are generally tied to undeglfireasury benchmark interest rates. Basis rigkasglto the risk of the spread between our
RMBS and underlying hedges widening. Such a widgniay cause a decline in the fair value of our RMBS is greater than the increas:
fair value of our hedges resulting in a net deciimbook value. The widening of mortgage-backedigées yields and Treasury benchmark
interest rates may result from a variety of facgarsh as anticipated or actual monetary policyoastor other market factors.

Market Risk

Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and reported
due to changes in interest rates, prepayment spexadket liquidity, credit quality, and other facdo Generally, in a rising interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these sesiwould be expected to decrease; conversely,decreasing interest rate environment,
the estimated fair value of these securities wbel@éxpected to increase. As market volatility éases or liquidity decreases, the fair valu
our investments may be adversely impacted.

Real Estate Market Ris

We own assets secured by real property and mayrealmproperty directly in the future. Residenfiabperty values are subject to volatility
and may be affected adversely by a number of fachocluding, but not limited to, national, regibaad local economic conditions (which
may be adversely affected by industry slowdownsathdr factors); local real estate conditions (saglan oversupply of housing); change
continued weakness in specific industry segmewtsstcuction quality, age and design; demograpldtofa; and retroactive changes to
building or similar codes. In addition, decreaseprioperty values reduce the value of the collatand the potential proceeds available to a
borrower to repay our loans, which could also caiss® incur losses.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage
loans, RMBS, and other assets and related dehtstighe effects of major interest rate changesg@reerally seek to manage risk by:

e monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasgéx and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

e attempting to structure our financing agreemémtsave a range of different maturities, terms, dizations and interest rate
adjustment periods

e using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, @pdi caps, floors and forward sales to adjustrttezest rate sensitivity of our
investments and our borrowing

e using securitization financing to lower averagstof funds relative to shotérm financing vehicles further allowing us to rieecthe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended peabtime in contrast to short term financing and unigy dates of the investments not
included in the securitization; al

e actively managing, on an aggregate basis, tleedst rate indices, interest rate adjustment pgriad gross reset margins of our
investments and the interest rate indices and t@arg periods of our financing
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Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thprieing of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with interagé movements. Methods for evaluating interestriskeinclude an analysis of our interest |
sensitivity “gap,” which is the difference betweaterest-earning assets and interest-bearingiligsiimaturing or re-pricing within a given
time period. A gap is considered positive whenatmount of interest-rate sensitive assets exceedsntiount of interest-rate sensitive
liabilities. A gap is considered negative whenadh®ount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities exdemterest-rate sensitive assets. During a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gapld/téend to adversely affect net interest incomeevh positive gap would tend to result in an
increase in net interest income. During a periothlhihg interest rates, a negative gap would tencesult in an increase in net interest
income, while a positive gap would tend to affeet interest income adversely. Because differerggyqf assets and liabilities with the same
or similar maturities may react differently to claas in overall market rates or conditions, chamgésterest rates may affect net interest
income positively or negatively even if an instidut were perfectly matched in each maturity catggor

The following table sets forth the estimated m&yuoi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets imterest-bearing liabilities at September 30,
2014. The amounts of assets and liabilities shaitimn a particular period were determined in ademrce with the contractual terms of the
assets and liabilities, except adjustable-ratedpand securities are included in the period inctwhineir interest rates are first scheduled to
adjust and not in the period in which they maturd imcludes the effect of the interest rate swaps. interest rate sensitivity of our assets
liabilities in the table could vary substantiallgded on actual prepayments.

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Greater than .

Within 3 Months 3-12 Months 1 Yearto 3 Year Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 1,435,03( $ 1,792,011 $ 831,52t $ 20,763,97 $ 24,822,53
Cash equivalent 241,64 - - - 241,64
Total rate sensitive ass¢ 1,676,67. 1,792,01 831,52t 20,763,97 25,064,18
Rate sensitive liabilitie 8,484,66! 1,331,09! 20,89t 8,47: 9,845,13:
Interest rate sensitivity ge $ (6,807,99) $ 460,91 $ 810,63: $ 20,755,49 $ 15,219,04
Cumulative rate sensitivity g¢ $ (6,807,99) $ (6,347,08) $ (5,536,44) $ 15,219,04
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap ¢
percentage of total rate sensitive as -27% -25% -22% 61%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager’'smapce, estimates, models and assumptions. Thedesas rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sengjtivictual economic conditions or implementatiorirofestment decisions by our manager t
produce results that differ significantly from thstimates and assumptions used in our models angtdfected results shown in the above
tables and in this Form 10-Q. These analyses iroo¢atain forward-looking statements and are suthifethe safe harbor statement set forth
under the heading, “Special Note Regarding Forwamking Statements.”

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Changes in Internal Controls

In our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year eh@=cember 31, 2013, we disclosed that managenaentlentified material weaknesses
in our internal controls over financial reporting/e did not design and maintain adequate procedurefective review and approval
controls, including the review of journal entrigxlaeconciliations, over routine processes. Wendiddesign and maintain adequate review
and approval controls over significant estimates their related disclosure process to prevent teal@ material misstatement and we
identified an overreliance on spreadsheets congisti manual inputs and complex calculations use@d¢ord transactions and estimates
supporting the financial statement amounts andatiaces.
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Based upon the substantial work described in oumF®-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 andwsequent quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, and the procedures performed througfilthg of this Form 10-Q, we have concluded tha tonsolidated financial statements
for the periods covered by and included in thisnrd@0-Q are prepared in accordance with GAAP anti/faresent in all material respects,
our financial position, results of operation anditflows for each of the periods presented herein.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0&r determined that the aforementioned materia@kmesses in our internal controls over
financial reporting were not fully remediated ahdttour disclosure controls and procedures wereffiettive as of September 30, 2014.

To address the material weaknesses regarding reanevapproval controls over routine processesCtimapany has significantly enhanced its
review and approval procedures, including the ewigeof review. The Company also implemented artreleic document management
program to maintain an audit trail of review progegs and approvals.

To address the material weaknesses regarding renévapproval controls over significant estimaties,Company has significantly enhan
its review of the fair values reported by the CompaAs discussed in Footnote 5, the Company habist and independent pricing process
to ensure fair values are accurately and complegelyrded and appropriate levels of review, analgisid comparison exist before utilizing
fair values for financial reporting purposes. T@mpany continues to implement new systems to eeitsiceliance on spreadsheets. The
Company has enhanced its review procedures orpteadsheets it uses for financial reporting, bpeeis many of the spreadsheets will not
be necessary in 2015 when new systems are in afateperational for financial reporting purposes.

Other than the changes discussed above, therebeameno changes in our “internal control over fgiahreporting” (as defined in Rule 13a-
15 (f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended) that occurred during the period covieyetiis quarterly report that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, our internal control over financigporting.

PART II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial statatseor the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Comest of our Board of Directors initiated an
internal investigation, with the assistance of mgxounsel and financial advisors engaged by @eitsbunsel, regarding the facts and
circumstances relating to our accounting for Noredgy RMBS and the restatement of our financiakstaints.

Our Board of Directors has received three derieatigemand letters alleging, among other things,ttreadirectors and our officers, as well as
our Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciary dutiesis by failing to institute adequate internahtzols and failing to ensure that we made
accurate financial disclosures. These lettersastjamong other things, that the Board of Dirextake action to investigate and remedy the
alleged breaches of fiduciary duty. The Audit Caittee has reached an understanding with FIDACrisalves the issues raised in the
derivative demand letters. The Audit Committeal$® pursuing additional remedies against othdrgsaregarding the facts and
circumstances relating to our accounting for Noredgy RMBS and the restatement of our financiakstants. These and other potential
actions that may be filed against us, whether wittvithout merit, may divert the attention of maaawgnt from our business, harm our
reputation and otherwise may have a material adweffect on our business, financial condition, itssof operations and cash flows.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Under “Part | — Item 1A — Risk Factors” of our Forl10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, wibgétrisk factors related to (i)
risks associated with adverse developments in tivtgage finance and credit markets, (ii) risks asated with our management and
relationship with our Manager, (iii) risks relatedd our business, (iv) risks related to our invesitag(v) regulatory and legal risks, (vi) risks
related to our common stock (vii) tax risks, awiil)(risks associated with the late filings andated matters. You should carefully consider
the risk factors set forth in our Form 10-K for thear ended December 31, 2013. As of the datefdhere have been no material changes
to the risk factors set forth in our Form 10-K tbe year ended December 31, 2013.
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Iltem 6. Exhibits
Exhibits:

The exhibits required by this item are set forthtlom Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Description
Number
3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chintevestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1he Company’s

Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Forbd §ile No. 333-145525) filed on September 2Q72and
incorporated herein by referenc

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment@i@wation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's@®rt on Form 8-K filed
on May 28, 2009 and incorporated herein by refes§

3.3 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentiwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company'spRe on Form 8-K filed
on November 5, 2010 and incorporated herein byeats).

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the ComyarReport on Form &
filed on December 19, 2011 and incorporated hdrgireference)

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimakestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmrated herein by
reference)

31.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extiee Officer and President of the Registrant, pard to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Finanlciafficer of the Registrant, pursuant to Secti®2 ®f the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Eutice Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBa-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Finano@fficer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.S3gction 1350 as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document *

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documen

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documen

Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&@ment Created*
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documen

Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Docume

**  Submitted electronically herewith. Attachad Exhibit 10.1 to this report are the followingcdments formatted in XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatedeBtants of Financial Condition as of September 8@43Unaudited) and December 31,
2013 (derived from the audited consolidated finahsiatements); (ii) Consolidated Statements ofr@tmns and Comprehensive Income for
the quarters and nine months ended September 38,a82@1 2013; (iii) Consolidated Statement of Stadttérs' Equity (Deficit) for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013; (iv)dlidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine hoahded September 30, 2014 and
2013; and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial $tatas.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdéport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
(Chief Executive Officer and Preside
and duly authorized officer of the registra

Date: November 10, 201

By: /s/Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan

(Chief Financial Officel

and principal financial officer of the registra
Date: November 10, 201
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify the
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material facnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to tl
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finantékments, and other financial information incluéethis report, fairly present
all material respects the financial condition, issaf operations and cash flows of the registesmnof, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedutss ¢iesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

b. Designed such internal control over finah@aorting, or caused such internal control owearficial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in #gigtrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent eNatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and materialakaeesses in the design or operation of internafrotsnover financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalwes management or other employees who have disagnt role in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: November 10, 2014

/s/ Matthew Lambiase

Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEutive Officer)







Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Rob Colligan, certify that
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finantékments, and other financial information incluéethis report, fairly present
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeemof, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedutss ¢iesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isfg prepared

b. Designed such internal control over finah@aorting, or caused such internal control owearficial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent eNatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and materialakaeesses in the design or operation of internafrotsnover financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalwes management or other employees who have disagn role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: November 10, 2014

/s/_Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe



Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended

September 30, 2014 to be filed with Securities Brchange Commission on or about the date hereef'Report”), I, Matthew Lambiase,

President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarlsa@zley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. Theinformation contained in the Report fairly @ets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of 1

Company at the dates of, and for the periods cavieyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambiase

Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President
November 10, 201




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended

September 30, 2014 to be filed with Securities Brchange Commission on or about the date hereef'Report”), I, Rob Colligan, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2A@U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. Theinformation contained in the Report fairly @ets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of 1
Company at the dates of, and for the periods cavieyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/sl Rob Colligan

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Officer
November 10, 201



